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Its activities involved cover the entire value creation chain for theIts activities involved cover the entire value creation chain for the
development of real estate from location assessment and project man-development of real estate from location assessment and project man-
agement right through to completion, marketing and sale or leasing.agement right through to completion, marketing and sale or leasing.
Based on this comprehensive range of services from the initial ideaBased on this comprehensive range of services from the initial idea
through to project completion and the focus on the most attractivethrough to project completion and the focus on the most attractive
locations in Europe, Peach Property Group is in a position to offer itslocations in Europe, Peach Property Group is in a position to offer its
clients highly exceptional properties.clients highly exceptional properties.

The success of Peach Property Group is largely attributable to its coreThe success of Peach Property Group is largely attributable to its core
competences: access to customers interested in buying uniquecompetences: access to customers interested in buying unique
properties, an extensive network of information channels permittingproperties, an extensive network of information channels permitting
the identification of properties and land with development potential,the identification of properties and land with development potential,
the structuring of financing models and project development and pro-the structuring of financing models and project development and pro-
ject management on the highest level – not to mention a proactiveject management on the highest level – not to mention a proactive
approach to managing its portfolio properties.approach to managing its portfolio properties.

Peach Property Group employs 35 real estate and financialPeach Property Group employs 35 real estate and financial specialistsspecialists
at its headquarters in Zurich and at its German branch inat its headquarters in Zurich and at its German branch in Cologne.Cologne.
Current Group projects amount to aCurrent Group projects amount to a targeted marketing volume totallingtargeted marketing volume totalling
around 800 million CHF.around 800 million CHF.

PEACH PROPERTY GROUP AG
IS ONE OF THE LEADING
DEVELOPERS OF LUXURY RESIä
DENTIAL PROPERTY IN THE
GERMANäSPEAKING COUNTRIES
OF EUROPE.



PORTFOLIO

Peach Property Group focuses on city and holiday residences for
discerning property owners and investors. The properties’ main features
are their first-class location, high quality and incomparable finish
that satisfy the demands and lifestyle of their owners. Peach Property
Group’s current development portfolio encompasses a total of
14 projects in Greater Zurich, Berlin, Hamburg, and the Austrian holiday
resort of Kappl near Ischgl.

As at the end of January 2012, Peach Property Group’s investment
portfolio includes investment properties in Erkrath-Hochdahl near
Düsseldorf, Munster near Hamburg, and Zurich. Overall, the current
portfolio consists of 519 residential properties with total living space
of around 36,000 m2 and 29 commercial units covering around
15,000 m2.

Hamburg
H36

Berlin-Mitte
Living 106 2

yoo berlin
Am Zirkus 1

Düsseldorf
Schlossuferresidenz 1

Munster

Zurich
Bakery

Kappl
Schooren des Alpes
Holdernach

Zurich
Beach House
Aquatica
Kölla
Mansion
Dockside
Mews & Gardens
Candy Factory
Sonnenberg 1

Avalon 1

Schooren 2

Project 111 2

Projects

Investment properties

Places of business
1 Projects sold
2 Projects completed
3 Portfolio purchase in January 2012

Cologne

Erkrath 3



KEY FIGURES

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Peach Property Group (consolidated)

Operating income in thousands of CHF 19,679 84,425

Operating profit/EBIT in thousands of CHF –11,960 21,342

Profit/(loss) for the period in thousands of CHF –11,137 17,971

NAV IFRS in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

NAV market value 1 in thousands of CHF 130,016 146,529

Projects under construction in thousands of CHF 153,423 147,563

Building loans used in thousands of CHF 71,651 59,472

Equity in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

Equity ratio (reported) in % 42 53

Equity ratio (at NAV market value 1) in % 48 57

Employees 35 34

Peach Property Group share

Number of shares (at CHF 1.00/share) 4,852,400 4,844,150

Share capital in thousands of CHF 4,852 4,844

Diluted profit per share in CHF –2,31 6,03

NAV IFRS per share in CHF 19,63 23,22

NAV market value 1 per share in CHF 26,79 30,25

Share price on 31 December in CHF 11,05 31,00

Market capitalisation on 31 December in thousands of CHF 53,619 150,169

1 NAV market value calculated on the basis of the Wüest & Partner valuation, account having been
taken of deferred taxes.

Market value per property

in millions of CHF at 31.12.2011 (rounded)
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8.0

7.2

6.9

49.4

38.7

68.1

Mews & Gardens

Dockside

Schooren des Alpes

yoo berlin

Am Zirkus 1 (100%)

H36

CHDevelopment properties Investment properties DA
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Nothing old is ever reborn,
but neither does it totally
disappear. And that which
has once been will always
reappear in a new form.”
Alvar Aalto

Harvestehuder Weg 36
www.harvestehuderweg36.de

“
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Peach Property Group can now look back at its first full financial year as a
listed company. This year saw the market value of the property portfolio
increase to 292 million CHF, based on a valuation by the independent
property valuer Wüest & Partner. In terms of the financial results, however,
a loss of 11 million CHF was recorded, following on from the profit of 18
million CHF that we posted in the previous year. This can be explained by
the fact that no major property projects were completed during the 2011
financial year, as the timeline predicted. As a result, the income figure of 20
million CHF was significantly lower than the previous year’s 84 million CHF.
The fact that Peach Property Group has irregular income flows lies in the
nature of its business. Our development projects last between three and
four years, with income only posted once a project is complete – even
though sales contracts for residences may have been drawn up much
earlier.

Key markers
In view of this, the success of Peach Property Group is not so much deter-
mined by the financial performance over a single year as by whether fig-
ures show an upward trajectory over the medium and long term. In other
words, whether development projects are progressing as planned, the
pipeline is filling up with new projects, and operational tasks are being
carried out as effectively and efficiently as possible. In these respects,
Peach Property Group has laid down some key markers during the 2011
financial year.

All projects currently under construction are on schedule. “Living
106” in Berlin marked the successful completion of the first residential
project in Germany. As far as the “yoo berlin” and “Am Zirkus 1” projects in
Berlin are concerned, we completed the difficult underground work asso-
ciated with the challenging ground conditions and started work on erect-
ing the ten-storey free-standing building during the summer. We are also
making good progress in Hamburg with the “Harvestehuder Weg 36” pro-
ject. The topping-out ceremony for the first section took place during
the autumn, with construction work on the second phase beginning at
the start of this year. The topping-out ceremony also took place for our
Austrian “Schooren des Alpes” project in Kappl near Ischgl during late
autumn.

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,
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The 2011 financial year also saw us make progress with projects in Swit-
zerland, although these are still at the development stage. The exclusive
collaboration with renowned landscape designer Enzo Enea for designing
the entire park and garden site on the Peninsula site in Wädenswil has now
begun. The first stage of the construction process saw the creation of the
rear-side noise barrier. In March 2012, the court of appeal (Baurekurs-
gericht) of the Canton of Zurich reached its judgement on the appeals
lodged by the Heritage Society against a small number of projects on the
Peninsula site.

In mid-2011, Peach Property Group announced its intention to put
together a portfolio of investment properties generating regular rental in-
come in order to help smooth out its income. As early as the fourth quarter,
we acquired an initial portfolio of investment properties in the German city
of Munster, which is situated within easy reach of the two major hubs of
Hamburg and Hanover. We then announced the acquisition of a further
portfolio in Erkrath-Hochdahl near Düsseldorf at the start of 2012. All this
means Peach Property Group will already earn rental income of 4.6 million
CHF for the current year. To help finance the portfolio of investment prop-
erties, Peach Property Group is issuing a bond on the German capital mar-
ket via its German subsidiary. The bond has a coupon rate of 6.6%, a term
to mid-2016 and an investment grade rating. Placement will continue until
the end of June 2012.

Another important development during the financial year has been
the drive to optimise our internal processes. Considerable emphasis was
placed on assessing and implementing new IT platforms. It is important
that these enable us to map the various processes along the property de-
velopment value chain within a single cross-disciplinary information sys-
tem. This kind of integrated platform will enable Peach Property Group to
manage its projects efficiently, form a more rounded judgement about
acquisition projects, and thereby continue to grow.

Dividend policy to continue
The Board of Directors will recommend paying a dividend of 0.30 CHF per
share for the 2011 financial year at the General Meeting of Peach Property
Group AG on 11 May 2012. This equates to a dividend yield of 2.7% at year-
end. As such, Peach Property Group is continuing with its dividend policy
of paying shareholders regular dividends in excess of long-term money
market rates. Dividends are again being paid out of equity reserves, so
there is no tax liability for natural persons in Switzerland.

Dr. Christian Wenger
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Simplified compensation system in future
During the financial year, Peach Property Group has undertaken a detailed
inspection of the compensation system for the Board of Directors and
Executive Management and made certain amendments. In principle, the
systems are to be simplified as of the new 2012 financial year. In future,
part of the variable component of managers’ salaries will be paid in the
form of restricted shares. The Board of Directors will also receive some of
their fees in the form of restricted shares and options as of 2012.

New faces on the Board of Directors and executive management
Christian Kühni will not be standing for re-election at the next General
Meeting. He has been a member of the Board since 2009 and has made a
significant contribution to the development of Peach Property Group dur-
ing this time. I would like to thank him for his commitment on behalf of the
Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors is recommending Dr. Corinne Wohlfahrt for
election to the Board at the shareholders’ meeting. Dr. Wohlfahrt has been
an independent private equity practitioner for some ten years. She holds
investments in the property sector among others. Her knowledge of the
German market is extensive and she has already advised Peach Property
Group on some significant transactions in her capacity as an M & A expert,
including the takeover in 2009 of Vivacon AG’s development business. Her
extensive experience makes her a valuable addition to the Board of Direc-
tors. In addition, Dr. Christian Wenger, Peter Bodmer, Dr. Christian De Prati
and Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger are all standing for re-election.

Peach Property Group has also strengthened its management
team over the course of the year. Marcel Kucher has joined as Chief
Information Officer and a member of the Group’s Executive Management.
In this capacity, he is responsible for optimising and automating internal
business processes. Before joining Peach Property Group, he worked for
leading international consultancy firms including McKinsey & Company.
Albert Halter joined from the SIX Group as the new Head of Marketing and
Communications and a member of Peach Property Group’s extended
Executive Management. The two new managers significantly improve the
Group’s skills base.
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Outlook for 2012
Peach Property Group is expecting property markets in the German-
speaking countries of Europe to continue to develop positively in the cur-
rent year. With its projects for the most discerning client groups, Peach
Property Group is well positioned within the market. The popular initiative
designed to limit the building of second homes, which was adopted in
Switzerland in March, will not have an impact on Peach Property Group’s
business model.
Peach Property Group is again looking to reach various project milestones
during 2012. In terms of the twin “yoo berlin” / Am Zirkus 1 project, con-
struction of the ten-storey free-standing building is continuing apace. In
Hamburg, the apartments in the first construction phase are to be handed
over to their owners from spring 2012. Structural engineering work for the
second phase is due to start in April. The twelve luxury holiday residences
at “Schooren des Alpes” are to be finished in good time for the next winter
season, while the ground-breaking ceremony for the “Beach House” pro-
ject is planned for April 2012. As well as implementing development pro-
jects, Peach Property Group will also be investigating the acquisition of
profitable investment portfolios during 2012.

A word of thanks
Once again in 2011, our employees have really played their part and come
together to drive Peach Property Group forwards. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, I would like to thank you wholeheartedly for your efforts. I
would also like to thank our customers for the faith they have placed in us
and you, our valued shareholders, for your loyalty. We look forward to
counting on this again during the current year.

Dr. Christian Wenger
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Editorial from
the Chairman
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INTERVIEW WITH
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT OF PEACH PROPERTY
GROUP AG TALK ABOUT THE SUCCESSES AND
CHALLENGES OF THE 2011 FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE
PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE.

“Anybody investing in Peach Property Group
is getting a stake in a business which has
become a market leader in German-speaking
countries and which occupies an attractive
niche within the wider property market.”
Thomas Wolfensberger, Chief Executive Officer
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Executive Management

How would you sum up the 2011 financial year?
Thomas Wolfensberger: We feel positive about it. Peach Property Group
made progress at all levels during the 2011 financial year. We reached our
intended milestones for projects currently under construction and made
progress with projects at the development stage. We turned the promised
development of a portfolio of investment properties into a reality. Other
important achievements included the way we optimised our processes
and the investments made in our system landscape. The fact we made a
loss in accounting terms does not look good, but we are very happy with
the way the portfolio and pipeline have developed. The overall picture is
overwhelmingly positive.
Ruedi Adler: Having said that, the fact we recorded a loss is hardly surpris-
ing. It was obvious 2011 was going to be a transitional year for Peach Prop-
erty Group. As the timeline predicted, no major projects were completed.
The only major action was the handover of the final residences for the
Living 106 project to their owners. As such, the income from developing
properties – which accounting regulations only allow to be recorded when
a project has been completed – is down significantly on the previous year.

The two previous years each saw a profit of 18 million francs,
but now we see a loss of 11 million. Will investors just have
to get used to these big fluctuations in Peach Property Group’s
income?
Wolfensberger: To be honest, the developer’s business model does mean
that income flows tend to be rather irregular. We do realise, however, that
many investors don’t like to see this, even though the numbers show an
upward trajectory over the three to four years that projects tend to last.
With this is mind, Peach Property Group has made progress this financial
year in terms of building up a portfolio of profitable investment properties.
The idea is to smooth out the income “spurts” from the project business
with a steady stream of rental income.
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Adler: Having acquired the two portfolios of investment properties in
Munster during the fourth quarter of 2011 and Erkrath-Hochdahl at the
start of 2012, we will achieve rental income of as much as 4.6 million
francs during the current year. This will provide a regular source of liquid-
ity, contribute towards the result and reduce the Group's risk profile.
Peach Property Group will also be steadily expanding its project pipeline
in future. This will make it easier to stagger projects from a scheduling
perspective and thereby further reduce income volatility.

Will its portfolio of investment properties make
Peach Property Group another “run-of-the-mill” property company?
Bruno Birrer: No, our focus remains the development of high-quality resi-
dential properties in unique locations. Our core competences are the se-
lection, development, structural design and marketing of properties. These
competences also lend themselves readily to investment properties – par-
ticularly where portfolios with development potential are concerned. We
can use our competitive advantages in such cases and create added value.

Does this mean the portfolios of investment properties will
require a significant amount of investment?
Wolfensberger: We always ensure the buildings we acquire for our port-
folios of investment properties are structurally sound. If some investment
is required, we expect to see this reflected in an attractive acquisition
price. Above-average returns and procurement costs below the market
value are central to how we create value from our portfolios of investment
properties.
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Bernd Hasse: Before each purchase, we conduct an exacting due dili-
gence process involving external partners such as property valuers, tech-
nical specialists and lawyers. The opportunities and risks associated with
a portfolio are analysed in depth to avoid any surprises.
Mirco Riondato: Using our experience of development scenarios, we
determine where there is an investment requirement and – assuming there
is – carefully plan and arrange the investments to be made. It would not be
surprising for us to sell a portfolio after this kind of refurbishment in order
to realise the added value. We like to take a proactive approach to manag-
ing our investment properties.

Interview with
Executive Management

We are set to achieve rental income of as
much as 4.6 million francs during the current
year. This will provide a regular source of
liquidity and reduce the Group’s risk profile.”
Ruedi Adler, Chief Financial Officer

“
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The investment portfolio is set to expand even further.
How are you able to finance the purchase of further properties?
Adler: To help build up our investment portfolio, we have issued a bond
denominated in euros on the German capital market via our German sub-
sidiary Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH. We are also financing
properties via mortgages and our own funds generated from our develop-
ment projects.

Our core competences are the selection,
development, structural design and marketing
of properties. These competences also lend
themselves readily to investment properties.”
Bruno Birrer, Chief Operating Officer

“
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Talking of development projects: what were the highlights?
Hasse: A lot has happened in Germany in particular. We successfully
completed our first development project, Living 106 in Berlin-Mitte. As of
25 August, all 73 apartments in the top-end segment had been sold. On
27 September, just a few months after laying the foundation stone, we
were able to celebrate the topping-out ceremony for the first stage of con-
struction for Alsterkamp 43 in Hamburg; at the start of 2012, construction
started on the second phase for another 44 exclusive residential units.
The foundation stone was also laid for the twin “yoo berlin” and “Am Zirkus
1” project in Berlin on 24 November. Not to forget that we have already
concluded a 20-year lease agreement for the “Am Zirkus 1” hotel project.
Wolfensberger: Peach Property Group has been able to reinforce its
position in Germany. According to an independent survey by the prop-
erty market research company BulwienGesa, we are the second biggest
developer of luxury properties in Germany and a leader in this sector in
terms of expertise.

And what were the highlights in Austria and Switzerland?
Riondato: 11 November 2011 saw the topping-out ceremony for the
“Schooren des Alpes” lifestyle property project in Kappl near Ischgl. The
twelve luxury residential units are to be finished in good time for winter
2012. Deeds had already been drawn up for over 50% of all the residences
by February 2012.
Birrer: We have also made progress in Switzerland with the Peninsula pro-
ject at Wädenswil by Lake Zurich. The collaboration with renowned land-
scape designer Enzo Enea was announced at the end of May 2011, we
constructed the rear-side noise barrier, formulated a detailed sustain-
ability strategy, and reached a consensus with the canton about the con-
servation agreement for the three important historic buildings on the site
and the lakeside path. The construction permit was finally received for
the Mews & Gardens project at the start of December, although an appeal
means it is not yet legally binding.

Interview with
Executive Management
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Another appeal is pending against the Aquatica/Kölla/Mansion
project in Wädenswil. What’s the current state of play?
Birrer: The Baurekursgericht, the court of appeal for the Canton of Zurich,
reached its judgement on the appeals by the Heritage Society in late
March 2012. The diversion of the Reidbach watercourse and the removal
of former lodging houses from the inventory have been upheld. This rep-
resents a big stride forward in terms of implementing the Mews & Gardens
project. A request has been made to incorporate two additional existing
buildings in the Aquatica project. We have already devised a preliminary
project, as part of the planning process, which takes these requirements
into account, although this will inevitably involve some reduction in the
surface area for sale. As such, we are reserving the right to lodge an appeal
against this with the Verwaltungsgericht, the administrative court.

Peach Property Group has also introduced new IT systems in 2011.
What is behind this?
Marcel Kucher: We are actually working towards the “digitisation” of the
core processes of Peach Property Group. This will help speed things up and
ensure all relevant information can be accessed at any time. In 2011, we de-
fined our overarching strategy and assessed new IT systems for the pur-
poses of customer relationship management, portfolio management, and
project and construction management – some of which has already been
introduced. Our aim is to represent the various processes along the value
creation chain of property development and management within a single
cross-disciplinary information system and thereby further improve effi-
ciency and quality. This kind of integrated platform will enable Peach
Property Group to process its projects with greater speed and transpar-
ency. In doing so, it will help the business to grow and enable us to im-
prove our risk management.
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Customer relationship management has become something of a
buzzword. What does it mean here?
Kucher: Our solution is based online, enables an integrated approach to
customer care, and involves sales partners and estate agents alike. Cus-
tomers can look up available properties online, for example, and send spe-
cific questions to us at any time. Once a purchase has been made, they
can track the construction stage of their property and inspect plans, pro-
gress, renderings, or materials. They can start enjoying the “Peach experi-
ence” before they even get the keys.

Interview with
Executive Management

“Our aim is to represent the various processes
along the property development value cre-
ation chain within a single information system
and thereby further improve efficiency and
quality.”
Marcel Kucher, Chief Information Officer
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How big are the risks associated with projects under construction
and what is being done to hedge them?
Hasse: The main types of risks involved in building projects are financial,
construction-related and marketing risks. We consider the financial risks to
be low, since projects under construction are financed in full. The fact that
customers make ongoing prepayments also reduces the interest burden.
Construction-related risks are passed on to the general contractors to a
large extent, since we agree flat-rate fees with them. There are certain risks
associated with underground construction work, however, since you cannot
predict what ground conditions will be like with absolute certainty. A case in
point is “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1, where the challenging ground conditions
on the banks of the River Spree called for a highly complex and specialised
approach to the underground construction phase.

Before each portfolio purchase, we conduct
an exacting due diligence process. The
opportunities and risks are analysed in depth
to avoid any surprises.”
Bernd Hasse, Managing Director Germany

“
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And how do you deal with the marketing risks?
Wolfensberger: We keep marketing risks low by considering a clear posi-
tioning strategy for each project right from the outset. We also have ex-
perienced marketing specialists and collaborate with the most prominent
estate agents in the local markets. The sales figures for properties under
construction confirm that buyers are receptive to our concepts.

At the end of the year, Peach Property Group had 14 million CHF
worth of liquidity, of which 8 million CHF related to customer prepay-
ments. Five development projects are currently under construc-
tion with many others in the pipeline. Are you in a position to finance
all these projects?
Adler: Yes, all projects under construction are already financed in full
under the existing loan agreements. The Beach House project is financed
too, with the building loan being released once the required off-plan sales
have been secured. The remaining projects are still in the planning or ap-
proval phase, but we have also received financing offers for these too.

2012 will see Peach Property Group complete two projects,
allowing it to recoup funds accordingly. Where are these funds to
be invested? Do you have any new projects in the pipeline?
Wolfensberger: Any funds that become available will be invested in good
purchase opportunities in line with our acquisition strategy. These might
be development projects or investment properties. We are currently as-
sessing new development projects and land in Switzerland. The purchase
of one property is expected to be completed in the first half of 2012, while
another may go through by the end of the year. In Germany, we are also
investigating some new development projects and the acquisition of
additional profitable investment portfolios.

Interview with
Executive Management
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Exclusive properties at excellent locations can be hard to source. How
are you making sure you can unearth these “gems” in future as well?
Riondato: To be honest, exclusive locations are in short supply and can be
really tough to find. Sourcing new projects is an ongoing process for us as
a company. We rely on the help of a wide network of partners and inter-
mediaries for this. Projects and land are also referred on to us quite regu-
larly thanks to the good reputation that Peach Property Group has earned
within this sector.

How do see the market for luxury residential projects developing?
Are there any signs that demand is tailing off?
Riondato: Despite the overall economic slowdown, we have not seen any
general decline in demand so far. Quite the opposite, in fact. In the current
climate, a lot of investors are looking for first-class investment opportun-
ities within the property sector. Our high-quality properties at prime loca-
tions represent an alternative to equities and bonds. It also goes without
saying that our properties are a delight to live in and enjoy on a daily basis.
Wolfensberger: We are seeing a decline in demand for very big residences
with sales volumes above 5 million francs. We have adjusted our market
segmentation accordingly. The important thing at the moment – apart
from location, which obviously has to be outstanding – is to have a diverse
offering that includes both smaller residential units and some with quite a
lot of rooms or bedrooms. Over 90% of the properties we have for sale are
in the 0.5 million to 4 million franc price range, with over 75% of properties
available for under 2.5 million francs. Our sales performance confirms that
our residential properties are finding favour with our customers.
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What makes the Peach Property Group share appealing to investors?
Wolfensberger: Anybody investing in Peach Property Group is getting a
stake in a business which has become a market leader in German-speak-
ing countries and which occupies an attractive niche within the wider
property market. The share price is currently some way below the intrinsic
value of the company based on the ratio of NAV to market value. The next
two years will see Peach Property Group complete a number of important
projects, which will release considerable liquidity in the process. We will be
investing these funds in new projects, which will drive future growth.

In the current climate, a lot of investors
are looking for first-class investment
opportunities within the property sector.”
Mirco Riondato, Chief Investment Officer

“

Interview with
Executive Management
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THE BUSINESS MODEL

PEACH PROPERTY GROUP’S BUSINESS MODEL
IS BASED ON COMBINING ITS CORE COMPETENCES
ALONG THE VALUE CREATION CHAIN FOR
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND RETENTION. THE
STRATEGY COMBINES HIGH MARGINS FROM
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT WITH STEADY INCOME
FROM THE INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO.
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The Business Model

Business model creates added value
Peach Property Group has developed its core competences along the
value creation chain of property development and management. The
business model is based on an integrated approach to combining these
core competences and also creates added value.

Customer requirements
Peach Property Group focuses on development projects in the high-qual-
ity residential property sector and on rental properties held for investment
purposes. The company knows its customers well and gears its projects
to their requirements.

Sourcing
In order to identify new projects, Peach Property Group systematically
monitors real estate markets. It has a network of architects, consultants,
and estate agents and is in ongoing contact with land owners. From the
range of possible properties, the company quickly and efficiently filters out
those with suitable development potential. Strict selection criteria mean
that only five per cent of all projects identified are actually concluded.

Development
Peach Property Group conceives and positions its projects based on cus-
tomer requirements. Its aim in every project is to create added value for
the customer. The usually highly complex consent procedure is one of the
core elements of this task.
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Financing
Development projects and investments in portfolio properties are struc-
tured right from the initial stage and financing is secured with appropriate
instruments, including the successful deployment of junior or mezzanine
financing. The company maintains close contact with investors and finan-
cial institutions and highlights the importance of stringent reporting
standards.

Construction management
In its construction management activities, Peach Property Group relies on
clearly defined, transparent processes. Only well-established companies
are brought in for construction purposes. Systematic controls ensure that
quality, costs, and deadlines are respected.

Marketing and sale/leasing
Work begins to market a project right from the early stage of its develop-
ment. In addition to its own team of sales specialists, Peach Property
Group works with the most prominent estate agents. Construction work
on a project usually starts once off-plan sales have reached 40% to 50%
of the total. For its investment properties, Peach Property Group targets
healthy returns and structural optimisation.
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The Business Model

Strategy combining high margins on developments
and steady rental income
For Peach Property Group, the emphasis is mainly on developing high-
quality residential property projects. Projects range from luxury residential
buildings boasting first-class design, unique locations, and amenities like
spacious spa areas, through to furnished serviced apartments. In geo-
graphical terms, the focus is on Germany, Austria, and Switzerland.

Projects involving luxury and high-quality residential properties have
an excellent chance of increasing in value and thereby generating a large
margin on developments. Income tends to be concentrated within short
periods, however, since sales revenue can only be posted in the income
statement when property is handed over, usually three to four years after
construction work is complete on a project.

To help smooth out these irregular income flows from project busi-
ness, Peach Property Group has a portfolio of investment properties pro-
viding good returns and is expanding this gradually. Regular rental income
can help the Group reduce its overall risk profile. The long-term approach
to financing and Peach Property Group’s high equity ratio provide addi-
tional solidity.

Peach Property Group will only consider investing in a development
project or buying a portfolio of investment properties if it can use its core
competences in terms of acquisition, development, structuring and market-
ing in order to exploit its competitive advantages and create added value.
Thanks to these core competences and a policy of focusing on attractive
niches within the property market, it has been possible to occupy a unique
market position.
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REPORT ON
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

2011 WAS A YEAR OF INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE
FOR PEACH PROPERTY GROUP. SINCE, AS
EXPECTED, NO MAJOR PROPERTY PROJECTS WERE
COMPLETED, THE KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES ARE
SOME WAY BELOW THOSE FOR THE PREVIOUS YEAR.
GOOD PROGRESS WAS MADE WITH DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS AND OPTIMISATION OF INTERNAL
PROCESSES. THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL FOUNDATIONS
REMAIN SOLID.

Economic growth slowed significantly towards the end of 2011 at both a
global and European level. However, the property markets within the
German-speaking countries of Europe were largely unaffected by the
economic slowdown. Given the lack of attractive and secure investment
opportunities, institutional and private investors are switching to property
as an investment vehicle. The need for more living space, plus immigra-
tion, particularly in Switzerland, are other factors driving the demand for
property.

In Germany, prices for owner-occupied properties have increased
by 6.4% since 2009. Prices have increased even faster for high-quality
owner-occupied properties in the major German cities: 9.5% in Berlin,
11.2% in Hamburg, and as much as 12.6% in Munich. Rental properties
have also become more expensive. Prices rose by 3.0% in the former West
Germany and by 2.2% in the former East. Switzerland is also seeing price
rises: prices for owner-occupied properties increased by 4.8% on average
between mid-2010 and mid-2011.
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Uncompleted projects slow earnings growth
Peach Property Group posted total income of 19.7 million CHF for the 2011
financial year, compared with 84.4 million CHF in the previous year. The
reduction can be explained by the fact that no major property projects
were completed during the 2011 financial year, as the timeline predicted.
As a result, the income figure of 12.1 million CHF from property develop-
ment is markedly lower than the previous year’s. Further significant oper-
ating income during the previous year was also generated from the acqui-
sition of the “Am Zirkus 1” project and the sale of shares in Beach House
AG. By contrast, other operating income in 2011 amounts to a mere 3.6
million CHF, much of which is associated with renting out development
properties and capitalised services provided internally. Income of 3.3 mil-
lion CHF from the re-evaluation of investment properties resulted from the
purchase of the portfolio of investment properties in the German city of
Munster during the fourth quarter. Peach Property Group generated in-
come of 0.7 million CHF during the financial year from renting out invest-
ment properties.

Selected key figures from the income statement

2011 2010

Earnings in thousands of CHF 19,679 84,425

– Income from property development in thousands of CHF 12,101 44,926

– Income from rental of investment properties in thousands of CHF 690 0

– Re-evaluation of investment properties in thousands of CHF 3,328 2,335

– Other operating income in thousands of CHF 3,560 37,164

Operating expenses in thousands of CHF –31,639 –63,083

– Expenses from property development in thousands of CHF –12,040 –44,716

– Expenses from rental of investment properties in thousands of CHF –206 0

– Marketing and sales expenses in thousands of CHF –2,568 –2,157

Operating profit (EBIT) in thousands of CHF –11,960 21,342

Financial result in thousands of CHF –2,443 –3,249

Income taxes in thousands of CHF 3,521 –71

Profit/(loss) for the period in thousands of CHF –11,137 17,971

Diluted earnings per share in CHF –2.31 6.03
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Operating expenses fell to 31.6 million CHF in 2011, down by half
compared with the previous year. This is because much less was spent on
property development at just 12.0 million CHF compared with 44.7 million
CHF in 2010. This item includes any investment costs associated with in-
come from the development of properties. Under IAS 18, sales revenues
may only be posted when the ownership of residential units is actually
transferred. By contrast, marketing and sales costs associated with pro-
jects, particularly commission, are charged directly to the income state-
ment at the time they are incurred. These amount to 2.6 million CHF. Other
operating expenses also include the additional costs for the “yoo berlin”/
Am Zirkus 1 project as a result of the challenging ground conditions and
the associated construction delays given the highly complex and special-
ised approach required for the underground construction phase.

The significantly lower income resulted in an operating loss (EBIT) of
12.0 million CHF for the 2011 financial year. The financial result stands at
–2.4 million CHF. The improvement on the previous year is the result of
lower refinancing costs and less pronounced currency effects. The capi-
talised accumulated losses brought forward ensured a positive income
tax contribution of 3.5 million CHF. In terms of profit/loss for the period,
Peach Property Group is returning a loss of 11.1 million CHF for the 2011
financial year, which equates to a result of –2.31 CHF per share.
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Portfolio value approaching the 300 million franc mark
According to the valuation by the independent property valuer Wüest &
Partner, the market value of the entire property portfolio of Peach Property
Group is 292.4 million CHF as of 31 December 2011. Of this, 270.8 million
CHF, or 93%, relates to development properties (including joint ventures)
and 21.6 million CHF, or 7%, to investment properties.

The property projects and investment properties in Germany have a
market value of 170.2 million CHF, which equates to a 58% share. Projects
in Switzerland are valued at 115.3 million CHF, which equates to a share of
40%, with the project in Austria being worth 6.9 million CHF or 2%. The
three biggest projects are “Aquatica, Kölla und Mansion” in Wädenswil,
which was valued at 57.0 million CHF at the end of the year, “Harveste-
huder Weg 36” in Hamburg at 68.1 million CHF, and “yoo berlin”’ in Berlin at
49.4 million CHF.

Investment properties

Market value per property

in millions of CHF at 31.12.2011 (rounded)
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Based on this independent market valuation of the property port-
folio, the net asset value (NAV) of Peach Property Group AG is 130.0 million
CHF at the end of 2011. Under IFRS, which stipulate that development prop-
erties must be valued at the cost of acquisition or production, the NAV is
95.2 million CHF. The difference compared with the NAV values for the pre-
vious year can be explained by the loss to be recorded for the 2011 finan-
cial year, including the additional costs from the “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
project, as well as the dividend payment. The increase in value achieved
for the portfolio was not enough to offset these factors which reduced the
NAV.

1 NAV market value calculated on the basis of the independent Wüest & Partner evaluation, account having
been taken of deferred taxes.

Selected key figures from the balance sheet

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Total assets in thousands of CHF 229,072 212,410

Cash and cash equivalents in thousands of CHF 14,398 31,122

Receivables in thousands of CHF 22,565 11,509

Development properties in thousands of CHF 153,423 147,563

Investment properties in thousands of CHF 21,605 7,454

Investments in associates and joint ventures in thousands of CHF 9,153 9,695

Total liabilities in thousands of CHF 133,838 99,933

Mortgages in thousands of CHF 86,319 64,072

Total shareholders' equity in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

– Equity ratio (reported) as a % 42 53

– Equity ratio (at NAV market value1) as a % 48 57

Net asset value (NAV) IFRS in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

Net asset value (NAV) market value 1 in thousands of CHF 130,016 146,529
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Property portfolio backed by substantial own funds
As of 31 December 2011, Peach Property Group had liquid funds worth
14.4 million CHF available to it, including 8.0 million CHF in customer pre-
payments, as well as trade receivables and other receivables worth a total
of 22.6 million CHF. Based on the cost of acquisition or production, devel-
opment properties are reported with a value of 153.4 million CHF. The in-
crease in value on the previous year is due to the construction work done on
existing projects during the reporting period, but does not include the Liv-
ing 106 project, where the last residences have been handed over to the
buyers, thereby removing the project from Peach Property Group’s bal-
ance sheet. The acquisition of the portfolio of investment properties in the
German city of Munster increased the value of investment properties to
21.6 million CHF.

At the same time, mortgages increased on the previous year to 86.3
million CHF. Due to the loss from the 2011 financial year and the dividend
payment, Peach Property Group's equity fell to 95.2 million CHF at the end
of the year. This equates to a solid equity ratio of 42%; based on NAV to
market value, the equity ratio is 48%.

Bond issue on the German capital market
In order to expand the investment portfolio with the emphasis on Germa-
ny, Peach Property Group has issued a bond on the German capital market
via its German subsidiary Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH. The
bond is listed in the Entry Standard of the German Stock Exchange in
Frankfurt. The bond, which runs to 30 June 2016, has a coupon rate of
6.6% and has been given an investment-grade rating of BBB– by the re-
spected Creditreform Rating AG. The issue volume is worth up to 50 mil-
lion EUR. The subscription period runs until 30 June 2012.

Report on the
Financial Year



32

Good progress made with development projects
In the 2011 financial year, Peach Property Group remained on track with all
projects currently under construction. The following milestones are par-
ticularly worthy of mention:
— Construction completed for Living 106 in Berlin
— Structural engineering work under way for “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
— Topping-out ceremony for the first phase of construction at

Harvestehuder Weg 36 in Hamburg (Alsterkamp 43)
— Demolition work for the second phase of construction at Harveste-

huder Weg 36 in Hamburg
— Topping-out ceremony for Schooren des Alpes in Kappl near Ischgl

Significant progress has also been made on projects at the develop-
ment stage. An exclusive collaboration has been agreed with renowned
landscape designer Enzo Enea for designing the entire park and garden
area on the Peninsula site in Wädenswil. The Court of appeal (Baurekursge-
richt) for the Canton of Zurich reached its judgement on the appeals by the
Heritage Society against a small number of projects on the Peninsula site
in March 2012. The planned diversion by Peach Property Group of the
Reidbach watercourse and the removal of former lodging houses from the
inventory were upheld. This represents a significant step forward in terms
of implementing the Mews & Gardens project. Two additional existing
buildings need to be included in the Aquatica project, which would reduce
the overall construction volume. Peach Property Group still believes, how-
ever, that the Aquatica project can be put together at a profit. Neverthe-
less, it is reserving the right to lodge a complaint with the Administrative
court (Verwaltungsgericht).

The overview on the opposite page contains more detailed infor-
mation on the milestones reached during the financial year. Descriptions of
the individual development projects and investment properties can be
found in the “Portfolio” section from page 56 onwards.
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Development projects

Milestones

Germany

Harvestehuder Weg 36 Vacation of existing properties successfully completed

Required sales quota of 35% achieved for financing purposes

Financing agreement with Landesbank Berlin (revaluation)

Demolition of existing properties between September and November 2011

Conclusion of a general contractor agreement with Peter Holthausen as of February 2012

Off-plan sales of over 40% achieved for the start of construction work in January 2012

Earth-moving work completed by end of March 2012

Structural engineering work to start in April 2012, with the foundation stone to be laid during May 2012

Alsterkamp 43 Sales quota of over 50% achieved

Finance agreement with Hypovereinsbank/Unicredit

Conclusion of a general contractor agreement with Höhns Bau in March 2011

Foundation stone laid in May 2011

Topping-out ceremony in September 2011 (completion of structural engineering work)

Acceptance of six residential units in late February 2012

Completion of residential units and communal property including outdoor facilities during April 2012

“yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1 Challenging underground work completed

Financing agreement with KBC and Nord LB

Sales quota of 42% achieved for the structural engineering phase

Conclusion of a general contractor agreement with BSS

Conclusion of a lease agreement for hotel with Fattal Group (20 years)

Structural engineering work started in early August 2011

Foundation stone laid in November 2011

Living 106 All 73 residences handed over to owners

Project concluded in August 2011

Austria

Schooren des Alpes Financing agreement with BTV Vier Länder Bank

Topping-out ceremony in November 2011 (completion of structural engineering work)

Start of interior design work in January 2012

Sales quota of over 50% in February 2012

Switzerland

Beach House Showroom with terrace set up right by Lake Zurich

Contract with enea landscape architecture for designing the park and garden area on the Peninsula site

Sustainability concept refined (including energy concept, disposal and recycling)

Rear-side noise barrier finished

Negotiations with an underground construction specialist and general contractor

Project work and conclusion of cost sharing agreement for the lakeside path with the Canton of Zurich – due to
open in autumn 2012

Aquatica/Kölla/Mansion Conservation agreement concluded with the canton regarding three important historic buildings (Maillart, Kölla,
Mansion 1)

Inspection with the Court of appeal (Baurekursgericht) in December 2011

Agreement with PSP on the Reidbach appeal in February 2012

Court of appeal decision reached at the end of March 2012

Mews & Gardens Construction permit granted (not yet in effect because of Heritage Society appeal)

Candy Factory Positive and legally binding preliminary planning application in April 2011

Financing agreement for purchasing the property in January 2012
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Investment portfolio developed in line with strategy
During the 2011 financial year, Peach Property Group also acquired a port-
folio of investment properties in the German city of Munster, which is situ-
ated within easy reach of the two major hubs of Hamburg and Hanover. This
is in addition to the existing Bakery commercial property in Wädenswil.
The purchase price for the 376 residential units was around 10.8 million
CHF (9 million EUR). This compares with an annual rental income of over 1.4
million CHF. At the end of January 2012, Peach Property Group acquired
another portfolio of 143 residences and commercial space (9,300 m2) in
Erkrath-Hochdahl near Düsseldorf. The annual rental income is some 2.6
million CHF.

This means Peach Property Group has a portfolio of investment
properties comprising 519 residences and commercial space covering
nearly 15,000 m2 as at the end of January 2012, as well as actual annual
rental income of around 4.6 million CHF. This has enabled the Group to go
some way towards smoothing out its income flows in accordance with its
strategy.

Business processes integrated and automated
During the 2011 financial year, Peach Property Group focused on integrat-
ing and automating its internal business processes. Priority was given to
launching projects involving marketing and sales, portfolio management
and project and construction management. With a view to improving com-
munication with interested parties and customers, Peach Property Group
introduced a company-wide CRM system based on salesforce.com at the
end of 2011. It enables an integrated approach to customer service and
involves sales partners and estate agents alike. Detailed data on residen-
tial properties is made available online. Further expansion will allow cus-
tomers to track the ongoing status of their property.

Peach Property Group evaluated a portfolio management system
during the financial year. This is due to be introduced during the first half
of 2012. The system favours an integrated approach to portfolio planning
and simulation on a cross-border basis which incorporates both develop-
ment and investment projects. This gives Peach Property Group greater
transparency in terms of portfolio management thanks to tools such as
sensitivity analyses involving different parameters (economic activity, in-
terest rates, Monte Carlo simulations, etc.), as well as improving the basis
for making decisions on new acquisitions (due diligence, risk analyses).
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Peach Property Group also decided in 2011 to introduce a company-
wide system for the integrated management of construction costs. This
will make the Group one of only a few companies in the sector boasting a
centralised, cross-border controlling tool built according to uniform spe-
cifications and enabling it to identify potential risks during the construction
process in good time.

Report on the
Financial Year
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Communication via a number of channels
Peach Property Group is keen to maintain a regular dialogue with its stake-
holders. Branding – how a brand is controlled and positioned – is also
becoming increasingly important within the premium segment of the
property market. Given this, Peach Property Group has stepped up its
communication activities during the financial year, using new platforms
and channels in the process.

A key role is played by events held specifically for the demanding tar-
get clientele. These took place at a number of project locations during the
course of the year. Examples include the laying of the foundation stone for
“yoo berlin”, the topping-out ceremony in Hamburg, and an event with land-
scape designer Enzo Enea for the Peninsula site in Wädenswil. In October
2011, Peach Property Group took part in Expo Real in Munich for the first
time with a view to presenting its projects. One of the major property fairs
held within German-speaking countries, Expo Real provides a good plat-
form for making contacts with investors, analysts and specialists from the
sector.

Peach Property Group has introduced a new channel for communi-
cating with customers with the launch of the “Peach Paper” magazine.
“Peach Paper” is a journalistic magazine for a discerning readership. It con-
tains lifestyle stories and introduces interesting people and places. “Peach
Paper” is published twice a year (in spring and autumn) and is sent out to
around 12,000 people. In addition, the Group regularly uses advertising
campaigns in leading international financial publications, local daily news-
papers, and lifestyle magazines to showcase its development properties.

Commitment to the visual arts
The Peach Artists in Residence (P.A.I.R.) programme gives Swiss and inter-
national artists access to studios in properties earmarked for future Peach
Property Group development projects. In exchange for this, the artists give
Peach Property Group one of the works of art created during the course of
the P.A.I.R. programme. The Group is building up its own art collection as a
result. Artists usually take part in the P.A.I.R. programme for a year. They
often stay longer, however, because of the excellent working conditions.
For further information, please visit http://pair.peachestates.com.
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Outlook for 2012
Peach Property Group believes property markets in the German-speaking
countries of Europe will continue to develop strongly in the current year,
despite the fact the general economic conditions are expected to worsen
again. Prices for owner-occupied and investment properties are expected
to increase further, although the rates of growth will be lower. With its pro-
jects for the most discerning client groups, Peach Property Group is well
positioned within the market.

Peach Property Group plans to concentrate on moving forward with
its existing projects as scheduled. Various milestones are again being tar-
geted at project level. The interior design work for the first construction
phase of the Harvestehuder Weg 36 project (Alsterkamp 43) is to be fin-
ished during the first quarter of 2012. Owners will be able to move into their
residences from spring 2012. Structural engineering work for the second
phase will then start in April. At “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1, construction of
the ten-storey free-standing building is continuing apace. The Schooren
des Alpes project is at the interior design stage; the residences are due to
be handed over during the fourth quarter of 2012. The ground-breaking
ceremony for the Peninsula Beach House project is planned for April 2012.

Peach Property Group is expecting a good sales performance at all
locations during the current year. The Group will also be investigating the
acquisition of suitable profitable portfolios of investment properties dur-
ing 2012. Measures for improving process efficiency are also continuing.
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INFORMATION FOR
INVESTORS

THE REGISTERED SHARES OF PEACH PROPERTY
GROUP AG ARE TRADED UNDER THE MAIN STANDARD
OF THE SIX SWISS EXCHANGE. THE CORPORATE BOND
ISSUE VIA PEACH PROPERTY GROUP ÁDEUTSCHLAND�
GMBH HAS BEEN INCLUDED IN THE ENTRY STANDARD
OF THE GERMAN STOCK EXCHANGE. INVESTORS
CAN FIND CURRENT SHARE AND BOND INFORMATION
AT WWW.PEACHESTATES.COM.

1 Recommendation to the General Meeting of 11 May 2012.

Number of shares

As of 31 December 2011 2010

Share capital in CHF 4,852,400 4,844,150

Number of registered shares issued 4,852,400 4,844,150

Nominal value per registered share in CHF 1.00 1.00

Number of treasury shares 41,963 15,615

Number of registered shares outstanding 4,810,437 4,828,535

Key figures per share

As of 31 December 2011 2010

Diluted earnings per share in CHF –2.31 6.03

NAV IFRS per share in CHF 19.63 23.22

NAV market value per share in CHF 26.79 30.25

Dividend per share in CHF 0.30,1 1.00

Dividend yield in % 2.7 3.2

Dividend pay-out ratio in % – 26.9
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Share price
Registered share of Peach Property Group AG relative to the Swiss Perfor-
mance Index (SPI) from 3 January 2011 to 13 March 2012.
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Stock exchange figures

2011 2010

Highest in CHF 31.20 33.30

Lowest in CHF 11.00 29.25

Year-end in CHF 11.05 31.00

Market capitalisation at year-end in CHF 53,619,020 150,168,650

Ticker symbols
Securities number: 11 853 036 / ISIN code:
CH0118530366
Ticker symbol: PEAN/Bloomberg:
PEAN: SW / Reuters: PEAN
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Shareholders
Significant shareholders

As of 31 December 2011, the following shareholders held more than 3% of
the shares in Peach Property Group AG:

The free float (as defined by the SIX Swiss Exchange) on 31 December
2011 was 59.05%.

Overview of shareholders

Dividend policy
The dividend policy of Peach Property Group AG aims to pay sharehold-
ers a regular, stable dividend that is significantly above long-term money
market rates. Due to the capital contribution principle which entered into
force on 1 January 2011, dividends will be tax-free for natural persons in
Switzerland. The Federal Tax Administration confirmed that Peach Prop-
erty Group AG is permitted to pay out tax-free dividends totalling 71 million
CHF over the years to come. The balance stands at 66 million CHF follow-
ing the payment in May 2011.

Shareholders Number of shares % of all shares

Oliver Wolfensberger 862,480 17.77

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger 859,250 17.71

Nicole Kunz 244,668 5.04

Dan Holzmann 208,761 4.30

Balfidor Fondsleitung AG 206,920 4.26

Schroder ISF Small & Mid Cap 188,340 3.88

Helvetic Private Investments AG 157,020 3.24

In accordance with the share register as of 31 December 2011 Number

Registered shareholders 156

Registered shares 3,280,419

Shareholders with 1–1,000 shares 99

Shareholders with 1,001–10,000 shares 36

Shareholders with more than 10,001 shares 21
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Bond information
The German Group company Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH
is issuing a corporate bond with a volume of up to 50 million EUR. The an-
nual coupon rate is 6.6% and the term is five years. Creditreform Rating
AG has given the bond a BBB– rating. The bond is being placed on the
German capital market. The placement period will run until 30 June 2012.
The bond is listed in the Entry Standard segment of the German Stock
Exchange in Frankfurt. The guarantor is Peach German Properties AG,
Stansstad, Switzerland. Detailed information on the bond and the security
prospectus is available online at www.peachestates.com/bond.

Facts and figures

Information
Peach Property Group AG provides information to its shareholders, bond-
holders and the capital market in an open, timely and transparent manner.
Financial reporting takes the form of annual and half-year reports in Ger-
man and English. These are prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Peach Property Group also pub-
lishes asset reports on a quarterly basis containing comprehensive quan-
titative and qualitative information on construction progress and the sales
position for the individual projects. Price-relevant facts are published in
accordance with the obligation relating to ad hoc publicity.

Constantly updated information about the company and its projects
and information on shares, bonds, and corporate governance can be
found online at www.peachestates.com, along with any company press
releases. Moreover, the website also provides an opportunity for all inter-
ested parties to subscribe to the e-mail newsletter. Subscribers will then
be notified of results and news from Peach Property Group AG at the same
time as the press.

Issuer Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH, Cologne

Volume Up to 50 million euros

Interest 6.6%

Rating BBB–

Term 5 years (until 30 June 2016)

Issue price 100%

Placement period Up to 30 June 2012 (right to close period earlier is reserved)

Collateralisation Guaranteed by the Swiss parent company
Peach German Properties AG

Listing German Stock Exchange (Entry Standard)

Ticker symbols
ISIN code: DE000A1KQ8K4 /
Security identification number: A1KQ8K
Security code: 1PEA

Information for
Investors

Contacts
Peach Property Group AG
Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger
Chief Executive Officer

Bruno Birrer
Chief Operating Officer
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BERLIN
THE GEMSTONE
IN ITS SETTING
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YOO BERLIN
AM ZIRKUS 1

“YOO BERLIN”vAM ZIRKUS 1 COMBINES A PIONEERING
CONCEPT WITH OUTSTANDING DESIGN IDEAS. THE
QUALITY ARCHITECTURE FROM EIKE BECKER WITH ITS
FEEL FOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT, THE EXCLUSIVE
DESIGN CONCEPTS FROM PHILIPPE STARCK AND YOO
FOUNDER JOHN HITCHCOX, AND THE PROJECT
DEVELOPMENT EXPERTISE OF PEACH PROPERTY GROUP
ARE THE THREE FACTORS BEHIND THE SUCCESS
OF THIS AMBITIOUS PROJECT.
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“The Am Zirkus1 site ...
is among Berlin’s most
high-profile locations,
which makes it all the more
surprising that this area,
so full of history, ... lay idle
for 27 years. But not any
more.”
“Berliner Morgenpost”,
25 November 2011

Project nearing completion
Over half the residences have been sold a year before “yoo berlin“ is actu-
ally due to be finished. The hotel part of the building has already been leased
for 20 years. The structural engineering work is continuing apace after the
complex underground construction phase was completed in very short
order. The free-standing building, which rests on 102 concrete columns
40 m in length and concrete diaphragm walls of a similar depth, is starting to
take shape by the side of the Spree in the middle of Berlin. This sort of thing
requires unsurpassed construction expertise. Well-engineered architec-
tural concepts are the order of the day too.These have been provided by the
multiple-award-winning architects Eike Becker_Architekten, who have
enjoyed success across Europe. The land, which lay idle for more than
25 years, has a long history synonymous with a number of famous names.
The former cultural hub associated with the Berliner Ensemble is also
expected to provide the backdrop and impetus for vibrant city life in the
future. This requires a responsible approach to urban development.

“yoo berlin” will boast 87 high-quality owner-occupied properties –
ranging from small apartments with their own gardens to penthouses with a
view over the whole city. But what does “yoo” mean, you may ask? It means
interior design by world-renowned star designer Philippe Starck. Buyers can
equip their residences based on four exclusive design lines, as well as taking
their own personal tastes into account of course. “yoo berlin” – the name is
a byword for exclusive design and project development. Brand manage-
ment is of key importance for property projects on this scale. Please read
on for further details.
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“We are creating a free-standing building
which is integrated within its environment,
a bit like a gemstone in its setting.”
Eike Becker, architect

LIKE A MOUNTAIN MADE OUT
OF CRYSTAL, BRIGHT AND LIGHT

1

2
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1 The external facade of “yoo berlin”,
which soars ten storeys above
the Spree, conceals two internal,
open-air atria.

2 The gemstone in its setting:
“yoo berlin” / Am Zirkus 1 in the urban
setting of Bertolt-Brecht-Platz.

3 Early design sketch by Eike Becker

The project has been planned since as far
back as the year 2000. Why is it only starting to
take shape now?
Eike Becker: Peach Property Group came on board
at a timely juncture in 2009. A previous German
company had bought the land when the market was
pretty buoyant. Then came a property slump.
The project was only repositioned when things were
looking up again and an expect survey was duly
performed. We won this competition with a design
which is pretty much in line with what we can see
today: a three-part facility with high-quality residential
space on the western side, a hotel on the other
side and an office building on Bertolt-Brecht-Platz.
Peach Property Group then made the key, correct
decisions to ensure the project as a whole could be
developed successfully.

How important is the partnership between the
project developer and the architect?
Critically important. We can develop ideas, but we
need a creative project developer to turn them into
reality. They need to know the market well and
have access to a big network in order to make a suc-
cess of a project. We architects may be responsible
for most of what can be seen in the wake of a building
project, but we need the help of a builder with a
professional approach to change the face of a city.

3

How will the building work in urban development
terms? What does it add to its immediate environ-
ment?
We had come across a location where the neighbour-
hood had already been largely restored as part
of the wider urban redevelopment of Berlin. The sta-
tion on Friedrichstrasse and the whole immediate
area had totally changed since the reunification of
Germany. What was a rather forlorn part of the city,
with so many oppressive memories, has now become
a lively area again. “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1 is part
and parcel of this, a kind of link holding the whole thing
together. We are creating a free-standing building
which is integrated within its environment, a bit like a
gemstone in its setting. The setting is already there,
and we’re about to fill it.

The relationship between architect and builder is
not always an easy one. How are you finding it with
Peach Property Group?
We have found Peach to have a professional approach
to building, with a good feel for quality and how to
allocate tasks in this kind of team environment. Peach
Property Group has placed its faith in us and decided
to go with our architectural recommendations.

EIKE BECKER, THE ARCHIä
TECT BEHIND THE
“YOO BERLIN”vAM ZIRKUS1
PROJECT, TAKES
STOCK A YEAR BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION IS
DUE TO BE COMPLETED.

Portfolio
“yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
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1 The “yoo berlin” penthouses
provide an extensive view of
the city.

2 The parterre levels of the
town houses give owners
access to private, enclosed
gardens.

3 The architect behind
“yoo berlin” / Am Zirkus 1:
Eike Becker.

In construction terms, it’s going to be quite some
job. On completion, there will be around
33,000 sq m of gross floor space. What can the
people moving in expect?
We’ve always thought of the new building as a good
neighbour, which although bigger than its sur-
roundings, should fit in well. The ground floor with its
restaurants and bars will act as a gateway
between the Spree and the immediate area. This will
ensure the building is no “sleeping partner”,
happy to bask in the lively atmosphere of its environ-
ment, but will make its own contribution to the
neighbourhood’s vitality. The mixture of residential,
hotel, and office space will play a major part in
this. It is important to make vibrant use of the ground
floor, particularly the area beside the Spree. It is
being completely revamped to hopefully make it a
popular public space, a sort of continuation of the
Schiffbauerdamm by the Spree with its restaurants,
bars and theatre.

How did you find working with the authorities as
the whole thing developed?
Right from the start, the authorities were keen to
bring this part of town back to life again. As such, the
approval authorities proved to be helpful and
canny decision-makers. In particular, the construc-
tion director of the Berlin Senate Regula Lüscher
actively helped us with things like deciding on the
construction volume and facades.

The project bears the hallmark of Philippe Starck
and his yoo team. How do the architecture
and yoo’s interior design complement each other?
Sympathy and emotion have a lot to do with it. There
was a special kind of mutual appreciation from the out-

set. We had already designed the building when
the yoo team joined the project. They provided some
very nice ideas when we were working on the
layout of the individual residences. This produced an
interesting mix combining a flowing, modern
space with the kind of extra insight into the use of
space associated with yoo concepts. The result
is a subtle interplay of private and communal areas.
The “yoo berlin” / Am Zirkus 1 project represents
both an architectural first and a new take on city living
at a quite unique location.

1

2

3
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“I am, thank God,
a Berliner.”
Marlene Dietrich (1901–1992),
actress and singer

The original market hall in Berlin

1865 saw Berlin’s first major market hall
open on the current site of Am Zirkus 1.
The mighty iron and glass construction,
some 84 m long and 64 m wide, was
held up by hundreds of oak pillars. The
plans were put together by Friedrich
Hitzig, a pupil of the renowned Prussian
architect Karl Friedrich Schinkel.

Circus

Director Albert Salomonsky converted
the market hall into a permanent circus
building in 1873. Circus director and artist
Ernst Jakob Renz acquired the building
five years later and expanded the auditor-
ium to hold 5,600 spectators. Renz put
together a programme of horse dressage
routines and pantomimes. The last per-
formance at the site was held on 31 March
1918.

Grosses Schauspielhaus

Legendary theatre director and impres-
ario Max Reinhardt had the building
redesigned in 1919 by Berlin-based archi-
tect Hans Poelzig, who turned it into the
“Grosses Schauspielhaus”. Cast iron struts
were replaced by stucco ceilings with
drop-like studs hanging down – “a bit like
being in a grotto“ according to some
Berliners. International stars like Marlene
Dietrich and the Comedian Harmonists
trod the boards here.

Friedrichstadtpalast

From 1947, it was used for variety and
television shows and big public events.
The building was closed because of
constructional defects in 1980, before
finally being pulled down in 1985.
Since then, Am Zirkus 1 has been little
more than a gap in the cityscape.

Portfolio
“yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
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ON SOLID GROUND

“We opted for the bolder
architectural concept.”
Regula Lüscher, construction director
of the Berlin Senate

Construction milestones
April 2009 Preliminary excavation
September 2010 Ground-breaking
ceremony
July 2011 Completion of specialist
underground work
August 2011 Start of preparatory work
Structural engineering work
November 2011 Laying of the foundation
stone
March 2012 Completion of building
shell work
Basement floor
Start of work on ground floor shell
Autumn 2012 Completion of building
shell work, start of interior design work

Construction of “yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1 is starting to emerge from the
depths. A visible sign of this was the formal laying of the foundation stone
on 24 November 2011. One of the most complex plots of land in central
Berlin has become a hive of activity.

A highly complex and specialised approach to the underground
construction phase was required to cope with the challenging ground
conditions. Within a year and a half, 40 m high concrete diaphragm walls
had been set into the ground and 102 bored piles, 40 m in length and up to
1.20 m in diameter, had been erected to shore up the excavation work and
help transfer the load. The idea was to avoid any risk to the historic build-
ings nearby.

Specialist expertise required
Once the shell of the basement floor with its underground parking was in
place in March 2012, work could start on casting the ground floor ceiling.
Ralf Vorrink, Managing Director of Peach Property Group Deutschland, is
very pleased with the progress made in construction terms: “’yoo berlin' is
a shining example of the latest innovations in engineering and under-
ground construction. Peach Property Group is having to use all its exper-
tise and professionalism for this project.” The shell should be in place by
autumn 2012, when work should begin on the exterior.

1
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“26 years after the demolition of the
Friedrichstadtpalast, 22 years after
the wall came down, 10 years after the
land was sold, after 2 competitions
and 27 designs for this plot, one devel-
opment plan, 3 different customers
at times, and a never-ending series of
negotiations, I am delighted to finally
witness today’s foundation stone cere-
mony! The building and the square are
now being built. Both are testament to
a successful multilateral enterprise
from which the city can only benefit.”
Eike Becker, architect

1 Highlight of 2011 – laying the foundation stone
on 24 November with construction director
of the Berlin Senate Regula Lüscher, Ralf Vorrink
of Peach Property Group and architect
Eike Becker, as well as many other guests.

2 A challenge in both construction and technical
terms: tough ground conditions, historic build-
ings nearby and the need to combine three dif-
ferent functions – residential, hotel and office.

2

2
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“YOO BERLIN”:
RIGHT AT THE HEART OF THINGS

Highlights
“yoo berlin” 1
Reichstag 2
Bundeskanzleramt 3
Hauptbahnhof 4
ARD-Hauptstadtstudio 5
Berliner Ensemble 6
Sammlung Boros 7
Friedrichstrasse 8
Grill Royal 9
Museumsinsel 10
Gendarmenmarkt 11

“Mr K. preferred city B to city A. ’In city A’, he said,
’they love me, but in city B they were friendly
to me. In city A they made themselves useful to me,
but in city B they needed me. In city A they invited
me to join them at table, but in city B they invited me
into the kitchen.’”
Bertolt Brecht (1898–1956), German dramatist and lyricist

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8
9

10

11

↓

←
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Sammlung Boros

One of the world's most unusual art
collections can be seen right on the door-
step of “yoo berlin”: Christian and Karen
Boros have been exhibiting their collection
of contemporary art here since 2008
in a 3,000 m2 former airraid shelter built in
1942. The couple themselves live in the
penthouse on the roof. (7)

Berliner Ensemble

1892 saw the opening of the theatre on
the Schiffbauerdamm. Since 1954, it
has been home to the Berliner Ensemble
founded by Helene Weigel and Bertolt
Brecht. Still one of the best known thea-
tres for drama written in German, this
grand building is now listed. “yoo berlin”
is its neighbour to the right. (6)

Museumsinsel

Unesco World Heritage Site within walk-
ing distance: a unique structural and
cultural ensemble, the Museumsinsel,
surrounded by the Spree and home
to the Nationalgalerie, Pergamonmuseum,
Bode-Museum, and Neues Museum,
brings together six centuries of artistic
treasures. (10)

Gendarmenmarkt

The nearby Gendarmenmarkt, dating
back to the 17th century, is one of Europe’s
finest squares. It is dominated by three
monumental buildings: the Deutscher Dom,
the Französischer Dom, and the Kon-
zerthaus, which was formerly known as the
Schauspielhaus. (11)

Friedrichstrasse

The dead-straight shopping mile of Fried-
richstrasse has everything for foodies
and lovers of fashion and culture. From
Checkpoint Charlie, via the Friedrich-
stadt-Passagen with Galeries Lafayette,
to the Admiralspalast and the Friedrich-
stadtpalast, there is a great mix of history,
design, glamour and pleasure with the
city as its backdrop – and all a stone’s
throw away from “yoo berlin”. (8)

Grill Royal

The restaurant, located directly opposite
“yoo berlin” beside the Spree, is an
essential part of Berlin’s nightlife. “James
Bond would fit in well here,” comments
Nikolas Rechenberg from the Gault-Millau
guide. (9)

“Berlin is more a
continent than a city.”
Jean Paul (1763–1825), German author

Portfolio
“yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
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“I like to think a little differently.”
Philippe Starck

1 Philippe Starck does not only use his own designs
for his interiors, but is willing to accommodate
the full range of contemporary design ideas.

2 Rather than representing a rigid design concept,
yoo interior lines are always carefully adapted to
suit individual customer requirements.

3 The discerning and elegant design of the spa
and fitness area make it the perfect place to recon-
cile body and soul.

4 In the kitchen, yoo offers customers a range
of equipment packages that any top chef would be
proud of.

5 Even the bathrooms create their own ambience.
Everything is geared towards well-being and relaxa-
tion.

6 The unique design experience of “yoo berlin” is
apparent as soon as you enter the lobby.

1

2 3 4

5
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YOO: INSPIRING DREAMS,
CREATING VALUES

Philippe Starck

It would be hard to find an area of life
where the designer Philippe Starck has
not achieved a little bit of immortality
through his extraordinary wit and keen
intelligence. The furniture and fittings
he has created for Italian companies have
now become design classics. The French-
man has also designed motorbikes, mega
yachts, bathroom fittings and aerospace
projects. All around the world, this cosmo-
politan character has been bowling
people over with his design ideas for hotels,
restaurants and clubs.
Philippe Starck was “green” long before
it became fashionable. This outlook
on life has seen the designer publish a
catalogue on “ethical consumption”,
create an organic food brand and design
solar-powered and hydrogen-powered
vehicles.
2001 saw Philippe Starck set up “yoo” with
Briton John Hitchcox, and create a new
and visionary brand for high-quality living
in the process. The designer hopes his
interiors for yoo will offer people a taste
of beauty, poetry and joie de vivre.

The “yoo berlin” project is based on a collaboration between Peach Prop-
erty Group, architect Eike Becker and the design team from “yoo – in-
spired by Starck”. Peach Property Group develops a separate branding
concept for each of its projects, since brands are becoming increasingly
important in the premium segment in terms of marketing and the emo-
tional and financial value associated with properties. Anyone buying a
residence in “yoo berlin” is not just getting a run-of-the-mill apartment.
yoo gives people a fascinating branding and design experience based on
interiors from top designers, a highly attractive location and pioneering
architecture. Each buyer is given a canvas where their individual lifestyle
can take shape.

Spectacular design experience
The design is typical of yoo’s brand essence. As such, the company
only uses the best people available. For “yoo berlin”, Philippe Starck,
currently the world’s best known and most successful designer, has
developed four main design lines: Classic, Minimal, Nature, Culture. The
interiors are complemented by a comprehensive service concept. This
includes a spacious spa and fitness area, also designed by Philippe Starck,
a bar and a café. There is also an underground car park and a concierge
service. Residents can enjoy the kind of spectacular living space found
in the hotels and clubs designed by Philippe Starck.

The success already enjoyed by yoo projects around the world
proves that unique design and branding can increase the potential value
of property. As with fashion or other luxury items, property buyers will in
the future be increasingly interested in investing in the right kind of
“high-end” label – such as yoo.

6

Portfolio
“yoo berlin”/Am Zirkus 1
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THE PORTFOLIO

HIGHäQUALITY DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROFITABLE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ARE THE
BEDROCK OF THE PORTFOLIO. PEACH PROPERTY
GROUP HAS REMAINED ON TRACK WITH ITS
DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS DURING 2011. AT THE
SAME TIME, IT HAS MADE GREAT PROGRESS IN
TERMS OF PUTTING TOGETHER A PORTFOLIO OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES.
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The entire property portfolio of Peach Property Group had a market value
of 292.4 million CHF as of 31 December 2011 based on a valuation by the
independent property valuer Wüest & Partner. Of this, 270.8 million CHF,
or 93%, relates to development properties and 21.6 million CHF, or 7%, to
investment properties.

Significant progress within the development portfolio
The Peach Property Group development portfolio currently contains 14
projects in Greater Zurich, Berlin and Hamburg, as well as in the Austrian
holiday resort of Kappl near Ischgl. The target sales volume for all the pro-
jects together amounts to 643 million CHF. Peach Property Group also
provides development services worth around 100 million CHF for third-
party owners, taking the overall marketing volume for exclusive invest-
ment properties to around 750 million CHF.

Market value of development
portfolio by location

as a % (rounded) as of 31.12.20112

CH: 107.6

in millions
of CHF

Hamburg

Kappl/IschglBerlin

3

2
5

3
3

3
9

Wädenswil,
Zurich

D: 156.3

A: 6.9

2 Based on the valuation by
Wüest & Partner as of 31.12.2011

1 Based on the valuation by
Wüest & Partner as of 31.12.2011

in millions
of CHF

Invest-
ment 21.6

Market value
per property category

as a % (rounded); total portfolio1 292.4 million CHF

9
3 7

Develop-
ment 270.8
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The development portfolio of Peach Property Group covers various
timescales, in order to ensure as steady an income flow as possible and an
optimal deployment of its resources. The following overview shows the
schedules for the individual projects from the time the land or property
was purchased through to the granting of the building consent and the
expected completion.

1 Ongoing appeal processes
2 Planned development
3 Acquired by Peach Property Group in 2009
4 Acquired by Peach Property Group in 2010
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Schedule for current development projects
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Financial year 2011 saw the completion of the Living 106 development
project in Berlin and residences handed over to the buyers; the project is
therefore no longer part of the portfolio. The other development projects
have progressed nicely during the reporting period: all construction pro-
jects are on schedule, with the German projects in particular making pro-
gress in terms of sales.

Overview of development projects

Project Target
sales

volume 1

Current
market
value 2

Number of
residences

Sales position
Contracts

drawn up
As of

31.12.2011

Reserved
As of

31.12.2011

Status

Switzerland

Peninsula Beach House3 102.0 35.5 23 25% 19% Off-plan sales

Aquatica/Kölla/Mansion 135.9 57.0 41 n.a. n.a. Building consent (ongoing appeal processes)

Mews & Gardens 37.8 8.0 22 n.a. n.a. Building consent (ongoing appeal processes)

Dockside 61.9 7.2 24 n.a. n.a. Pre-application stage

Austria

Schooren des Alpes 15.8 6.9 12 13% 27% Under construction

Germany

“yoo berlin” 102.9 49.4 95 42% 16% Under construction

Am Zirkus 1 4 81.8 38.7 – 70% 5 Under construction

A36, 1st construction phase (A43) 17.0 12.1 13 63% 9% Under construction

H36, 2nd construction phase 87.6 56.0 44 44% 0% Under construction

Total 642.7 270.8 274

1 Net of price adjustments and currency effects for projects in euros
2 Based on the valuation by Wüest & Partner as of 31.12.2011
3 Peach share 46.6%
4 Peach share 80%
5 Rented space element
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The overall surface area for all current projects is around 61,000 m2.
38,200 m2 relates to projects in Germany, 20,500 m2 to projects in Switzer-
land and 2,300 m2 to the Austrian project. Peach Property Group’s unique
properties are commanding average prices per sq. m (excluding commer-
cial and hotel space) of around 17,100 CHF in Switzerland. The German
averages are between 8,000 CHF (Berlin) and 12,000 CHF (Hamburg), with
the Austrian figure standing at 6,900 CHF.

Average sale price

in thousands of CHF per m2 (rounded, without

hotels and commercial property)

CH: 17.1

18
15

12
9

6
3

0

D: 9.5

A: 6.9

Saleable surface area per property

in 1,000 m2 as at 31.12.2011 (rounded)

Aquatica, Kölla, Mansion 7.7

2.3
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m2
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yoo berlin

Am Zirkus 1 (100%)

H36, 2nd construction
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Peninsula Beach House (100%)
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Successful expansion of investment portfolio
During the summer of 2011, Peach Property Group also acquired its first
portfolio of investment properties in Germany in addition to the existing
“Bakery” commercial property in Wädenswil. The deal was concluded on
14 November 2011. The portfolio comprises 376 residences covering an
overall surface area just short of 26,000 m2 in Munster, between Hamburg
and Hanover. The expected annual rental income is 1.6 million CHF, with
an annual gross rental yield of 12%.

As of the end of January 2012, Peach Property Group had also acquired
another profitable portfolio in Erkrath-Hochdahl near Düsseldorf. This ex-
pands Peach Property Group’s portfolio of investment properties by 143
residences and some 9,300 m2 of commercial space. The annual rental
income is some 2.6 million CHF.

This means Peach Property Group has a portfolio of investment
properties comprising 519 residences and commercial space covering
nearly 15,000 m2 as of January 2012, as well as annual rental income of
around 4.6 million CHF. This has enabled the Group to go some way to-
wards smoothing out its income flows in accordance with its strategy.

Details of investment properties

in thousands of CHF as of

31.12.2011/location

Country Number of
residences

Surface area Year con-
structed

(converted)

Market value 1 Net target
base rental p.a.

Vacancy rate Gross rental
yield 2

Net rental
yield/CF 3

Wädenswil CH 5,601 m2 1833 (1966) 7,648 560 0.0% 6.7% 4.4%

Munster D 376 25,759 m2 1959–1967 13,956 1,565 8.8% 12.0% 9.5%

Total 376 31,360 m2 21,604 2,125 7.2% 10.0% 7.4%

1 Based on the valuation by Wüest & Partner as of 31.12.2011
2 Actual annualised rental income (base net figure/excluding auxiliary costs) in relation to the average value

of the properties
3 Actual annualised rental income (base net figure/excluding auxiliary costs) less admin/maintenance

costs in relation to the average value of the properties
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SCHOOREN DES
ALPES

Luxury residences in a prime Alpine winter sports loca-
tion for unbeatable lifestyle and atmosphere.

Location
Kappl (near Ischgl), Tyrol, Austria.

Building
Schooren des Alpes comprises 2,305 m2 of living space
divided into 12 residential units with a wellness and spa
zone. The facade of Schooren des Alpes exudes quiet
elegance. Internally, this architectural gem features high-
quality materials and modern design.

Surrounding area
Schooren des Alpes combines sustainability and luxury in
a prime location in the immediate vicinity of Ischgl, set
amid the majesty of the Tyrolean mountains.

Construction progress
Structural engineering work was completed on time; the
topping-out ceremony took place in November 2011. In-
terior design work is currently ongoing. The residences
are scheduled to be ready for occupancy as of the fourth
quarter of 2012.

Key data
Units: 12 units
Saleable surface area: 2,305 m2

Sales volume: 15.8 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 6.9 million CHF
Completion expected: Q4 2012

www.elevated-living.at

DEVELOPMENT
PROPERTIES
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HARVESTEHUDER
WEG 36

Exclusive living in a unique location on the Outer Alster
Lake.

Location
Harvestehuder Weg 36 and Alsterkamp 43, Hamburg,
Germany.

Building
The project as a whole comprises residential space total-
ling 8,929 m2. Five four-storey buildings will house 57 resi-
dences ranging in size from 65 to 320 m2. The architec-
tural style is based on simple lines, large-scale windows
and offset terraces to re-interpret the style of the classi-
cal white Alster villas. The amenities include an in-house
fitness and spa zone as well as 121 underground parking
spaces, some of which have direct lift access to the resi-
dences.

Surrounding area
The attractiveness of this complex, comprising both Al-
sterkamp 43 and Harvestehuder Weg 36, is attributable to
its unique location on the Outer Alster Lake, traditionally an
exclusive residential area of Hamburg. The buildings are
surrounded by an expanse of parkland.

Construction progress for 1st phase (Alsterkamp 43)
The topping-out ceremony for the first construction section took
place in September 2011. Interior design work is on track. The first
residences were handed over to their owners when construction
work was complete in March of this year.

Construction progress for 2nd phase (Harvestehuder Weg 36)
Construction work on the second phase started in January of this
year. Anyone interested can get an idea of what the future residenc-
es will be like by visiting the show home. Work is scheduled to finish
during the first quarter of 2013.

Key data, Alsterkamp 43
Units: 13 units
Saleable surface area: 1,684 m2

Sales volume: 17.0 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 12.1 million CHF
Completion expected: Q1 2012

Key data, Harvestehuder Weg 36
Units: 44 units
Saleable surface area: 7,227 m2

Sales volume: 87.6 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 56.0 million CHF
Completion expected: Q1 2013

www.harvestehuderweg36.de
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“YOO BERLIN”

95 residences are being built in collaboration with design-
er Philippe Starck on a historic site by the Spree in Berlin-
Mitte.

Location
Am Zirkus 1, Berlin, Germany.

Building
The “yoo berlin” building is a ten-storey free-standing
building whose clear lines and large windows will give the
structure an airy, transparent appearance. It comprises
residential space of 12,800 m2; the building will also fea-
ture a lobby plus a wellness and spa zone with bar and café.
The 95 residential units have a surface area of between
60 and 283 m2 and come with six different layouts and
four interior design concepts (Classic, Minimal, Nature,
Culture). Star designer Philippe Starck is responsible for
the apartments’ interior design.

Surrounding area
The project is being built on a historic site right by the
Spree, next to the Berliner Ensemble theatre on Bertolt-
Brecht-Platz in the immediate vicinity of Friedrichstrasse
in Berlin-Mitte. “Am Zirkus 1” is rich in tradition and “yoo
berlin” will be taking over the address which once be-
longed to the theatre of Max Reinhardt and later the old
Friedrichstadtpalast.

Construction progress
Peach Property Group started preparatory work for the
structural engineering phase at the start of August 2011.
The foundation stone was laid in November 2011. The
residences will be ready to move into as early as the first
half of 2013.

Key data
Units: 95 units plus 3 commercial units
Saleable surface area: 12,800 m2

Sales volume: 102.9 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 49.4 million CHF
Completion expected: Q2 2013

www.yooberlin.com

AM ZIRKUS 1

Hotel with 311 rooms, as well as office and commercial units in the
building adjacent to “yoo berlin”.

Location
Am Zirkus 1, Berlin, Germany.

Building
The clear lines and large windows give the ten-storey free-standing
building by architect Eike Becker an airy, transparent appearance.
The building, which lies next to the 95 owner-occupied properties of
“yoo berlin”, will contain a hotel with 311 rooms, as well as office and
commercial units.

Surrounding area
The project is being built on a historic site right by the Spree, next to
the Berliner Ensemble theatre on Bertolt-Brecht-Platz in the imme-
diate vicinity of Friedrichstrasse in Berlin-Mitte.

Construction progress
Preparatory work for the structural engineering phase is under way.
The foundation stone was laid in November 2011. A 20-year lease
agreement for the running of the hotel was signed with the Fattal
Group, which already operates 24 Leonardo hotels in Germany. The
hotel is due to open during the first quarter of 2013.

Key data
Units: 311 hotel rooms plus office and commercial space
Saleable surface area: 16,500 m2

Sales volume: 81.8 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 38.7 million CHF
Completion expected: Q1 2013

www.yooberlin.com
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PENINSULA
BEACH HOUSE

Luxury residential properties in a unique location right
next to Lake Zurich.

Location
Peninsula, Wädenswil, Canton of Zurich, Switzerland.

Building
The Peninsula Beach House, with saleable floor area total-
ling 4,745 m2, comprises 23 residential units ranging in
size from 130 to 290 m2. All residences can be connected
vertically or horizontally. Residents have access to a spa-
cious wellness and fitness zone as well as a multi-purpose
gym for yoga, Pilates, aerobics and squash.

Surrounding area
Peninsula Beach House is being built on the former
Giessen industrial site on a 30,000 m2 peninsula on Lake
Zurich. The site will be transformed to create parks and
gardens with walking paths and moorings, forming the
backdrop for a blend of modern architecture and the ex-
isting structures’ original building style.

Construction progress
The opening up of the site and the preparatory pre-con-
struction work, including the installation of a noise barrier
between the site and the SBB railway line, was completed in
the first half of 2011. Construction work is starting in April
2012. The team based around landscape designer Enzo
Enea has begun devising the park and garden concept for
the entire Peninsula site. The building is scheduled to be
ready for occupancy from spring 2014.

Key data
Units: 23 units
Saleable surface area: 4,745 m2

Sales volume: 102 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 35.5 million CHF
Completion expected: Q1 2014

www.beach-house.ch
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AQUATICA, KÖLLA,
MANSION

Three individual buildings, with direct access to the lake, which in-
corporate new elements into a historic original structure.

Location
Wädenswil, Canton of Zurich, Switzerland.

Building
The “Aquatica, Kölla, Mansion” project consists of two new build-
ings and one existing property set for conversion. This project will
create living space totalling 7,689 m2. The Aquatica building com-
prises 29 residential units, Kölla contains four residential units and
Mansion will have eight. Also included are a wellness and spa zone
as well as an underground car park.

Surrounding area
All three buildings are on the Giessen peninsula in Wädenswil, right
by the waterfront. The former factory building, designed by Swiss
architect Albert Kölla in 1920, acts as something of a landmark.
Peach Property Group has designed this group of buildings in such
a way that the blend of old and new architecture forms a harmonious
whole.

Project status
The building consent has been obtained, although a Court of appeal
(Baurekursgericht) decision means it is suspended. The possibility
of lodging an appeal with the higher Administrative court (Verwal-
tungsgericht) is being explored. Work is scheduled to finish during
2016.

Key data
Units: 41 units
Saleable surface area: 7,689 m2

Sales volume: 135.9 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 57.0 million CHF
Completion expected: Q3 2016

www.waedenswil-peninsula.ch

MEWS & GARDENS

Owner-occupied properties set amid spacious gardens
by Lake Zurich.

Location
Peninsula, Wädenswil, Canton of Zurich, Switzerland.

Building
The “Mews & Gardens” project will comprise a surface area
totalling 2,887 m2. Three buildings will offer space for 22 new
owner-occupied properties and an underground car park.

Description
The new buildings are designed to look like the former
lodging houses on the Giessen industrial site. Another
key design element is the gardens with their native plants,
which will surround the buildings. An area of over 4,500 m2

is set to be transformed into a green oasis accessible to
both residents and the general public all year round. The
Reidbach watercourse will also be re-routed to add to the
area’s attractiveness.

Project status
The building consent has been obtained, although an ap-
peal means it is not yet legally binding. The building is ex-
pected to be ready to move into in 2015.

Key data
Units: 22 units
Saleable surface area: 2,887 m2

Sales volume: 37.8 million CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 8.0 million CHF
Completion expected: Q2 2015

www.waedenswil-peninsula.ch
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DOCKSIDE

Loft-style owner-occupied residences and retail space in
the historic Dockside building.

Location
Wädenswil, Canton of Zurich, Switzerland.

Building
The Dockside building will feature retail space totalling
5,162 m2 divided into 24 loft-style owner-occupied resi-
dences and retail areas on the ground floor.

Surrounding area
The Dockside building is one of Wädenswil’s most promi-
nent historical buildings. Built in 1905, it forms the centre-
piece, together with the former boiler house and brick-
work chimney, of the Giessen site. The wide rooms, some
4 m high, with their open layout and large windows cover
an overall area of 5,162 m2 divided into 24 loft-style owner-
occupied residences and retail areas on the ground floor.

Project status
The project is at the pre-application stage. The building is
expected to be ready to move into in 2016.

Key data
Units: 24 units
Saleable surface area: 5,162 m2

Sales volume: 61.9 m CHF
Market value on 31.12.11: 7.1 million CHF
Completion expected: Q2 2016

www.waedenswil-peninsula.ch

CANDY FACTORY

Location
Etzelstrasse 17, Wollerau, Canton of Schwyz, Switzerland.

Building
The Candy Factory has a total area of 3,800 m2 plus 400 m2 of stu-
dio space and comprises 18 residential units with living space of
between 125 and 270 m2. The building contains a wellness zone
with fitness equipment, sauna, steam bath and whirlpool.

Description
Exclusive residential units are to be built in the four-storey loft
building: Oversized glass facades, spectacular “canons à lumière”
and ceilings 3.5 m high will create a generous sense of space.

Surrounding area
The hill-top location above Lake Zurich affords spectacular views
across the lake to the Swiss Alps. Wollerau, a 30-minute drive from
both Zurich and Zug, is located in the Canton of Schwyz with its
favourable tax regime.

Project status
The project is at the pre-application stage with the land yet to be
acquired. Construction work will start in 2013, with the building ex-
pected to be ready to move into in 2015.

Key data
Units: 18 units
Saleable surface area: 4,200 m2

Sales volume: 45.6 million CHF
Completion expected: Q4 2015

www.peachestates.com
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BAKERY

Major bakery in the historic commercial building beside
the lake in Wädenswil.

Location
Wädenswil, Canton of Zurich, Switzerland.

Building
The “Bakery” building was originally built in 1833, before
being converted and renovated in 1966. The total rentable
commercial space covers 5,601 m2. Peach Property
Group has concluded a long-term rental agreement with
the major bakery “Kern & Sammet”, helping Wädenswil
retain a big employer.

Surrounding area
The building 's address is Seestrasse 26/28 in Wädenswil,
an ideal location in transport terms and right next to the
Giessen peninsula with its historic commercial site where
Peach Property Group is working on its “Peninsula” devel-
opment projects.

Key data
Rentable surface area: 5,601 m2

Target rental: 0.6 million CHF
Vacancy rate: 0%
Market value: 7.6 million CHF

MUNSTER PORTFOLIO

Garden settlement on the Luneburg Heath.

Location
Munster, Lower Saxony, Germany

Building
The portfolio comprises 376 residential units and has a total living
space of 26,000 m2. Most residences are in buildings comprising
two to four storeys built in 1959 (one of the buildings was built in
1967). All residences have balconies and those on the ground floor
have gardens. There are extensive green areas and space for chil-
dren to play between the individual properties.

Surrounding area
The residential properties are located in Munster on the Luneburg
Heath, which means they are within easy reach of the two major
hubs of Hamburg and Hanover.

Key data
Units: 376 residences
Rentable surface area: 25,759 m2

Target rental: 1.6 million CHF
Vacancy rate: 8,8%
Market value on 31.12.11: 14.0 million CHF

INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
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PORTFOLIO
ERKRATHäHOCHDAHL

Portfolio purchase in January 2012.
Central district in Erkrath-Hochdahl.

Location
Erkrath, North Rhine-Westphalia, Germany

Building
The portfolio consists of 143 residences covering a
surface area of 10,431 m2 and 28 commercial units covering
a total area of 9,324 m2. The properties are at a central lo-
cation around the redesigned Marktplatz in Hochdahl, the
main district of Erkrath, and form a combined residential
and commercial complex.

Surrounding area
The residential properties are situated in the centre of
Erkrath, some 12 km east of Düsseldorf. Nearby motorway
and suburban railway connections mean the location has
excellent transport links.

Key data
Units: 143 residences plus commercial units
Rentable surface area: 10,431 m2 residential; 9,324 m2

commercial
Target rental: 2.7 million CHF
Vacancy rate: 1,6%
Market value: 36.4 million CHF
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Valuation mandate
On behalf of Peach Property Group, Wüest & Partner AG and W&P Immo-
bilienberatung GmbH (a subsidiary of Wüest & Partner) valued the pro-
perties of Peach Property Group for financial reporting purposes at the
designated valuation date of 31 December 2011. All investment and devel-
opment properties were valued.

Switzerland and Austria portfolio
Wüest & Partner was responsible for all valuations of properties held in
Switzerland.

Germany portfolio
Together with its subsidiary W&P Immobilienberatung GmbH, Wüest & Part-
ner was responsible for all valuations of properties held in Germany.

Valuation standards
The surveyors confirm the valuations were performed in line with the usual
national and international standards and directives and in accordance
with both the “International Valuation Standards” (IVSC) and the “Royal
Chartered Surveyors” (Red Book). The market values determined for the
investment properties equate to the fair value as set out in the “Interna-
tional Reporting Standards” (IFRS) in accordance with IAS 40 (revised),
paragraphs 33–55 (Investment Property). The development/investment
properties under construction and earmarked as future investment proper-
ties or for sale as owner-occupied properties are included in the Peach
Property Group balance sheet in accordance with IAS 40.

Definition of fair value
Fair value is defined as the likely price achievable on the open market on
the valuation date between two unrelated and well informed parties inter-
ested in buying or selling and based on a marketing period in line with the
wider market.

REPORT BY INDEPENDENT
EXPERT VALUER
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Investments which increase value and any associated extra pro-
ceeds are not included when determining the fair value as per paragraph
51 of IAS 40. Likewise excluded are property transfer, property gain or
value-added taxes, plus any other costs or commission associated with
any disposal of properties. Similarly, no Peach Property Group payables
associated with any taxes (apart from standard property taxes) or financ-
ing costs are taken into account either.

Valuation method
The surveyors used the discounted cash flow method (DCF) for the pur-
pose of the Peach Property Group valuations.

Investment properties in the portfolio and
those under development:

With investment properties, the market value of a property is determined
as the total of all future net earnings over 100 years discounted at the val-
uation date. Discounting is applied to each property based on their indi-
vidual opportunities and risks. It also reflects the market and is risk-adjusted.
All operating, maintenance and renovation costs associated with a property
are taken into account. With development projects, any costs still to be
incurred until properties are ready to move into are taken into account.

Development projects for residential properties:
With development projects for owner-occupied properties, the antici-
pated sales revenue within the expected marketing phase is treated as a
cash inflow. The costs still to be incurred until properties are ready to
move into are again deducted from this, as are the marketing costs in-
curred in order to sell the units.

Basis for the evaluation
Wüest & Partner are familiar with the various properties in the relevant
countries through the surveys conducted and the documentation made
available to them. The properties were analysed in detail in terms of their
qualities and risks (attractiveness and rentability of rental properties or
saleability of owner-occupied properties, construction type and condi-
tion, micro-location and macro-location, etc.). Currently vacant or unsold
properties were valued on the basis of a typical marketing period.
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Properties are surveyed by the surveyors in at least three-year
cycles or periodically during the construction phase. Properties are also
surveyed following purchase or after major conversion work.

The following properties were surveyed during the reporting period
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011.

Switzerland
Wädenswil site
(Beach House, Aquatica/Kölla/Mansion, Dockside, Mews & Gardens)

Germany
Munster residential portfolio (3 properties)

Results
As of 31 December 2011, the values of a total of 14 properties or projects
had been determined by the valuers.

The surveyors estimated the fair values for the properties on the
valuation date as follows, in accordance with IAS 40:

Switzerland
The Switzerland portfolio consists of one investment property and four
development projects. The portfolio is valued at 115,248,000 francs as of
31 December 2011.

Germany
The Germany portfolio consists of five investment properties and four
development projects. The portfolio is valued at 139,911,000 euros as of
31 December 2011.

Austria
The Austria portfolio consists of one property. The property is valued at
5,648,000 euros as of 31 December 2011.
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Changes during the reporting period
Three new properties were purchased during the reporting period from
1 January to 31 December 2011. These relate to the residential portfolio
in Munster (three properties).

Independence and confidentiality
In accordance with the corporate policy of Wüest & Partner, the valuation
of Peach Property Group properties was both independent and impartial.
It serves the purpose described above only; Wüest & Partner does not ac-
cept any liability towards third parties.

Zurich, 9 March 2012
Wüest & Partner

Dr. Christoph Zaborowski
Chartered Surveyor MRICS, economist, partner
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THIS REPORT DESCRIBES THE PRINCIPLES OF
THE ORGANISATION, MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
OF PEACH PROPERTY GROUP AG, AS SET FORTH
IN THE COMPANY’S ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND
THE ORGANISATIONAL REGULATIONS.

THE STRUCTURE OF THE INFORMATION COMPLIES
WITH THE DIRECTIVE ON INFORMATION RELATä
ING TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ÁDCG� OF THE
SIX SWISS EXCHANGE.

THE COMPANY’S POLICY BOOK CONTAINING THE
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND ALL REGULATIONS
CAN BE FOUND AT WWW.PEACHESTATES.COM
UNDER “INVESTOR RELATIONS”.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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1. Group structure and shareholders
1.1 Group structure
Peach Property Group AG, Seestrasse 346, 8038 Zurich, is organised as a joint stock com-
pany (“Aktiengesellschaft”) under Swiss law and holds all the entities in the Group directly and
indirectly as a holding company. Peach Property Group AG has been listed on the SIX Swiss
Exchange since 12 November 2010. As of 31 December 2011, the market capitalisation is
53,619,020 CHF. The registered shares are traded under the Main Standard (securities num-
ber 11 853 036, ISIN CH0118530366, ticker symbol PEAN). All participations are non-listed
companies.
In order to optimise the group tax and financing structures, the company regularly utilises
several legal entities when realising a specific project. Due to this strategy, the company holds
a large number of direct and indirect subsidiaries. As of 31 December 2011, the Peach Prop-
erty Group’s legal and ownership structure is as follows:

Peach Property Group AG

East West
Wohnbau GmbH

Peach Property
Group (DE) GmbH

VD Berlin Chaus-
seestrasse 106
GmbH & Co. KG

VD Harveste-
huder
GmbH & Co. KG

“yoo berlin”
GmbH & Co. KG

Schooren Ver-
mietungs GmbH

Munster
Portfolio GmbH

Portfolio Erkrath
Wohnen GmbH

Portfolio Erkrath
Retail GmbH

Peach Property
Projekt III GmbH

Real Value Living
GmbH

International

Switzerland

Schooren
des Alpes, Kappl

Living 106, Berlin H36, Hamburg “yoo berlin”

46,6 %

100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %

94.9 %100 % 94.9 % 94.9 %

99 %

Am Zirkus 1
Berlin
GmbH & Co. KG

Am Zirkus 1, Berlin

80 %

Yoo Düsseldorf
GmbH & Co. KG

Property sold

94.9 %

100 %

WSZ Residential
Development AG

100 %

Peach German
Properties II AG

Note: “VD Harvestehuder GmbH & Co. KG” mentioned above comprises the following three GmbH & Co. KGs:
a) Vivacon Development Harvestehuder Weg I GmbH & Co. KG,
b)Vivacon Development Harvestehuder Weg II GmbH & Co. KG and
c) Vivacon Development Harvestehuder Weg III GmbH & Co. KG.

Beach House AG

Condominium
Beach House AG

Peninsula
Beach House

100 % Peninsula,
Wädenswil

100 %

Condominium
Invest AG

100 %

Peach German
Properties AG
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Group companies

Name of company Registered
office

Country Business activity Currency Share
capital

% of subscribed share
capital and of voting

rights in the company
(directly/indirectly)

Beach House AG Wädenswil Switzerland Associate CHF 100,000 46.6

Condominium Beach House AG Zurich Switzerland Project company
“Peninsula Beach House”

CHF 100,000 46.6

Condominium Invest AG Zurich Switzerland Project company
“Peninsula, Wädenswil”

CHF 100,000 100

Peach German Properties AG Stansstad Switzerland Company purpose: acquisition,
development, selling and agency
activities

CHF 100,000 100

Peach German Properties II AG Stansstad Switzerland Company purpose: acquisition,
development, selling and agency
activities

CHF 100,000 100

WSZ Residential Development AG Sarnen Switzerland Company purpose: acquisition,
development, selling and agency
activities

CHF 100,000 100

Peach Property Group
(Germany) GmbH

Cologne Germany Company purpose: acquisition,
development, selling and agency
activities

EUR 25,000 100

Real Value Living GmbH Cologne Germany Company purpose: acquisition,
development, selling and agency
activities

EUR 25,000 100

VD Berlin Chausseestrasse 106
Verwaltungsgesellschaft GmbH

Cologne Germany Company purpose: acquisition
and development activities

EUR 25,000 100

VD Berlin Chausseestrasse 106
GmbH & Co. KG

Cologne Germany Project company
“Living 106, Berlin”

EUR 1,000 94.9

Vivacon Development
Harvestehuder Weg I
Verwaltungs GmbH

Cologne Germany General partner of VD
Harvestehuderweg I GmbH & Co.
KG and VD Harvestehuderweg III
GmbH & Co. KG

EUR 25,000 100

Vivacon Development Harveste-
huder Weg I GmbH & Co. KG

Cologne Germany Project company
“H36, Hamburg”

EUR 1,000 94.9
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Name of company Registered
office

Country Business activity Currency Share
capital

% of subscribed share
capital and of voting

rights in the company
(directly/indirectly)

Vivacon Development Harveste-
huder Weg III GmbH & Co. KG

Cologne Germany Project company
“H36, Hamburg”

EUR 25,000 94.9

VD Aussenalster Beteiligungs-
gesellschaft GmbH

Hamburg Germany Management of own, acquired
and other assets

EUR 25,000 94.9

Vivacon Development Harveste-
huder Weg II Verwaltungs GmbH

Cologne Germany General partner of VD Harveste-
huder Weg II GmbH & Co. KG

EUR 25,000 100

Vivacon Development Harveste-
huder Weg II GmbH & Co. KG

Cologne Germany Project company “A43” EUR 1,000 94.9

Yoo Berlin Verwaltung GmbH Cologne Germany General partner of Yoo Berlin
GmbH & Co. KG

EUR 25,000 100

Yoo Berlin GmbH & Co. KG Cologne Germany Project company “yoo berlin” EUR 1,000 94.9

Am Zirkus 1 Berlin Verwaltungs-
gesellschaft GmbH

Cologne Germany General partner of Am Zirkus 1
Berlin GmbH & Co. KG

DM 1 50,000 80

Am Zirkus 1 Berlin GmbH & Co. KG Cologne Germany Project company “Am Zirkus 1” EUR 51,129 80 2, 3

Portfolio Erkrath Wohnen GmbH Cologne Germany Project company
Portfolio Erkrath Wohnen

EUR 25,000 100

Portfolio Erkrath Retail GmbH Cologne Germany Project company
Portfolio Erkrath Retail

EUR 25,000 100

Peach Property Projekt III GmbH Cologne Germany Project company EUR 25,000 100

Munster Portfolio GmbH Cologne Germany Project company Munster EUR 25,000 100

East West Wohnbau GmbH Ischgl Austria Project company
“Schooren des Alpes”

EUR 17,500 99

Schooren Vermietungs GmbH Kappl Austria Leasing company
“Schooren des Alpes”

EUR 35,000 99

1 “DM” stands for “Deutsche Mark”, the former lawful currency of Germany. 40,000 DM are approximately 25,000 EUR.
2 Am Zirkus 1 is a joint venture between the Company and Deutsche Immobilien AG with a profit split of 80/20 and voting rights of 50/50.
3 Liability contribution entered into the Commercial Register is not equal to the internal partner’s contribution as per the Partnership Agreement

(40,903.35 EUR).
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Management structure
The company’s operational management structure is organised according to its value chain
into five departments: sourcing, development, execution, sales and investment management.
Central services as the sixth department works independently from the value chain.
— The sourcing department is responsible for the identification and acquisition of new pro-

jects and investment properties. The acquisition pipeline is developed and the best
properties selected in close cooperation with the development, investment manage-
ment and sales departments.

— The development department is always involved with the selection and analysis of new
projects and investment properties together with the sourcing department and is re-
sponsible for the development of projects and the planning of revitalisation work on
properties up to the start of construction. The department employs architects, design-
ers and project managers responsible for planning. Tasks which require specific know-
how (e.g. geological reports, tax issues, etc.) are outsourced to third-party service
providers.

— The execution department takes over projects from the development department as
soon as approved contracts are on hand for these projects. The department employs
project managers who act as representatives of the building owners in dealings with
the general contractor during the project’s realisation phase.

— The sales department is responsible for sales and rentals associated with projects and
properties and for any project marketing and PR. It looks after new and existing buyer
groups, supports international broker networks and has a strong presence with an on-
site team at the actual properties being sold. The help of established specialist brokers
with local knowledge is enlisted where properties are to be rented out.

— The investment management department is responsible for the financing, structuring and
portfolio management associated with projects and properties. The department is re-
sponsible for property valuations, cash flow planning and calculating profitability. It also
coordinates financing solutions at company level in close collaboration with the finance
department.
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Dr. Thomas
Wolfensberger
Chief Executive
Officer

Dr. Christian
Wenger 1, 2, 3

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Dr. Albert Halter
Head of Marketing
and Communications

Mirco Riondato
Chief Investment
Officer

Dr. Andreas
Steinbauer
Head of Sales

Ruedi Adler
Chief Financial
Officer

Dr. Thomas
Wolfensberger
Member of the Board
of Directors, Chief
Executive Officer

Ralf Vorrink 4

Technical
Managing Director
Germany

Bruno Birrer
Chief Operating
Officer

Dr. Christian
De Prati 3

Member of the
Board of Directors

Dr. Marcel Kucher
Chief Information
Officer

Christian Kühni 2, 3

Member of the
Board of Directors

Bernd Hasse
Group Manage-
ment Spokesman
Germany

4 Peach Property Group (Germany)

Committees:
1 Audit and risk committee
2 Nomination and compensation committee
3 Investment committee

Peach Property Group Organisation

Peach Property Group Board of Directors

Peach Property Group executive management

Peach Property Group extended executive management

Peter Bodmer 1, 3

Member of the
Board of Directors
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1.2 Significant shareholders
As of 31 December 2011, the following shareholders hold more than 3% of the shares in Peach
Property Group AG:

Lock-up agreement
Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger and four members of the executive management have signed in-
dividual lock-up agreements with Bank am Bellevue for a term of 24 months commencing on
12 November 2010 and ending as of 12 November 2012. 34,000 options and 813,000 shares
(16.75% of all shares and voting rights) are affected by this vesting period, including 792,000
shares held by Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger.

Shareholders Number of shares % of all shares

Oliver Wolfensberger 862,480 17.77

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger 859,250 17.71

Nicole Kunz 244,668 5.04

Dan Holzmann 208,761 4.30

Balfidor Fondsleitung AG 206,920 4.26

Schroder ISF Small & Mid Cap 188,340 3.88

Helvetic Private Investments AG 157,020 3.24

Other / free float 2,124,961 43.80

Total 4,852,400 100.00
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Disclosure of participations
Under the applicable provisions of the Swiss Stock Exchange and Securities Trading Act
(SESTA), persons who directly, indirectly or in concert with third parties acquire or dispose of
shares or purchase sale rights relating to shares in a company incorporated in Switzerland
whose shares are listed in Switzerland and thereby reach, exceed or fall below the thresholds
of 3%, 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 33⅓%, 50% or 66⅔% of the voting rights must notify the
company and the SIX Exchange Regulation of such transactions and provide information as
to whether or not the voting rights attributable to those shares can be exercised. Following
the receipt of such notification, a company must inform the public about such changes in
shareholding.
Notifications regarding Peach Property Group AG can be viewed on the SIX Exchange Regula-
tion website: www.six-exchange-regulation.com/publications/published_notifications

1.3 Cross-shareholdings
There are no cross-shareholdings that exceed 5% of the voting capital of a party involved.

2. Capital structure
2.1 Share capital
As at 31 December 2011, the nominal share capital of Peach Property Group AG is 4,852,400
CHF, divided into 4,852,400 fully paid-in registered shares with a nominal value of 1.00 CHF
each. The shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other, including in respect of entitle-
ments to dividends, to a share of the liquidation proceeds in the case of a liquidation of the
company, and to pre-emptive rights. Each share carries one vote at the General Meeting. As
of 31 December 2011, the company holds 41,963 treasury shares. These are not entitled to
dividends.

2.2 Authorised and conditional capital
Authorised capital

As of 31 December 2011, the company has authorised share capital of 617,630 CHF. The
Board of Directors is authorised to increase the share capital by 18 June 2012 at the latest by
no more than this amount by issuing a maximum of 617,630 registered shares. Other explan-
ations regarding authorised capital can be found in Note 31 to the financial statements.
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Conditional capital
Conditional capital is divided into an amount of up to 140,500 CHF for exercising option rights
which are granted to advisors, employees and members of the Board of Directors of the com-
pany in accordance with advisor agreements, participation plans and the like, and an amount
of up to 70,851 CHF for the exercising of conversion and/or option rights which are granted in
conjunction with financial market instruments such as convertible bonds and option bonds of
the company. Conditional capital consequently amounts to a maximum of 211,351 CHF through
the issuing of no more than 211,351 registered shares with a nominal value of 1.00 CHF each.
For additional information, please refer to the articles of association which can be down-
loaded at www.peachestates.com/investor-relations/investor-downloads. Other explanations
regarding conditional capital can be found in Note 31 to the financial statements.

2.3 Capital changes

Additional information on equity can be found in Note 31 to the financial statements.

2.4 Participation and profit-sharing certificates
Peach Property Group AG has not issued any participation certificates or profit-sharing cer-
tificates.

Change Total, CHF Number of
registered shares

Nominal value
per share, CHF

Share capital as at 01.01.2008 2,000,000 200,000,000 0.01

Capital increase 208,548 20,854,800 0.01

Share capital as at 31.12.2008 2,208,548 220,854,800 0.01

Capital increase 147,232 14,723,200 0.01

Share capital as at 31.12.2009 2,355,780 235,578,000 0.01

Reverse split (June 2010) 2,355,780 2,355,780 1.00

Capital increase 2,488,370 2,488,370 1.00

Share capital as at 31.12.2010 4,844,150 4,844,150 1.00

Capital increases 8,250 8,250 1.00

Share capital as at 31.12.2011 4,852,400 4,852,400 1.00
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2.5 Transfer limitation and nominee entries
The limitation on the transfer of shares is laid down in Art. 5 of the articles of association. This
states that only those persons registered in the shareholder register shall be recognised as
shareholders, beneficiaries or nominees when exercising rights vis-à-vis the company. Trans-
ferees of registered shares will, upon request, be entered in the shareholder register as share-
holders with voting rights, provided that:
a) they provide proof that they acquired such registered shares and hold them in their own

name and for their own account. Persons not providing such proof will be entered in the
shareholder register as nominees with voting rights only if they declare in writing that
they will disclose the names, addresses and shareholdings of the persons for whose
account they are holding shares, or if they disclose such information in writing immedi-
ately upon first request.

b) the recognition of the transferee as a shareholder does not have the potential of pre-
venting the company from fulfilling legal requirements concerning its shareholders and/
or their beneficial owners, as required by applicable laws and on the basis of information
available to the company. The company shall in particular be entitled to refuse entry in
the shareholder register of persons residing abroad within the meaning set forth in the
Federal Act on the Acquisition of Real Property by Persons Residing Abroad (“Authorisa-
tion Act”) if the proof of Swiss control of the company and/or its subsidiaries might be
jeopardised as a result of such entry.
In order to avoid potential foreign control within the meaning of the Authorisation Act,
the Board of Directors will enter a foreign shareholder in the shareholder register as a
shareholder with voting rights only if the total number of voting shares of foreign share-
holders is not in excess of 25% of the total number of voting shares issued by the com-
pany, and if the number of voting shares of that foreign shareholder as entered in the
shareholder register for its own account, together with related shareholders or acting in
concert, is not in excess of 10%. If these limits are exceeded, the Board of Directors is
entitled but not obliged to enter such foreign shareholders in the share register all the
same but only on condition that an order issued by the competent authorisation author-
ity is provided according to which the company and its subsidiaries are not under foreign
control even after the entry of this additional foreign shareholder in the shareholder
register.

The transferee must file a share registration form in order to be registered in the share register
of the company as a shareholder with voting rights. Failing such registration, the transferee
may not vote at or participate in any General Meeting but will still be entitled to dividends and
other rights with financial value.
The company shall be entitled, after having heard the shareholder or nominee entered in the
shareholder register, to delete entries in the shareholder register retroactively as of the date
of entry if such entries have been made due to misstatements or if the data requested
have not been disclosed.
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2.6 Convertible bonds and options
Convertible bonds

The company has not issued any convertible bonds as of 31 December 2011.

Options
The company introduced an employee share participation and stock option plan in 2008. The
purpose of this plan is to provide an incentive for its participants to contribute to the long-
term success and growth of Peach Property Group AG and to hire and retain the most com-
petent employees. Information on the employee share participation and stock option plan can
be found under 5.1 “Content and determination method of remuneration and participation
schemes” as well as under 5.2 “Remuneration of the Board of Directors and executive man-
agement” and in Notes 37 and 38 to the financial statements.

3. Board of Directors
3.1 Members of the Board of Directors
According to the articles of association, the Board of Directors of Peach Property Group AG
consists of one or more members, currently five. These are:

As CEO of Peach Property Group AG, Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger is the only executive member
of the Board of Directors. None of the other members of the Board of Directors belonged to
the executive management of Peach Property Group AG or a subsidiary in the last few
years. Additional information about significant business relationships with non-executive
members of the Board of Directors can be found under Section 37 of the Notes to the financial
statements.

Name Born Position Board member since Term expires

Dr. Christian Wenger 1964 Chairman 2007 General Meeting 2012

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger 1972 Member 2007 General Meeting 2012

Peter E. Bodmer 1964 Member 2009 General Meeting 2012

Christian Kühni 1955 Member 2009 General Meeting 2012

Dr. Christian De Prati 1970 Member 2009 General Meeting 2012
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Dr. Christian Wenger is a partner of the Zurich law firm Wenger & Vieli AG, which specialises
in commercial and company law, property, mergers & acquisitions and financing as well as
corporate restructuring. Christian Wenger is a member of the Board of Directors of various
companies, such as Looser Holding AG (member), APEN AG (member), Publigroup S.A. (mem-
ber), Falcon Private Bank AG (member) and Pavatex AG (chairman). He graduated with a Ph.D. in
law from the University of Zurich and completed an LL.M. at Duke University Law School in
North Carolina, USA. Christian Wenger is a Swiss citizen.

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger started his career as a systems engineer at IBM and then joined
Accenture as a management consultant. Subsequently, he founded Swissrisk AG and, as
CEO, developed it into a medium-sized financial software provider with 120 employees in five
countries. As of 2006, Thomas Wolfensberger had been responsible for private real estate
funds for projects in Switzerland. He joined Peach Property Group AG in 2006 and was
appointed CEO in 2007. He holds a degree and a Ph.D. in economics from the University of
Zurich. Thomas Wolfensberger is a Swiss citizen.

Peter E. Bodmer was until September 2011 a member of the executive committee and head
of Implenia Industrial Construction. He is currently a senior advisor at Implenia, Switzerland’s
leading construction group. In this capacity, he is responsible for designing and implementing
the international strategy of the Implenia Group. Peter E. Bodmer has gained international
experience in various companies and divisions in the fields of controlling, real estate and IT.
He holds a degree in business administration from the University of Zurich and an MBA in
economics from IMD Lausanne. Peter E. Bodmer is a Swiss citizen.

Dr. Christian De Prati has enjoyed a successful career in investment banking for more than
15 years. He has had international roles for both Merrill Lynch and Credit Suisse First Boston,
and was recently Country Head Switzerland at Bank of America Merrill Lynch. Christian De
Prati gained a Ph.D. in economics (magna cum laude) at the University of Zurich. He was
appointed a Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum. Christian De Prati is a Swiss
citizen.

Christian Kühni is a member of the Board and COO at IVG Immobilien AG. He was previously
a managing director with responsibility for product development and fund management at
Wealth Management Capital Holding, a subsidiary of the Unicredit Group. His international
roles within the property sector include managerial positions at HypoVereinsbank AG, Sanofi-
aventis S.A. and ABB Immobilien AG. He also has many years’ managerial experience in the
financing sector, including positions at ABB Credit B.V., BP Oil International Ltd. and a precur-
sor of the current Royal Bank of Canada. Christian Kühni holds a Swiss Federal Bankers
Diploma and has dual Swiss and Canadian citizenship.
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Peter E. Bodmer
Member of the Board of Directors

Christian Kühni
Member of the Board of Directors

Dr. Christian De Prati
Member of the Board of Directors

Dr. Christian Wenger
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger
Chief Executive Officer, member of the Board of Directors
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3.2 Other activities and outside interests
With the exception of the functions mentioned under 3.1, the members of the Board of Direc-
tors are not engaged in any activities in management and supervisory bodies or permanent
management and advisory functions for significant interest groups.

3.3 Elections and term of office
Each member of the Board of Directors is elected on an individual basis by the General Meet-
ing for a term of one year. Re-election is permitted. There is no provision for partial, rotating or
staggered renewal of the Board of Directors.

3.4 Internal organisation
The Board of Directors constitutes itself and has appointed Dr. Christian Wenger as its chair-
man.
The presence of at least half of the members of the Board of Directors constitutes a quorum.
No quorum is required for notarised resolutions pursuant to articles 651a, 652g and 653g of
the Code of Obligations (CO). The adoption of resolutions by the Board of Directors requires a
majority of the votes cast. In the case of a tie, the chairman has a casting vote. Resolutions of
the Board of Directors may also be adopted in writing (including via fax or e-mail) provided that
no member requests a verbal consultation.
All governing bodies of the company shall be required to abstain from the proceedings if busi-
ness is being conducted that has a bearing on their own interests or the interests of related
legal entities and natural persons.
Meetings of the Board of Directors are convened by the chairman, or, in the chairman’s
absence, any other member of the Board of Directors as often as the company’s business
requires. A meeting shall also be convened if a member of the Board of Directors requests this
in writing, stating the reasons for the request. In 2011, a total of seven ordinary and extraordinary
meetings were held. The average duration of a meeting was four hours. The day-long strategy
meeting of the Board of Directors took place on 30 August 2011.
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3.5 Board committees
In accordance with the articles of association and the organisational regulations (both of
which have been published at www.peachestates.com/investor-relations/investor-down-
loads), the Board of Directors has established three committees, the audit and risk com-
mittee, the nomination and compensation committee and the investment committee. Each of
these committees has independent decision-making powers in its area of authority and shall
meet for as long as required by the business at hand. Minutes shall be taken at all meetings
and for all decisions.

Audit and risk committee
The audit and risk committee oversees the accounting, financial reporting, internal control
system (ICS), risk management and the external auditors and monitors compliance with legal
requirements. In the financial year 2011, the audit and risk committee met twice.
The audit and risk committee consists of the following members: Dr. Christian Wenger and
Peter Bodmer. It is headed by Peter Bodmer.

Nomination and compensation committee
The nomination and compensation committee is responsible for the preparation of person-
nel planning at the level of the Board of Directors and executive management, appraises the
performance of the executive management and submits proposals to the Board of Directors
regarding their basic salaries and their bonuses. The committee furthermore proposes the
level of compensation for the chairman and the members of the Board of Directors and audits
the professional performance of the chairman. When their own compensation is being de-
cided, the relevant members of the nomination and compensation committee shall abstain
from the proceedings. It meets at least twice a year. In the financial year 2011, the nomination
and compensation committee met twice.
The nomination and compensation committee currently consists of the following members:
Dr. Christian Wenger and Dr. Christian De Prati. It is headed by Dr. Christian De Prati.

Investment committee
The investment committee evaluates all investment matters and their risks and reviews the
company’s liquidity and its investments, including investments of pension funds. It meets as
often as required in the course of the company’s business. In 2011, a total of five meetings
took place.
The investment committee currently consists of the following members: Dr. Christian Wenger,
Dr. Christian De Prati, Christian Kühni and Peter Bodmer. It is headed by Christian De Prati.
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3.6 Regulation of approval powers
The principles of senior management including regulation of approval powers are laid down
in the organisational regulations of Peach Property Group AG and can be downloaded at
www.peachestates.com/investor-relations/investor-downloads. The Board of Directors is
entrusted with the overall management of the company and the supervision of the executive
management. It represents the company externally and decides on all matters that are not
reserved by law, the articles of association or regulations for another company entity. Under
Swiss company law, the Board of Directors’ non-transferable and inalienable duties include
the duty to:
a) ensure the overall management of the company and to issue the necessary directives,
b) determine the company’s organisation,
c) organise the company’s accounting system, financial controls and financial planning,
d) appoint and remove from office the persons entrusted with company management and

representation as well as ensuring overall supervision of the persons entrusted with
company management and representation,

e) prepare the company’s annual report and General Meeting and implement shareholders’
resolutions and

f) notify a judge in the event of any over-indebtedness of the company (Art. 716a CO).
While the Board of Directors assumes the duties of a supervisory and management body, the
executive management is entrusted with the operational management of the company.
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3.7 Information and control instruments vis-à-vis the executive management
Monthly meetings, headed by the chairman of the Board of Directors, are held with the CEO.
Additional members of the Board of Directors and executive management participate in the
meeting as required.
The audit and risk committee meets at least three times a year. At least twice a year it meets
with representatives of the external auditors. At its meetings, the audit and risk committee
deals with, among other things, the annual and half-year statements of accounts, reports from
auditors and external property surveyors, financial reporting matters and legal and tax issues
as well as risk management and the internal control system (ICS).
The chairman of the audit and risk committee may convene additional meetings at any time.
The audit and risk committee may invite members of the executive management, other em-
ployees, external advisors or auditors to its meetings as required. The CFO participates in
the meetings. Minutes of each meeting are drawn up and distributed to the whole Board of
Directors.
The investment committee primarily carries out the following duties:
— making decisions on investments or divestments at the request of the CEO;
— fixing the annual investment and project framework;
— reviewing the development of liquidity;
— checking compliance with investment guidelines.
The whole Board of Directors is informed monthly about liquidity development and project
progress, and quarterly about the attainability of the budget, the financial situation and
planned activities.

4. Executive management
4.1 Members of the executive management
The following members belong to the executive management of Peach Property Group AG
as at 31 December 2010:

Name Born Position Joined Peach in

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger 1972 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 2006

Ruedi Adler 1951 Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 2007

Bruno Birrer 1964 Chief Operating Officer (COO) 2006

Dr. Marcel Kucher 1971 Chief Information Officer 2011

Mirco Riondato 1966 Chief Investment Officer (CIO) 2008

Bernd Hasse 1968 Managing Director Germany 2011
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Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, see 3.1 “Members of the Board of Directors”.

Ruedi Adler has been CFO of Peach Property Group AG since 2007. Prior to this, he
worked as CFO at Mobag AG for 20 years. During this time, Ruedi Adler was a key figure in
numerous M&A transactions. He was also responsible for the introduction of the IFRS stand-
ards and the publication of all financial reports of Mobag AG. Ruedi Adler is a certified
accounting and controlling expert and a certified controller of SIB (Schweizer Institut für
Betriebsökonomie). He is a Swiss citizen.

Bruno Birrer joined Peach Property Group AG as COO in 2006. Prior to this, he was on the
board of a joint venture of Porr AG and Siemens AG and from 2001 until 2003 the majority
owner of Drahtex AG, which develops components and services for the telecoms industry.
Bruno Birrer started his career at Brugg Telecom. He holds a degree in economics from the
University of St. Gallen and a degree in electrical engineering (dipl. El.-Ing. FH). Bruno Birrer
is a Swiss citizen.

Dr. Marcel Kucher joined Peach Property Group AG as Chief Information Officer in 2011.
During the previous eight years, he played a significant role in developing the a-connect
consultancy firm in both Switzerland and the USA, both as Chief Financial Officer and
Head of Corporate Development. Under his stewardship, an information system based on
SAP/salesforce.com was introduced for all sites, providing the group with significant impetus
for growth. Before this, he had been employed by McKinsey & Company, Credit Suisse and
Dresdner Bank. Marcel Kucher studied economics at the University of Zurich and the London
School of Economics, graduating with a Ph.D. He is a Swiss citizen.

Mirco Riondato, FRICS, has been Chief Investment Officer of Peach Property Group AG since
2008. From 2000, he was department manager at MIB AG Consulting & Sales, after which he
moved to Implenia Development in 2005 before joining the executive management of Imple-
nia Real Estate as Head of Investment Management. Prior to this, Mirco Riondato worked for
over 15 years at UBS, including in business and mortgage lending and real estate valuation.
He is a Fellow of RICS (Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors), has an MBA in International
Real Estate Management, is a Private Equity Advisor (ebs/BAI) and has a degree in business
administration (KSZH). Mirco Riondato is an Italian citizen.

Bernd Hasse has been Managing Director of Peach Property Group Germany since 1 January
2011. Prior to that, he was managing director of ING Real Estate Germany GmbH with its
head office in Frankfurt am Main and chairman of the Board of ING Real Estate Development
Alpenrhein AG in Zurich. Before that, he was a managing partner of development and con-
sultancy companies in Cologne, Düsseldorf and Munich after having embarked on his long
career at Bauwens, the Cologne-based construction company. Bernd Hasse has an inter-
national degree in business administration and completed a postgraduate course in property
economy (EBS). He is a German citizen.
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Bruno Birrer
Chief Operating Officer

Mirco Riondato
Chief Investment Officer

Dr. Marcel Kucher
Chief Information Officer

Bernd Hasse
Managing Director of the Peach Property Group Germany

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger
Chief Executive Officer, member of the Board of Directors

Ruedi Adler
Chief Financial Officer
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4.2 Other activities and outside interests
With the exception of the functions mentioned under 4.1, the members of the executive man-
agement engage in no other activities and outside interests.

4.3 Management contracts
Peach Property Group AG has not concluded any management activities with third parties.

5. Remuneration, participations and loans
5.1 Content and determination method of remuneration and participation schemes
The remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors and of the executive manage-
ment is reviewed and fixed annually by the Board of Directors, based on the nomination and
compensation committee’s recommendations. The remuneration report is put to the vote at
the General Meeting each year.
The remuneration of the Board of Directors consisted of a fixed remuneration of 60,000 CHF
for individual members and 80,000 CHF for the chairman in the financial year 2011. As a result
of his operational function, Thomas Wolfensberger waived compensation for his work as a
member of the Board of Directors.
From the financial year 2011, remuneration of the Board of Directors for non-executive mem-
bers consists of a fixed payment that is based on the activity of the Board in a modular way. A
market comparison drawn up by the nomination and compensation committee as well as the
job profiles of individual members form the basis for this compensation. The remuneration ap-
proach adopted by eight Swiss real estate companies listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange was
used as a benchmark for these market comparisons. The payment is made up of a basic remu-
neration of 40,000 CHF per annum plus a fixed additional payment for participating on a board
committee (20,000 CHF for members, 25,000 CHF for the chairman). The chairman of the
Board of Directors receives remuneration of 20,000 CHF for his work on the committees.
Members of the Board of Directors can receive a portion of their compensation, up to a maxi-
mum of 40%, in the form of vested shares in the company. The number of shares is determined
based on the average stock market price five days before and five days after the annual media
and analysts’ conference less a 20% reduction for the vesting period. Shares issued in such
a way are vested for a three-year period from the day of issue. The portion of the Board
member’s fee not taken in the form of shares as well as compensation for activities on the
committees are paid out in cash at the end of the year. Board members do not receive any
variable, success- and/or performance-based compensation.
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The purpose of this structure is to ensure that compensation for Board members is commen-
surate with the work and responsibility involved. Share-based compensation is designed to
foster a sense of belonging and commitment to Peach Property Group AG and is geared to
the company’s long-term success. No other share participation or stock option plans exist
for Board members apart from the aforementioned system of compensation.
The remuneration of the executive management is divided into a fixed payment and a variable
payment. The variable payment is dependent on the result of Peach Property Group AG as
measured based on its operating income (EBIT) as well as the attainment of quantitative and
qualitative targets set on an individual basis. These targets depend on the remit of each mem-
ber of the executive management and the amount of work required. The maximum variable
payment is limited to 200% of the fixed remuneration.
Members of the executive management are, in addition, included in the employee share par-
ticipation and stock option plan. The allocation of options with a vesting period of four years
ensures that the long-term, sustainable success of the company also constitutes an impor-
tant criterion for the remuneration of the executive management. Further information can be
found in Section 5.4 “Employee share participation and stock option plan”.
There are no arrangements entitling the members of the executive management to special
compensation in the event of a termination of employment. Termination is usually subject to
a three-month notice period during which the salary continues to be paid. The CEO is the only
member of the executive management with a six-month notice period.

5.2 Remuneration of the Board of Directors and executive management
The members of the Board of Directors received the following remuneration for the financial
year 2011:

1 As of the General Meeting 2011
2 Up to the General Meeting 2011
3 Up to the General Meeting 2011
4 For the financial year 2011 pro rata temporis
5 Incl. 93,000 CHF (75,000 EUR) agency fees relating to the bond issue

Name, position Fee in cash, thousands of CHF Options granted, thousands of CHF

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 0 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 65 0

Christian Kühni, member 60 0

Dr. Christian De Prati, member 1 183 4, 5 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 3 0 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 2 67 0
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The members of the executive management received the following remuneration for the
financial year 2011:

1 Incl. employer contributions to pension fund
2 There is no annual allocation of options. Following the IPO, the option plan is no longer effective.

Further information can be found in the Notes to the financial statements, section 38.
3 Up to 30 September 2011
4 As of 1 September 2011

5.3 Shareholding of the Board of Directors and executive management
As of 31 December 2011, the members of the Board of Directors (excluding Dr. Thomas
Wolfensberger) owned 100,000 shares representing 2.06% of the total number of shares in
the company.

As of 31 December 2011, the members of the executive management (including Dr. Thomas
Wolfensberger) owned 880,250 shares representing 18.1% of the total number of shares in the
company.

Name, position Fixed salary compo-
nent (cash) 1,

thousands of CHF

Variable salary
component (cash),
thousands of CHF

Options 2

thousands of
CHF

Total
thousands of

CHF

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 686 380 0 1,066

Ruedi Adler, CFO 209 60 81 350

Bruno Birrer, COO 215 30 65 310

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO 3 288 38 66 392

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 238 95 53 386

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 4 114 0 0 114

Bernd Hasse, Managing Director Peach Germany 204 130 0 334

Name, position Number of shares

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100,000

Peter E. Bodmer, member 0

Christian Kühni, member 0

Dr. Christian De Prati, member 0

Name, position Number of shares

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 859,250

Ruedi Adler, CFO 0

Bruno Birrer, COO 21,000

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 0

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 0

Bernd Hasse, Managing Director Peach Germany 0
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5.4 Employee share participation and stock option plan
The company introduced an employee share participation and stock option plan in 2008. The
purpose of this plan is to provide an incentive for its participants to contribute to the long-
term success and growth of Peach Property Group AG and to hire and retain the most com-
petent employees. Since the IPO, no more options have been allocated as the option plan is
being revised. The Board of Directors has not yet definitively adopted a new option plan.
So far, 679,500 options have been granted to advisors, members of the Board of Directors and
employees as a reward for their contribution in the past and/or as an incentive for the future.
Options have also been granted based on individual consultancy agreements and not based
on the employee share participation and stock option plan.
In accordance with the employee share participation and stock option plan, the options are
granted free of charge and the issue price corresponds to the nominal value of the shares
allocated for the options. The subscription ratio is 1:1 or one option entitles the holder to obtain
one share.
According to the plan, the options vest over a period of four years (i.e. 25% of the allocated
options vest per year). The options are non-transferrable.
As of 31 December 2011, 62,000 options which have not yet been exercised are held by em-
ployees and executive management; this is equivalent to nominal capital of 62,000 CHF.
Of these 62,000 options, 47,750 can be exercised and the remaining 14,250 will vest in the
course of the respective remaining vesting period. Additional information on the option plan
can be found in Note 38 to the financial statements.

As of 31 December 2011, the members of the executive management held the following
number of options:

As of 31 December 2011, no member of the Board of Directors held any options.

Name, position Number of options

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 0

Ruedi Adler, CFO 20,000

Bruno Birrer, COO 4,000

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 10,000

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 0

Bernd Hasse, Managing Director Peach Germany 0
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6. Shareholders’ rights to participate
6.1 Limitation and representation of voting rights
The right to participate in the General Meeting can only be exercised by those entered in
the shareholder register.
The Board of Directors may refuse the entry of registered shares if and for as long as recogni-
tion of the transferee as a shareholder has the potential of preventing the company from pro-
viding proof of Swiss control, as required by Federal law (in particular the Authorisation Act)
and on the basis of information available to the company.
At a General Meeting, shareholders may be represented based on a written power of attorney
by a proxy who does not have to be a shareholder, by a representative officer, an independent
proxy nominated by the company or a custodian bank representative.
The information below contains extracts from the articles of association of Peach Property
Group AG. The full versions of the articles of association and the Code of Obligations are
available on the website www.peachestates.com under “Investor Relations”.

6.2 Statutory quorums
The articles of association of Peach Property Group AG do not provide for any specific
quorums that go beyond the legal provisions relating to the passing of shareholders’ reso-
lutions (Art. 703 and 704 CO).

6.3 Convening a General Meeting
Under Swiss law, an annual General Meeting must be held within six months of the end of a
company’s financial year.
General Meetings are convened in writing at least 20 days prior to the date of such meetings,
stating the items to be discussed and the motions proposed, to all shareholders entered in
the shareholder register.
The Board of Directors is further required to convene extraordinary General Meetings if
resolved at a General Meeting, requested by the statutory auditors or in writing by shareholders
representing shares with a nominal value of at least 10% of the company’s share capital.

6.4 Request for inclusion of agenda items
Shareholders representing shares with a nominal value of at least 1 million CHF have the right
to request the inclusion of business items to be discussed and voted upon at the next Gen-
eral Meeting. This request must be submitted at least 20 days before the date of the General
Meeting.
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6.5 Entry in shareholder register
Shareholders registered in the shareholder register as shareholders with voting rights on the
cut-off date designated by the Board of Directors are entitled to participate in the General
Meeting and exercise their voting right at such meetings.

7. Changes of control and defence measures
7.1 Mandatory tender offer
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SESTA, a person who acquires shares in a com-
pany listed in Switzerland, whether directly, indirectly or acting in concert with third parties,
which, when added to the shares already held in the company, exceed the threshold of
33⅓% of the company’s voting rights (whether exercisable or not), must make an offer to
acquire all of the listed shares in this company.
The company’s articles of association do not provide for any easing or exemption from
the obligation to make a public tender offer in accordance with Art. 32 and 52 SESTA (no “opt-
ing up” or “opting out” clause).

7.2 Change of control clauses
There are no preferential contractual agreements for members of the Board of Directors and
executive management in the event of a change in the majority in the company.

8. Auditors
8.1 Term of mandate and term of lead auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers AG has been Peach Property Group AG’s statutory auditor and
group auditor since the financial year 2006. The auditor is elected annually by the General
Meeting.
Mr. Willy Wenger has been the lead auditor since 2006.

8.2 Auditing fees
Peach Property Group AG is expecting to make a total payment of 406,000 CHF to Price-
waterhouseCoopers for services relating to the statutory audit.

8.3 Additional fees
A total payment of 265,000 CHF was made to PricewaterhouseCoopers AG for consulting
and transaction services relating to the bond issue. A further 39,000 CHF in fees was also paid
to PWC.
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8.4 Monitoring and control instruments vis-à-vis the auditor
One of the tasks of the Board of Directors’ audit and risk committee is to regularly and effec-
tively monitor the effectiveness, activities and reports of the external auditor. It evaluates the
scope of the auditor’s work as well as the relevant procedures and discusses the audit results
with the external auditors. The auditor’s representatives attend audit and risk committee
meetings at least once a year, specifically to discuss the annual report, where they explain
their activities and are available to answer questions.
The Board of Directors’ audit and risk committee assesses the performance, fees and independ-
ence of the external auditor on an annual basis (see 3.5). Based on its recommendation, the Board
of Directors makes a proposal to the General Meeting regarding the choice of external auditor.

9. Information policy
Peach Property Group AG provides information to its shareholders and the capital market in
an open, timely and transparent manner. Financial reporting takes the form of annual and half-
yearly reports. These are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law and the provisions of the SIX Swiss Exchange.
Price-relevant facts are published in accordance with the obligation relating to ad hoc
publicity pursuant to Art. 72 of the Listing Rules. Ad hoc notices are sent to interested parties
on request by e-mail. Interested parties can subscribe and unsubscribe via the website www.
peachestates.com under “Investor Relations”. The website also contains further information
on the Company, which is updated regularly

Contacts
Peach Property Group AG
Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger
Chief Executive Officer

Bruno Birrer
Chief Operating Officer

Tel. +41 44 485 50 00
investors@peachestates.com

Important dates
General Meeting: 11 May 2012 in Zurich
Publication of half-year results for 2012: 23 August 2012
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Report of the statutory auditor

to the general meeting of

Peach Property Group AG

Zurich

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Peach Property Group

AG, which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive

income, consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of

changes in shareholders’ equity and notes to the consolidated financial statements (pages 108 to 173),

for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated

financial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and

the requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining

an internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of

Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards as well as

the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial state-

ments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the

internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasona-

bleness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidat-

ed financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-

priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 give a true

and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with

the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, Birchstrasse 160, Postfach, CH-8050 Zurich, Switzerland
Telephone: +41 58 792 44 00, Facsimile: +41 58 792 44 10, www.pwc.ch

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances
incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers AG

Willy Wenger Roberto Bumann

Audit expert Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Zurich, 2 April 2012

Report of the Statutory Auditor
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CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

In thousands of CHF Note 2011 2010

Income from property development 6 12,101 44,926

Income from lease of investment properties 7 690 0

Net change in fair value of investment properties 19 3,328 2,335

Other operating income 8 3,560 37,164

Operating income 19,679 84,425

Expenses from property development 6 –12,040 –44,716

Expenses from lease of investment properties 7 –206 0

Personnel expenses 9 –6,809 –5,895

Sales and marketing expenses 10 –2,568 –2,157

Other operating expenses 11 –9,873 –10,108

Depreciation and amortisation 20/21 –143 –207

Operating expenses –31,639 –63,083

Operating result –11,960 21,342

Financial income 12 1,574 3,592

Financial expenses 12 –4,017 –6,841

Share of loss from associates and joint ventures 23 –255 –51

Result before income taxes –14,658 18,042

Income taxes 13 3,521 –71

Result for the year –11,137 17,971

Result attributable to:

– Owners of the parent –11,137 17,998

– Non-controlling interest 0 –27

Basic earnings/(loss) per share in CHF 32 –2.31 6.17

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share in CHF 32 –2.31 6.03

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

In thousands of CHF Note 2011 2010

Result for the year –11,137 17,971

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences 31 –907 –6,704

Other comprehensive income for the year –907 –6,704

Total comprehensive income for the year –12,044 11,267

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent –12,044 11,294

Non-controlling interest 0 –27

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated
Income statement

Consolidated statement of
Comprehensive Income
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CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

Assets

In thousands of CHF Notes 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 14 14,398 31,122

Trade receivables 15 4,882 2,121

Other receivables 16 17,683 9,388

Prepaid expenses 17 645 515

Development properties 18 153,423 147,563

Total current assets 191,031 190,709

Non-current assets

Investment properties 19 21,605 7,454

Equipment 20 258 332

Intangible assets 21 53 41

Long-term receivables 22 1,478 1,478

Investments in associates and joint ventures 23 9,153 9,695

Retirement benefit assets 35 0 101

Deferred tax assets 34 5,494 2,600

Total non-current assets 38,041 21,701

Total assets 229,072 212,410

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Liabilities

In thousands of CHF Notes 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 24 3,653 2,882

Advances from clients 25 7,963 3,312

Other payables 26 4,501 2,869

Accrued expenses 27 3,498 2,336

Current income tax liabilities 13 2,096 2,683

Current mortgages 28 76,251 64,072

Current loans 29 4,064 217

Current provisions 30 2,732 679

Total current liabilities 104,758 79,050

Non-current liabilities

Non-current mortgages 28 10,068 0

Non-current loans 29 10,249 10,700

Non-current provisions 30 2,311 2,818

Retirement benefit obligations 35 15 0

Deferred tax liabilities 34 6,437 7,365

Total non-current liabilities 29,080 20,883

Total liabilities 133,838 99,933

Equity

Share capital 31 4,852 4,844

Treasury shares 31 –1,128 –485

Share premium 31 67,461 72,273

Other reserves 31 2,991 3,650

Retained earnings 31 21,058 32,195

95,234 112,477

Total shareholders’ equity 95,234 112,477

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 229,072 212,410

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated
Balance Sheet



112

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

In thousands of CHF Notes 2011 2010

Profit before income taxes –14,658 18,042

Adjustments for:

– Depreciation and amortisation 20/21 143 207

– Net change in fair value of investment properties 19 –3,328 –2,335

– Impairment of receivables 15 –25 42

– Gain from the acquisition of “Am Zirkus 1” 33 0 –10,534

– Gain from the disposal of Beach House AG 33 0 –19,507

– Foreign exchange loss 12 1,268 2,868

– Interest income 12 –1,070 –1,198

– Interest expenses 12 1,771 1,579

– Change in retirement benefit asset/obligation 35 116 –30

– Other non-cash effective items –880 1,641

– Share of loss of associates and joint ventures 23 255 51

– Share-based compensation 9 248 1,596

– Changes in provisions 30 1,558 –669

Changes in working capital

– Trade receivables –2,767 29,263

– Other receivables –8,378 –16,220

– Prepaid expenses 911 3,486

– Development properties –8,791 –1,841

– Accounts payables 836 –9,427

– Advances from clients 4,723 –1,787

– Other payables 3,242 3,470

– Accrued expenses 25 –2,770

– Interest paid –616 –234

– Income taxes paid –562 0

Net cash generated from operating activities –25,979 –4,307

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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In thousands of CHF Notes 2011 2010

Purchases of equipment 20 –52 –84

Purchases of intangible assets 21 –31 –5

Acquisition of a share in Beach House AG, an associated company 23/33 –11 0

Interest received 20 10

Disposal of a share in Beach House AG, an associated company 33 0 25

Purchases of investment properties 19 –11,012 0

Cash flow from investment activities –11,086 –54

Proceeds from current loans 28/29 13,051 12,171

Repayment of current loans 28/29 0 –47,239

Proceeds from non-current loans 28/29 10,703 10,477

Proceeds from issuance of bond 28/29 4,969 0

Costs associated with issuance of bond 28/29 –1,538 0

Purchases of bonds issued 28/29 –606 0

Repayment of non-current loans 28/29 –594 –8,620

Purchases of treasury shares 31 –1,389 –661

Proceeds from disposal of treasury shares 31 746 176

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 31 8 68,752

Costs associated with issuance of shares 31 0 –4,204

Dividends paid 31 –4,812 0

Cash flow from financing activities 20,538 30,852

Increase/(decrease) in cash –16,527 26,491

Cash at the beginning of the year 14 31,122 4,879

Exchange losses on cash –197 –248

Cash at the end of the year 14 14,398 31,122

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated
statement of Cash Flows



114

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

attributable to equity holders of the company

In thousands of CHF Share
capital

Treasury
shares

Share
premium

Other
reserves

Retained
earnings

Total Non-controlling
interest

Total

Balance at 1 January 2010 2,356 0 9,526 8,758 14,197 34,837 36 34,873

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year 17,998 17,998 –27 17,971

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Currency translation differences 31 –6,704 –6,704 –6,704

Taxes 0

Total other comprehensive income
for the year 0 0 0 –6,704 0 –6,704 0 –6,704

Total comprehensive income
for the year 0 0 0 –6,704 17,998 11,294 –27 11,267

Transactions with owners

Capital increase 31 2,488 62,747 65,235 65,235

Share-based compensation 38 1,596 1,596 1,596

Transactions with non-controlling
interests 33 –9 –9

Total transactions with owners 2,488 0 62,747 1,596 0 66,831 –9 66,822

Treasury shares

Purchase of treasury shares 31 –661 –661 –661

Disposal of treasury shares 31 176 176 176

Total treasury shares 0 –485 0 0 0 –485 0 –485

Balance at 31 December 2010 4,844 –485 72,273 3,650 32,195 112,477 0 112,477

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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attributable to equity holders of the company

In thousands of CHF Share
capital

Treasury
shares

Share
premium

Other
reserves

Retained
earnings

Total Non-controlling
interest

Total

Balance at 1 January 2011 4,844 –485 72,273 3,650 32,195 112,477 0 112,477

Comprehensive income for the year

Result for the year –11,137 –11,137 –11,137

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Currency translation differences 31 –907 –907 –907

Taxes 0

Total other comprehensive income
for the year 0 0 0 –907 0 –907 0 –907

Total comprehensive income
for the year

0 0 0 –907 –11,137 –12,044 0 –12,044

Transactions with owners

Capital increase 31 8 8 8

Share-based compensation 38 248 248 248

Dividends paid –4,812 –4,812 –4,812

Transactions with non-controlling
interests 0

Total transactions with owners 8 0 –4,812 248 0 –4,556 0 –4,556

Treasury shares

Purchase of treasury shares 31 –1,389 –1,389 –1,389

Disposal of treasury shares 31 746 746 746

Total treasury shares 0 –643 0 0 0 –643 0 –643

Balance at 31 December 2011 4,852 –1,128 67,461 2,991 21,058 95,234 0 95,234

The notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated statement
of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business activities

Peach Property Group AG (Peach) is an integrated real estate

developer and investor in the luxury residential and luxury

holiday residences segments. The parent company is Peach

Property Group AG, Seestrasse 346, 8038 Zurich. Business

operations cover the entire cycle from acquisition to sale of

properties. In selected areas, Peach works together with

external partners. Peach also has high-yielding investment

properties, which are managed actively.

With respect to the development properties, Peach is only

represented in premium locations. These currently include

projects in premium locations on Lake Zurich, in Berlin,

Hamburg and Austria.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are described below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Peach Property

Group AG have been prepared in accordance with “Interna-

tional Financial Reporting Standards” (IFRS) and the Swiss

law.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements were author-

ised by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2012 and

released for issue on 2 April 2012. The report is valid subject

to approval by the Annual General Meeting on 11 May 2012.

Consolidation is based on audited financial statements of

each subsidiary with year ends 31 December.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared under

the historical cost convention and under the assumption that

the company’s ability to continue as a going-concern is not

impaired. Any departures from this principle are expressly

specified in Notes 2.2 to 2.24. This includes particularly in-

vestment properties which are recorded at fair value.

For financial statements in accordance with IFRS, manage-

ment is required to exercise its judgment in the process of

applying the Group’s accounting policies. All assessments

and judgments are continuously evaluated based on histor-
ical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that seem reasonable under the given circum-

stances. Significant estimates and assumptions used for the

valuation of assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies in

the financial year 2011

Peach has adopted the following new and amended IFRS

standards and interpretations in these annual consolidated

financial statements:

— IAS 24 (revised 2009) – “Related party disclosures”

— Amendment to IAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presen-

tation” (Classification of rights issues)

— IFRIC 19 – “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity

instruments”

— IFRIC 14 – IAS 19 – “Limits on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction”

— Annual improvements 2010

The adoption of the new and amended standards and inter-

pretations had no significant impact on these consolidated

financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards have been published but are not effective

yet and were not early adopted in these consolidated finan-

cial statements. The expected impact on these consolidated

financial statements of Peach Property Group has not been

systematically analysed. The impact disclosed in the table

below is just a first assessment from management.



Peach Property Group
Annual Report 2011

Financial statements

117

Standard/Interpretation Date effective Impact Time of adoption

Amendments to IFRS 7 – Financial instruments:
disclosures: transfer of financial assets

1 July 2011 1 Financial year 2012

Amendments to IAS 12 – Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets 1 July 2012 1 Financial year 2012

IFRS 9 – Financial instruments 1 January 2015 3 Financial year 2015

IFRS 10 – Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013 1 Financial year 2013

IFRS 11 – Joint arrangements 1 January 2013 1 Financial year 2013

IFRS 12 – Disclosures of interests in other entities 1 January 2013 2 Financial year 2013

IFRS 13 – Fair value measurement 1 January 2013 2 Financial year 2013

IAS 27 – Separate financial statements 1 January 2013 1 Financial year 2013

IAS 28 – Associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013 1 Financial year 2013

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of items of other comprehensive income” 1 July 2012 2 Financial year 2013

Amendments to IAS 19 – Employee benefits 1 January 2013 3 Financial year 2013

1 No significant impact on the consolidated financial statements expected for Peach.
2 Will require additional disclosures or changes in the presentation of the consolidated financial statements for Peach.
3 Impact on the consolidated financial statements for Peach cannot be sufficiently assessed yet.

Changes in presentation

Peach believes that the information content for readers of the

financial statements can be improved, if sales and marketing

expenses are separately presented from other operating

expenses in the consolidated income statement. This change

in presentation has no impact on profit or loss and equity.

Comparative prior-period information has been adjusted

accordingly in the consolidated income statement. The same

amounts presented now separately as sales and marketing

expenses were included within other operating expenses in

last year’s consolidated financial statements.

Marketing expenses include costs, which are directly attrib-

utable to a development property. Sales expenses are sales

provisions, which become due upon closing of the registered

purchase agreement but before transfer of ownership. Sales

and marketing expenses are directly recorded in the income

statement when the costs are incurred.

2.2 Consolidation

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies. Control

is generally assumed to exist if Peach owns a shareholding of

more than one half of the voting rights. Control means the

ability to take decisions over the company’s financial and op-

erational business in order to be able to derive the resulting

benefit. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group and deconsolidated

from the date on which control has ceased. Accounting pol-

icies of subsidiaries have been changed, where necessary, to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group,

effective at the date on which control was transferred. Inter-

company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on

transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for

the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an

acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,

equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed

at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the

acquisition. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as in-

curred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contin-

gent liabilities assumed in a business combination are meas-

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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ured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irre-

spective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The

excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the

Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is

recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is lower than

the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net

assets acquired, the difference is directly recorded in other

income. The accounting treatment of goodwill is explained

in the intangible assets section.

b) Transactions and non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests

as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For pur-

chases from non-controlling interests, the difference

between any consideration paid and the relevant share

acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary

is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

c) Joint ventures and associated companies

Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted

for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity

method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the

carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the

investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the

date of acquisition. The group’s investment in associates

includes goodwill identified on acquisition. The group’s share

of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income

statement from the date of acquisition. Dividends received

from joint ventures and associates are deducted from the

investment.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the

Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pri-

mary economic environment in which the entity operates

(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial state-

ments are presented in Swiss Francs (CHF), which is also

Peach Property Group AG’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the func-

tional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the

dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities held

in foreign currency are converted in the accounts at the

period end exchange rate. Foreign exchange gains and

losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions

and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of mon-

etary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that

have a functional currency different from the Group’s presen-

tation currency are translated into the presentation currency

according to the modified closing date method as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

(equity is translated at historic rates); income and expenses

for each income statement are translated at average ex-

change rates, and all resulting exchange differences are rec-

ognised in other comprehensive income within equity until

disposal.

Foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of

the net investment in foreign operations are taken to other

comprehensive income.

The following exchange rates were applied for the trans-

lations mentioned above:

in EUR 2011 2010

Closing rate 1.22 1.25

Average rate 1.23 1.38

2.4 Revenue recognition

The income from property development comprises income

from sales of development projects as well as income from

the sale of constructed development properties. Revenues

are recorded in accordance with IAS 18, i.e. when risks and

rewards are transferred. For self-constructed development

properties, revenues are recorded when construction of the

sold units has been completed. Costs of development prop-

erties incurred are capitalized and reversed to expenses from

property development at the time the sale is recognised.
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Marketing and sales costs are expensed in the income state-

ment as incurred. This leads to a situation in which costs for

objects sold are incurred, whereas revenue recognition from

the transaction has to be recorded in the income statement

at a later date – upon transfer of risks and rewards of the resi-

dential property to the buyer.

For general contracting and construction activities, client-

specific contracts are recorded by applying the percentage

of completion method. Client-specific contracts are sales

agreements, where the buyer is able to determine the major

structural elements of the design of the real estate before

construction begins or specify major structural changes once

construction is in progress. Income from client-specific con-

tracts for services rendered during the year is recorded in

relation to the contract costs incurred during the financial

year compared to the total estimated contract costs. Ex-

pected future project losses are recognised in the assess-

ment of a contract and charged to the income statement

immediately after they become apparent. On the other hand,

additional services, price overruns and premiums are recog-

nised in the assessment of a contract as soon as they are

accepted by the client.

Any reduction in revenue, such as rebates or discounts, re-

lated directly to the services rendered, is deducted from

income.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash

at banks. They are disclosed at nominal values.

2.6 Trade receivables and other receivables

Receivables resulting from construction activities for third

parties are included in trade receivables. Advance payments

made by the principals are offset as advances with the devel-

opment properties.

Trade receivables and other receivables are accounted for at

nominal values less provision for impairment. The fair value of

receivables approximates the nominal value less provision

for impairment.

2.7 Development properties

Development properties include the construction of existing

buildings as well as the construction of new buildings. For such

projects, Peach is normally developing the properties as well

as placing the properties on the market.

Land not yet developed is valued at acquisition costs or at

market value, if lower. Project costs for which Peach acts as

the developer due to contractual obligations, but where no

sales contract or no general contract agreement has been

signed yet, are recorded at cost. Project costs contain third-

party services as well as internally provided services. Inter-

nally provided services are capitalised, when sufficient posi-

tive cash flows are expected from the respective develop-

ment properties.

Borrowing costs incurred for funds borrowed specifically for

items of development properties are capitalised with the

actual amount incurred. Borrowing costs incurred for funds

borrowed to support general operations are capitalised pro

rata according to their proportionate relation to items of

development properties.

Costs related to projects where there is a signed sales con-

tract or general contract agreement, are recorded in the

income statement when the development property has been

sold and completed.

For client-specific contracts, i.e. contracts where the buyer is

able to determine the major structural elements of the design

of the real estate before construction begins or specify major

structural changes once construction is in progress, con-

tract revenue and contract costs are recognised as revenue

and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of com-

pletion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date

(percentage of completion method). Application of the per-

centage of completion method requires that the project

costs can be estimated reliably and the project is expected to

be profitable. Where it is probable that total contract costs

will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is rec-

ognised as an expense immediately. The stage of completion

is measured as the percentage of contract costs incurred for

work performed to balance sheet date compared to the esti-

mated total contract costs. The calculation is prepared for

each individual project and is based on the estimated final

outcome.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements



120

2.8 Investment property

Self-constructed or purchased residential and business

premises that are retained and managed over a longer period

are recognised separately as investment property in ac-

cordance with IAS 40.

Investment property is initially recognised at acquisition

costs including directly attributable transaction costs. Sub-

sequent reassessment is prepared in accordance with the

fair value model. Investment properties are assessed at least

once per year by an independent real estate expert. The valu-

ation is made according to the discounted cash flow method

(DCF method). Changes in the fair value are recognised in the

income statement. The resulting deferred tax liabilities or tax

assets are charged or credited to the income statement as

tax expenses or income, respectively.

2.9 Equipment

Equipment is recorded at historical cost less accumulated

depreciations and any accumulated impairment losses. Sub-

sequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or

recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it

is probable that the Group will profit from future economic

benefits associated with the item and that the cost of the item

can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of replaced

parts is derecognised. All other cost for equipment is record-

ed in the income statement.

Depreciations are recorded on a straight-line basis over the

assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An

asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.

Fixtures 10 years

Furniture 5 years

IT equipment 3 years

Vehicles 4 years

Other equipment 5 years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognised in the income statement. Equipment is derecog-

nised at the time of disposal or if it is determined that no

future economic benefits associated with the item are ex-

pected to flow to the entity.

2.10 Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition

over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable

assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the pur-

pose of impairment testing. Goodwill is tested annually for im-

pairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains

and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying

amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the

basis of the costs incurred to acquire and implement specific

software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis

over their estimated useful lives of five years.

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business

combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition

date and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation.

2.11 Long-term receivables

Contingent consideration from an acquisition is classified in

long-term receivables. The valuation is made according to a

probability-weighted approach considering a corresponding

discount rate at every balance sheet date. The selling price to

be achieved is determined on the basis of various scenarios.

2.12 Impairment of equipment and intangible assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for im-

pairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indi-

cate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If such

indicators exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is deter-

mined by means of an impairment test. The recoverable

amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell

and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing impair-
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ment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which

the asset’s (or the cash-generating units) carrying amount

exceeds its recoverable amount.

Non-financial assets, with the exception of goodwill, that suf-

fered an impairment loss in the past are reviewed for a pos-

sible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

At the end of each reporting period, the existing amount of

the development properties valued at acquisition or con-

struction cost is subject to an impairment test. Therefore, the

fair value less costs to sell comprised of the estimated selling

price less additional foreseeable construction and selling

costs, will be assessed. In addition to the estimates made by

the entity itself, appraisal reports by an independent property

surveyor are obtained by Peach. Valuations are carried out

according to the DCF method. An impairment loss is recog-

nised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds

the fair value less costs to sell.

2.13 Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables which are due within

one year are disclosed at their nominal values. The fair value

of such liabilities approximates their nominal value.

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred and subsequently valued at

amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net

of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recog-

nised in the income statement over the period of the bor-

rowings using the effective interest method.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recorded if:

— the Group has a present legal or constructive obliga-

tion as a result of past events;

— it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation; and

— the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision represents the best

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation,

taking into account any significant risks and uncertainties.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expendi-

tures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

2.16 Current and deferred income taxes

Income taxes include current and deferred income taxes. In-

come taxes are recorded in the income statement, except for

income tax on transactions directly recorded in other com-

prehensive income or directly in equity. In such cases, in-

come tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated as the expected

income tax due on the relevant taxable income. The calcula-

tion is based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enact-

ed at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance

sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising be-

tween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,

deferred income tax is not accounted for on temporary differ-

ences arising in the following cases: the initial recognition of

goodwill, the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction other than a business combination that at the

time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable

profit or loss, and investments in subsidiaries, if it is probable

that the temporary difference will not reverse in the fore-

seeable future. Deferred income tax is determined using tax

rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially en-

acted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income tax

assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
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that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income

taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by

the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or

different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

For retained profits of subsidiaries, associates or interests in

joint ventures that cannot be transferred without tax conse-

quences, a deferred income tax liability is recognised, if a

transfer of profits is planned in the foreseeable future.

2.17 Pension plan

Group companies operate various pension schemes, which

are operated by independent pension funds. These schemes

are generally funded through payments by employer and em-

ployees. Funds of pension schemes are managed separately

and independently from the Group. The Group has both de-

fined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined contri-

bution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays

fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no

legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions

if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employ-

ees the benefits relating to employee service in the current

and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan

that is not a defined contribution plan. All employees in Ger-

many are covered by a public defined contribution plan.

Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH does not offer

a company-specific solution. Employer’s contributions are

paid into the statutory regulated pension fund. Employees

have no direct entitlements towards the employer. Conse-

quently no provision is recorded for such obligations. Based

on the specific characteristics, Peach Property Group AG’s

employee benefit plan for Swiss employees is considered

to be a defined benefit plan in accordance with IAS 19.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet in respect of

defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the

defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the balance sheet date

less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments

for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service

costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at least

annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit

credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obli-

gation is determined by discounting the estimated future

cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate

bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the

benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approxi-

mating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjust-

ments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or

credited to income over the employees’ expected average

remaining working lives if they are in excess of the greater of

10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit

obligation of the prior year.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income

statement, unless the changes to the pension plan are condi-

tional on the employees remaining in service for a specified

period of time (vesting period). In this case, the past service

costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting

period.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised

as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid

contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that

a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments can be

expected.
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2.18 Share capital

The share capital is comprised of all issued registered shares.

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial

statements in the period in which the dividends are approved

by the company’s shareholders. Transaction costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares are immediately de-

ducted, net of tax, from share premium.

2.19 Treasury shares

Treasury shares are deducted at their acquisition cost or

market value, if lower, from share capital (purchase price and

directly attributable transaction costs).

2.20 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are measured at their fair

value. Changes in fair value are recorded in the income state-

ment. Hedge accounting is not applied. Derivative financial

instruments can be used in the normal course of the business

to hedge market risks (interest rate risk).

2.21 Leasing

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards

of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operat-

ing leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any

incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Peach does not enter into any agreements that could be inter-

preted to be a finance lease as per definition in IAS 17.

2.22 Share option plan

In view of a planned initial public offering (IPO), the Board of

Directors introduced an employee share option plan in 2008.

It represents an additional component of total compensation

in the form of grants of shares at reduced prices. Since the

IPO took place in November 2010, the Board of Directors has

not yet adopted a new share option plan.

The costs of the share option plan are recognised over the

length of the vesting period to personnel expenses (Note 9),

with a corresponding credit to equity. The vesting period is

the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions

are to be satisfied and after which the employee holds an

unconditional right to the granted share options. The fair

value of the share options equals their intrinsic value at the

date of grant (Grant Date Fair Value). The enterprise value is

calculated based on a discounted cash flow (DCF) valuation

approach. Not included in the fair value calculation are vest-

ing conditions. Vesting conditions are included in the assump-

tions about the number of options that are expected to vest.

Impacts of the revision to original estimates, if any, are im-

mediately recognised in personnel expenses with a corre-

sponding adjustment to equity.

Two consultants advised Peach with respect to the IPO. For

these services, they were compensated with share options.

The exercise price was set at CHF 0.275 (according to a re-

verse split of CHF 27.50). Compensation costs were recog-

nised over the vesting period through personnel expenses

with a corresponding credit entry in equity. Compensation

costs are measured at fair value at the date of grant, using

the Black-Scholes model.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new

shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attribut-

able transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.23 Earnings per share

Basic earnings or loss per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.
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Diluted earnings or loss per share is calculated by adjusting the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to as-

sume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The

company’s share options have a dilutive effect on earnings per

share. To calculate the impact for the share options, the average

number of options outstanding and the average fair value per

share are decisive.

2.24 Segment reporting

IFRS 8 requires the determination of segments as well as the

presentation of segment information to be based on the same

information used internally by management (management

approach). IFRS 8 defines an operating segment as a compo-

nent of an entity that engages in business activities from which

it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating re-

sults are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating de-

cision maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for

which discrete financial information is available. Development

and management of properties is the only operating segment

of the Peach Group. A detailed description of the operating

segment is included in Note 5.

3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

Due to its international business activities, the Group is ex-

posed to various financial risks: market risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk.

The principles and compliance of risk management is moni-

tored by the Audit and Risk Committee as well as the Board of

Directors. Risk management focuses on the identification,

description, management, monitoring and control of risks of

defaults, interest rates, foreign currencies and liquidity.

Market risks

a) Foreign exchange risk

Due to its international activities, the Group is exposed to cur-

rency risks, mostly associated to changes in the foreign ex-

change rate of the euro. Foreign currency risks arise from future

commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and

net investments in foreign operations.

Peach reduces its foreign exchange risk by matching income

with expenses denominated in the same currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose

net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.

Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s

foreign operations is managed primarily through borrowings

denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.

At 31 December 2011, the Peach Group had total financial as-

sets of thousand EUR 17,064, which equals thousand CHF

20,768 (prior year: thousand EUR 5,374, which equals thousand

CHF 6,701), and financial liabilities of thousand EUR 68,134,

which equals thousand CHF 82,926 (prior year: thousand EUR

44,123, which equals thousand CHF 55,012).

In the event of a 5% movement of the EUR against the CHF, as-

suming that all other variables remain constant, the net financial

liabilities in EUR would change by 5%. If the EUR had strength-

ened by 5%, a negative impact of thousand CHF 3,108 (prior

year: thousand CHF 1,845) would have resulted, while a weaken-

ing of the EUR by 5% would have resulted in a positive impact

of thousand CHF 3,108 (prior year: thousand CHF 1,845). A

strengthening of the EUR by 10% would have a negative impact

of thousand CHF 6,216 (prior year: thousand CHF 3,523), while

a weakening of the EUR by 10% has a positive impact of thou-

sand CHF 6,216 (prior year: thousand CHF 3,523).

The Group’s net debts in EUR include mainly financial liabilities

(mortgages) of the German project companies. These compa-

nies have the EUR as their functional currency. Consequently

investments as well as income and expenses are recorded in

EUR. Assets and liabilities of the German project companies are

translated at the foreign exchange rate that applies at the bal-

ance sheet date, equity is translated at the historic exchange

rate and income and expenses are translated at the average

exchange rate. A translation difference from application of the

year-end exchange rate and the average exchange rate is re-

corded in other comprehensive income within equity. Conse-
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quently, an increase or decrease in the EUR would have no sig-

nificant impact on the income statement.

Management assumes that, based on the current foreign cur-

rency situation and due to the interventions in the foreign cur-

rency market by the Swiss National bank, no significant change

of the EUR against the CHF can be expected.

b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is deemed to be low. Interest

rates are mostly related to interest paid for development

properties which is being capitalised. Mortgages on invest-

ment properties bear different terms. Peach enters into fixed-

rate mortgages as well as variable-rate mortgages, whereas

the interest rate is partially hedged by using derivative finan-

cial instruments.

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 2.00% 15,200 16,200

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 3.00% 33,961 27,580

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 3.50% 27,090 20,292

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 4.00% 10,068 0

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 6.00% 2,855 0

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 9.00% 7,459 6,917

Financial liabilites, interest rate up to 12.50% 4,000 4,000

Total interest bearing financial liabilities 100,633 74,989

Financial liabilities with interest rate up to 6.00% include

a loan payable to a related party. All financial liabilities with

interest rates from 6.00% to 12.50% are fixed-rate instru-

ments.
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Interest rate sensitivity of financial instruments

with fixed rates

Peach does not record any fixed-rate financial instruments at

fair value. Consequently, a change in interest rates would have

no impact on the statement of comprehensive income.

Interest rate sensitivity of financial instruments

with variable rates

With one exception (mortgage on investment property

“Bakery”), all variable rate financial instruments include con-

struction loans (mortgages) on development properties. An

increase or decrease of the interest rate would have no im-

pact on interest expense, but on the development properties

capitalised, as interest expenses are capitalised. The calcu-

lated total development costs include interest rates which

are 1–2.5 percentages higher than actual rates.

An increase of the interest rate by 0.5% would lead to an in-

crease in development costs of TCHF 1,113. The average

debt required until completion as well as the planned remain-

ing construction period is taken into consideration for the

properties in development. With respect to properties where

construction has not started yet, the mortgage for the land

is taken into consideration until estimated completion of the

project.

An increase in the interest rate of 0.5% for mortgages on in-

vestment properties would have a negative impact on inter-

est expenses of thousand CHF 59. The calculation is based

on carrying values of the financial instruments at the balance

sheet date.

Credit risk

Default risk is the risk that a client or a counterparty of a finan-

cial instrument is not able to pay their contractual obligations

which would result in financial loss for Peach. Default risks

are mainly related to trade receivables and cash and cash

equivalents.

To minimise default risks related to cash and cash equiva-

lents, the company has invested its short-term bank ac-

counts with top-rated, high-quality financial institutions

(Rating BBB+ to AAA).

The maximum default risk corresponds to the carrying

amounts of the individual financial assets and, at 31 Decem-

ber 2011, amounts to TCHF 36,963 (prior year: TCHF 42,631).

A detailed overview of financial instruments is provided in

Note 3.4. With the exception of the obligation described in

Note 40, there are no other guarantees or similar obligations

which could result in a loss exceeding the carrying amounts.
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Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk is the risk that Peach cannot settle its finan-

cial obligations when they fall due. The future liquidity devel-

opment is analysed by means of rolling cash flow forecasts

which are continuously updated.

The following table shows the contractual due dates of the

Group’s financial liabilities:

In thousands of CHF 0–3 months 4–6 months 7–12 months 1–2 years >3 years Total

2011

Accounts payables 3,035 351 267 3,653

Other payables 1,818 1,213 1,470 4,501

Current mortgages 15,213 63,950 79,163

Current loans 499 3,800 4,299

Accrued expenses 3,030 338 3,368

Non-current mortgages 735 11,905 12,640

Non-current loans 4,768 12,254 17,022

2010

Accounts payables 2,645 117 120 2,882

Other payables 540 187 2,142 2,869

Mortgages 18,159 4,518 15,137 30,779 68,593

Current loans 217 217

Accrued expenses 2,328 8 2,336

Non-current loans 6,605 4,095 10,700

The payment terms agreed with the lending banks are dis-

closed in the table above. Mortgages with a payment term of

1–2 years include financing costs as part of the credit line. The

payment terms of the mortgages due within 1–2 years are in

line with the development cycle of the corresponding projects.

These development properties are recorded within current as-

sets (see note 18). Generally, mortgages are due as soon as a

project is sold. The mortgage with payment term between

0 and 3 months relates, among other things, to the roll-over

loan of thousand CHF 15,200 for “Peninsula”, Wädenswil (see

Note 43). The mortgage of thousand CHF 10,068, which is

recorded within non-current mortgages, is to finance the port-

folio of the investment properties in Munster, Germany. The

mortgage has a maturity of 7 years.

Liquidity is managed by short- and medium-term liquidity

planning.
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3.2 Capital risk management

According to the investment policies of the Audit and Risk

Committee, Peach aims to attain an equity ratio of 30–40%

in the long term.

The equity ratio at 31 December 2011 and for the prior year

was calculated as follows:

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Equity 95,234 112,477

Total balance sheet 229,072 212,410

Equity ratio 42% 53%

Further information concerning equity is disclosed in Note 31.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active mar-

kets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet

date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an

active market is determined by using appropriate valuation

techniques. These may, for example, include methods such

as current transaction prices for similar instruments, quoted

market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments or dis-

counted cash flow calculations to estimate the present value

of the estimated future cash flows of a financial instrument

or other methods.

The carrying amounts less impairment provisions of trade re-

ceivables and accounts payables are assumed to approxi-

mate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for

disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that

is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet

at fair value are reported according to the following hierarchy:

— quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1);

— inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability, either dir-

ectly or indirectly (level 2);

— inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (level 3).
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3.4 Categories of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts of all finan-

cial instruments for each category:

Loans and receivables

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents 14,398 31,122

Trade receivables 4,882 2,121

Other receivables 17,683 9,388

36,963 42,631

Financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

Accounts payables 3,653 2,882

Other payables 4,501 2,869

Current mortgages 76,251 64,072

Accrued expenses 3,368 2,336

Current loans 4,064 217

Non-current mortgages 10,068 0

Non-current loans 10,249 10,700

112,154 83,076

4. Accounting estimates and assumptions

Preparation of consolidated financial statements in accord-

ance with IFRS requires the Group to make assumptions con-

cerning the future and to make certain judgements and esti-

mates, which have a direct influence on the values reported in

the balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income.

These assumptions, judgements and estimates are based on

experience values and other factors that are deemed appro-

priate under the prevailing circumstances. Assumptions are

reviewed continuously. Changes in estimates which have an

impact on the consolidated financial statements are recorded

in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in

which the estimate was adjusted.

The balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income

items where estimates and assumptions are critical and which

therefore carry a significant risk of causing a material adjust-

ment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below:

Development properties: Properties

At 31 December 2011, development properties amounted to

thousand CHF 153,423 (prior year: thousand CHF 147,563).

Through its subsidiaries, Peach owns properties for develop-

ment with a carrying amount of thousand CHF 104,873 (prior

year: thousand CHF 106,888). Thereof, thousand CHF 48,550

(prior year: thousand CHF 40,675) relate to development

costs, i.e. third-party service expenses, interest expenses

and internally provided service expenses. Properties in Swit-

zerland are measured and recorded at acquisition costs.

Properties in Germany were measured at their fair values at

the date of acquisition. By calculating the properties’ fair value

less costs to sell at the balance sheet date, the Group identi-

fies any possible impairment. If the recoverable amount is

lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the

properties would be reduced to its recoverable amount.
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Valuation of the properties in Germany was determined by

Wüest & Partner, Frankfurt am Main. Wüest & Partner mea-

sured all four projects by determining the residual value by use

of the discounted cash flow method. The residual value is the

net difference of the expected sales prices to be realised and

the expected expenses from development properties to be

incurred. The valuation was prepared at the period-end date

for all development properties.

Investment properties

The market value of the investment property at 31 December

2011 amounts to a total of thousand CHF 21,605 (prior year:

thousand CHF 7,454).

The market value is determined by use of the DCF method. All

net income expected in the future are discounted at the pres-

ent value. For rental payments, the current rent and the con-

tractual conditions are taken into consideration for the calcu-

lation. The valuation period covers 100 years from the initial

measurement. Following the expiry of the current rental

agreements, the revenue forecast is determined on the basis

of the market level taking an index of 80% into consideration.

Incoming payments are assumed to be received quarterly in

advance for commercial leases and monthly in advance for

residential leases. With regard to the owner’s operating ex-

penses, it is assumed that individual utilities statements are

recorded so that the utilities costs that are to be borne by les-

sees can be passed on appropriately. Repair and maintenance

costs take into account the current state of the property and

are determined with the help of benchmarks as well as based

on experiences and accordingly determined by the use of

valuation models. They are included into the calculation for

the first ten years in full, and from the 11th year as far as the

investments are value-preserving. The discount rate is based

on a risk-adjusted interest rate. The rate is determined start-

ing from a risk-free interest rate, and then adjusted for proper-

ty-related risk factors such as the property risk (capital immo-

bility), location and quality of the property as well as any

further adjustments. The fair value calculation at 31 Decem-

ber 2011 is based on an average discount rate of 5.0% (prior

year: 5.0%) for investment properties in Switzerland and an

average discount rate of 5.5% (prior year: no investment prop-

erties in Germany) for Germany.

A sensitivity analysis was carried out in order to test the

change in market value as a function of the discount rate. An

increase of the discount rates by 0.2% would have resulted in

a negative impact on the market value of the investment prop-

erty at 31 December 2011 by 4% or thousand CHF 945 (prior

year: 4.7% or thousand CHF 350) . Conversely, a decrease in

the discount rates of 0.2% would have resulted in an increase

in the market value of 5% or thousand CHF 1,014 (prior year:

5.08% or thousand CHF 380) . For further information please

see Note 19.

Deferred tax assets

All of Peach Property Group AG’s accumulated losses brought

forward have been capitalised. At 31 December 2011, thou-

sand CHF 5,494 (prior year: thousand CHF 2,600) in deferred

tax assets were capitalised. Management used judgement

with respect to future taxable profits in order to capitalise the

accumulated losses. In November 2011, the tax authorities of

the Canton of Zurich had performed a review of the tax returns

and accounting records of 2008 and 2009 as well as a review

of the use of tax losses for the years 2001 to 2007. The report

with the results from the extensive review is still outstanding.

Management is of the opinion that no special measures will

result from the review.
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Deferred tax liabilities and income taxes

At 31 December 2011, Peach Property Group AG has deferred

tax liabilities of thousand CHF 6,437 (prior year: thousand CHF

7,365). Thousand CHF 1,625 (prior year thousand CHF 509) of

this amount are related to the change in fair value of invest-

ment properties. In various Swiss cantons, profits from the

sale of real estate are subject to a property capital gains tax

while in Germany a speculation charge applies. The level of

this tax expense is significantly affected by the holding period

with respect to the property. For each investment property,

Peach estimates the holding period and calculates the de-

ferred tax effect accordingly. If the effective holding period

differs from the estimated period, the tax burden in the event

of the sale of a property may differ significantly from the

deferred taxes recorded.

Provision for guarantees

This provision is based on estimates and assumptions with

regard to future expenditures concerning guarantee-related

work. There are no sustainable experiences from past busi-

ness activities yet.

Retirement benefit assets/liabilities

Retirement benefit liabilities which amounted to thousand

CHF 15 (prior year: retirement benefit asset of thousand

CHF 101), is based on various factors which cannot be defined

objectively. For example, the expected long-term yield of the

employee benefit fund assets and the forecasted salary and

pension developments could change substantially due to ex-

ternal influences. In combination with the scope of interpret-

ation that needs to be applied in the determination of these

factors, the resulting changes in the pension plan obligation

may lead to significant fluctuations of the personnel expenses

disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

For further details, please see Note 35.

Net investment in a foreign operation

Due to the development and strengthening of Peach’s pres-

ence in Germany as well as further possible projects in Ger-

many in the financial period 2010, the Board of Directors

reached the conclusion that it is neither planned nor likely that

a repayment of the Group loans in Peach German Properties II

AG in relation to the acquisition of the German real estate pro-

jects in 2009 will occur in the foreseeable future. Part of the

loans will therefore be treated as net investment in a foreign

operation. In the prior year, deferred tax liabilities were booked

due to the revaluation of the loans. In the financial year 2010,

thousand CHF 2,365 of this amount was reversed. The loans

are considered as net investment in a foreign operation on the

assumption that the valuation differences are not due to tem-

porary differences, since the loans will not be repaid.

5. Segment reporting

Management has determined the operational segment on

the basis of the internal reporting to the CEO, the key deci-

sion-maker in the company.

The CEO defines business operations and oversees the inter-

nal reporting to be able to assess the performance and re-

source allocation. Peach Group has only one operational

segment, development and management of properties.

Property development includes the acquisition of land, the

development, construction and sale of property. Main oper-

ations include evaluation of property, project planning, financ-

ing as well as the sales, lease and customer management.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements



132

5.1 Revenue by country

In thousands of CHF Income from property
development

Income from lease of
investment properties

Net change in fair value
of investment properties

Other operating income

2011

Switzerland 3,558 510 194 1,491

Germany 8,543 180 3,134 2,069

Austria 0 0 0 0

Total 12,101 690 3,328 3,560

2010

Switzerland 0 0 2,335 32,702

Germany 44,926 0 0 4,462

Austria 0 0 0 0

Total 44,926 0 2,335 37,164

5.2 Non-current assets by country

In thousands of CHF Investment properties Equipment Intangible assets Investments in associates
and joint ventures

2011

Switzerland 7,648 180 44 1

Germany 13,957 78 9 9,152

Austria 0 0 0 0

Total 21,605 258 53 9,153

2010

Switzerland 7,454 245 34 1

Germany 0 87 7 9,694

Austria 0 0 0 0

Total 7,454 332 41 9,695
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6. Income and expenses from property development

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Income from general contracting activities 3,558 0

Income from sale of development properties 8,543 44,926

Total income from property development 12,101 44,926

Expenses from general contracting activities –3,172 0

Expenses related to the development of properties –7,786 –44,716

Impairment on development property –1,082 0

Total expenses from property development –12,040 –44,716

Income and expenses from sale of development properties

includes only the sold units of the development property

Chausseestrasse, Berlin. For these units, the transfer of risks

and rewards to the buyer has already taken place. Income

and expenses from general contracting activities was mainly

generated from the general contracting agreement with

Beach House AG, an associated company of the Peach Group.

The carrying value of the development property was adjusted

to the amount according to the valuation by Wüest & Partner.

This adjustment resulted in an impairment charge of thousand

CHF 1,082. For further information with respect to the devel-

opment properties refer to Note 18.

With the exception of the associated company, Beach House

AG, there was no other client or group of clients who gener-

ated more than 10% of revenues.

7. Income and expenses from lease of

investment properties

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Target rental income 700 0

Deductions (vacancies, write-offs of defaulting tenants) –10 0

Income from lease of investment properties 690 0

Expenses from lease of investment properties –206 0

Income from lease of investment properties includes mainly

rental income from the investment property “Bakery”. Since

December 2011, the Peach Property Group also has invest-

ment properties in Germany (portfolio Munster). Rental in-

come and expenses from lease of investment properties of

this portfolio are consequently included in the consolidated

financial statements only for December 2011.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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8. Other operating income

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Gain on acquisition of “Am Zirkus 1” 0 10,534

Gain on disposal of Beach House AG 0 19,507

Property income 954 1,492

Work performed by the Group and capitalised 1,282 1,668

Advisory for builder-owners 46 0

Sales provisions 473 0

Other 805 3,963

Total 3,560 37,164

Gain on the acquisition of “Am Zirkus 1” and from the disposal

of Beach House AG are explained in detail in Note 33 “Scope

of consolidation”.

Property income mainly includes revenue from commercial

and residential property. Revenue was earned mainly from

“Peninsula” in Wädenswil. These buildings are development

properties. The corresponding real estate costs without

mortgage interest are contained in other operating expenses

(see Note 11). Mortgage interest was capitalised. The “Bakery”

property at Seestrasse 26/28 in Wädenswil, which forms part

of “Peninsula”, was reclassed at 31 December 2010 to invest-

ment properties, since the criteria applicable in IAS 40 were

met (see Note 19). Since reclassification was recorded at

31 December 2010, neither rental income from investment

properties nor costs have been recognised in 2010. This

explains the decrease in property income from prior year.

Peach has received commissions from the associated com-

pany, Beach House AG, for sales services rendered.

9. Personnel expenses

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Salaries 5,387 4,506

Social security costs 574 489

Pension costs – defined benefit plans 460 259

Pension costs – defined contribution plans 70 81

Share-based compensation 248 505

Other personnel expenses 70 55

Total 6,809 5,895

Number of employees at 31 December 35 34
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10. Sales and marketing expenses

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Sales expenses 1,182 956

Marketing expenses 1,386 1,201

Total sales and marketing expenses 2,568 2,157

In 2011, Peach closed publicly notarised sales contracts in

the amount of thousand CHF 56,137. This includes sales of

development properties from subsidiaries as well as sales of

properties from associates and joint ventures. Sales of prop-

erties, for which conveyance (transfer of risks and rewards)

has already taken place, are recorded in the consolidated in-

come statement and are not included in the amount above.

11. Other operating expenses

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Fees and legal expenses 2,022 3,932

Occupancy costs 466 317

Travel and representation expenses 605 668

IT expenses 100 154

Advertisements/PR 1,778 887

Other operating expenses 4,902 4,150

Total 9,873 10,108

The amount of fees and legal expenses in 2010 was mainly

due to the acquisition of “Am Zirkus 1” and the related routine

consultancy and other services from banks and lawyers.

Most advertising expenses are due to promotional events in

Germany. Other operating expenses include administrative

costs, fees and dues as well as real estate costs. Am Zirkus 1

Berlin GmbH Co. KG and BSS Beton-System-Schalungsbau

GmbH entered into a general contracting agreement with a

contract fee amounting to thousand EUR 22,480 for the pro-

ject “Am Zirkus 1”. Various components, such as steel prices

are not included in the contract fee. In order to guarantee for

additional costs, Peach German Properties AG, a 100% sub-

sidiary of Peach Property Group AG, signed a constitutive

acknowledgement of debt which is going to be due earliest

upon final invoicing of the general contractor. Based on the

current situation, management considers payment of these

additional costs as very probable and consequently has re-

corded an expense of thousand CHF 1,419 within other oper-

ating expenses. With respect to the construction of “Am

Zirkus 1”, Sunflower Management GmbH & Co. KG as lessee

and Am Zirkus 1 Berlin GmbH & Co. KG as lessor entered into

a hotel management agreement. Milestones were defined for

the construction progress. It was defined in an addendum to

the agreement, that the ground floor incl. ceiling as part of the

foundation work is to be completed until 29 December 2011

at the latest for the entire hotel. Peach Property Group AG can

be held liable for delays. The delays which effectively oc-

curred, were due to various factors, such as issues with the

foundation soil. Based on management’s best estimate, the

maximum penalty payment of thousand EUR 800, being thou-

sand CHF 974, was recorded in 2011 within other operating

expenses.

Notes to the Consolidated
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12. Financial income and expenses

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Financial expenses

Interest expenses 1,771 1,577

Foreign exchange losses 1,772 5,262

Other financial expenses 474 2

Total 4,017 6,841

Financial income

Interest income 1,070 1,198

Foreign exchange gains 504 2,394

Total 1,574 3,592

13. Income taxes

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Current income taxes –197 –1,919

Deferred income taxes 3,718 1,848

Income taxes 3,521 –71

The income tax expense can be analysed as follows:

Profit before income taxes –14,658 18,042

Income taxes at a rate of 21.8% (2010: 21.8%) 3,195 –3,933

Effect of non-deductible share-based compensation expenses –54 –110

Effect of non-deductible share-based consultancy expenses 0 –238

Effect of gain on acquisition of subsidiaries subject to reduced taxation 0 1,401

Reversal of deferred income taxes on loans (net investments) 0 2,365

Application of different tax rates and other impacts 380 444

Income taxes 3,521 –71

The average tax rate is calculated by using the weighted ap-

plicable tax rates of the Group companies.
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14. Cash and cash equivalents

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Cash on hand 0 2

Cash at banks 14,398 31,120

Total 14,398 31,122

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of current account bal-

ances with Swiss and German banks as well as advances from

clients of thousand CHF 7,963 (prior year: thousand CHF 3,312).

Advances from clients are transferred to the financing bank to

settle ongoing repayment of loans. There are bank guarantees

of thousand CHF 6,164 (prior year: thousand CHF 949) with re-

spect to purchase price instalments of buyers. Further, the

lease payment account in the amount of thousand CHF 127 is

pledged in favour of the lending bank. Cash and cash equiva-

lents include amounts in EUR of thousand CHF 13,230 (prior

year: thousand CHF 1,964).

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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15. Trade receivables

At 31 December 2011, no (prior year: thousand CHF 0) trade

receivables included any third-party balances from property

development. From construction activities for the associated

company, Beach House AG, Peach incurred trade receivables

of thousand CHF 3,786 (prior year: thousand CHF 0). Further

thousand CHF 254 (prior year: thousand CHF 260) trade re-

ceivables are due from the joint venture “Am Zirkus” and thou-

sand CHF 10 (prior year: thousand CHF 168) due from other

related parties. None of the trade receivables with associated

companies and joint ventures are impaired.

At 31 December 2011, there were amounts overdue from third

parties of thousand CHF 1,019 (prior year: thousand CHF

1,796). There are no trade receivables overdue, which are not

impaired.

Losses in trade receivables amounted to thousand CHF 37 in

2011 (prior year: thousand CHF 0).

Amounts due and impairment of trade

receivables from third parties

In thousands of CHF 1–4 months 5–12 months >12 months 31.12.2011
Total

1–4 months 5–12 months >12 months 31.12.2010
Total

Trade receivables 469 240 709 467 662 667 1,796

thereof provided for –188 –188 –38 –176 –214

Total net trade receivables overdue 521 1,582

other trade receivables, not due 310 539

Total trade receivables (net) 831 2,121

Provisions for impairment of trade receivables at 1 January –214 –176

Losses in trade receivables 37 0

Unused amounts reversed 0 0

Provision for impairment of trade receivables –12 –42

Foreign exchange impact on movements 1 4

Provision for impairment of trade receivables at 31 December –188 –214

Out of the receivables overdue, thousand CHF 448 are due

from the buyers of Chausseestrasse, Berlin. These trade re-

ceivables are secured by the fact that residential ownership

is only transferred after full payment has been received, with

the exception of a retention amounting to 1.3% of the pur-

chase price. Trade receivables include amounts in EUR of

thousand CHF 1,022 (prior year: thousand CHF 1,709).
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16. Other receivables

Value added tax (VAT) credits are due from authorities in Swit-

zerland, Germany, and Austria.

Other debit balances include a receivable from insolvency

proceedings of thousand CHF 569. Peach expects to receive

full payment of the amount outstanding.

Advances include advances for the investment property

Erkrath in Germany of thousand CHF 2,049 (see Note 44 for

further information). Further a down-payment of thousand

CHF 770 for acquisition of the property Etzelstrasse 11 in

Wollerau is recorded in that position (refer to Note 39).

Other receivables do not include any amounts overdue and

no impairment was recorded.

The other receivables from associates and joint ventures in-

clude thousand CHF 8,724 from Condominium Beach House

AG. This amount is the remaining balance of the loan from

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Withholding tax and value added tax credits 372 563

Other debit balances 595 85

Advances 3,264 0

Other receivables from related parties 20 140

Other receivables from associates and joint ventures 12,683 8,600

Receivables from customer advances billed not collected 749 0

Total 17,683 9,388

acquisition and the shareholder loan from Peach Property

Group AG respectively. The loan bears an interest of 3%.

Based on the project outcome, the shareholders will receive

a preferential interest rate of 10% upon sale of all units. Peach

Property Group AG has increased its interest in Beach

House AG from 35.5% to 46.6%. With the acquisition of an

additional 11.1% share, Peach has also taken over loan and

interest receivables of thousand CHF 2,064. These are also

included in other receivables from associates and joint

ventures. The remaining balance of other receivables from

associates and joint ventures includes receivables due from

“Am Zirkus GmbH & Co. KG”.

Other receivables include amounts denominated in EUR of

thousand CHF 6,516 (prior year: thousand CHF 2,678).

Notes to the Consolidated
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17. Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include amounts denominated in EUR of

thousand CHF 401 (prior year: thousand CHF 333).

18. Development properties

There were no projects where the POC method was applied in

the reporting period.

Development properties include the following properties re-

corded at cost or market value, if lower:

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Accrued interest 0 19

Advances for a property in Mallorca, Spain 166 166

Prepaid insurance expenses 0 16

Other prepaid expenses 479 314

Total 645 515

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Valuation at cost 153,423 147,563

thereof land purchased 104,873 106,888

Total development properties 153,423 147,563

31.12.2011
In thousands of EUR

31.12.2011
In thousands of CHF

31.12.2010
In thousands of EUR

31.12.2010
In thousands of CHF

“yoo berlin”, D-Berlin 40,610 49,427 36,117 45,031

Chausseestrasse, D-Berlin 13 16 6,007 7,489

Harvestehuder Weg, D-Hamburg 56,506 68,774 50,118 62,487

Etzelstrasse 17, CH-Wollerau 342 279

Bergstrasse 26, CH-Küsnacht 160 156

Peninsula, CH-Wädenswil 28,953 28,782

Schooren des Alpes, A-Kappl near Ischgl 4,571 5,563 2,531 3,155

Cala Falco, E-Mallorca 1 1 1 1

Holdernach, A-Kappl near Ischgl 147 178 147 183

Etzelstrasse 11, CH-Wollerau 9 0

Total 153,423 147,563
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No land was purchased in the reporting year. With respect to

the property Chausseestrasse Berlin, only the units, for which

risks and rewards have not been transferred yet, are still

recorded. The project was completed according to schedule

in the financial year 2010. Changes in book values of foreign

development projects include adjustments due to changes in

foreign currencies.

The carrying value of the development properties was ad-

justed to the fair value reported from Wüest & Partner. This

adjustment resulted in an impairment charge of thousand

CHF 1,082 for the “yoo berlin” project.

The foreign development projects are also denominated in

their respective local currency, in order to enhance the qual-

ity of the consolidated financial statements.

In 2011, borrowing costs amounting to thousand CHF 2,575

(prior year: thousand CHF 6,140) were capitalised as part of

development properties. The average interest rate of the

capitalised borrowing costs is 2.4% (prior year: 6.14%) (see

Note 28). The reduction in interest rate is due to repayment of

high interest bearing mezzanine funds.

Information on development properties

Location Status Site area
in m2

Potential
restoration
register

Purchase
date

Project
description

Project status
31.12.2011

Planned
realisation

Switzerland

Wädenswil

– Island to Mansion 1 Existing 24 no August 08 Environs Planning/
appeal

open

– Mansion 2 Submission approved 986 yes August 08 Resid.-Condo Planning open

– Beachhouse Building kand – submission
approved; associate

8,185 yes August 08 Resid.-Condo On sale 2012

– Seeclub, 1st building stage Right of construction given
to Seeclub

811 yes August 08 Environs Planning open

– Aquatica incl. Villa Submission approved 6,172 yes August 08 Resid.-Condo Planning/
appeal

open

– Mews 1+2 Submission approved 1,595 yes August 08 Rental Planning/
appeal

open
1

– Gardens Submission approved 2,941 yes August 08 Resid.-Condo Planning/
appeal

open

– Dockside Existing 3,058 yes August 08 Resid.-Condo Planning open

Wollerau

– Candy Factory 3rd party land owner 5,444 yes Resid.-Condo Planning 2014

– Etzelstrasse 11 3rd party land owner 5,355 no Resid.-Condo Planning 2015

Austria

Kappl

– Schooren des Alpes In construction 1,123 no April 07 Resid.-Condo On sale 2011

Germany

– “yoo berlin” In construction 13,310 no Dezember 07 Resid.-Condo On sale 2010

– Chausseestrasse, Berlin Completed 5,345 no Oktober 07 Resid.-Condo sold 2010

– Harvestehuder Weg,
Hamburg

Existing/1st stage
in construction

9,754 no Juli 07 Resid.-Condo On sale 2011/2012

Notes to the Consolidated
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19. Investment properties

In thousands of CHF

Fair value at 1 January 2011 7,454

Costs

Amount at 1 January 2011 5,119

Additions from purchases 11,012

Additions from construction 0

Disposals 0

Transfer of development properties 0

Exchange losses –147

Accumulated costs at 31 December 2011 15,984

Fair value adjustments

Total at 1 January 2011 2,335

Increase in fair value 3,328

Decrease in fair value 0

Disposals 0

Exchange losses –42

Accumulated changes in fair value at 31 December 2011 5,621

Fair value at 31 December 2011 21,605

(Fire insurance value) 31,230



Peach Property Group
Annual Report 2011

Financial statements

143

In thousands of CHF

Fair value at 1 January 2010 0

Costs

Amount at 1 January 2010 0

Additions from purchases 0

Additions from construction 0

Disposals 0

Transfer of development properties 5,119

Accumulated costs at 31 December 2010 5,119

Fair value adjustments

Total at 1 January 2010 0

Increase in fair value 2,335

Decrease in fair value 0

Disposals 0

Accumulated changes in fair value at 31 December 2010 2,335

Fair value at 31 December 2010 7,454

(Fire insurance value) 17,273

In December 2011, Peach acquired the portfolio Munster in

Munster, Germany. The portfolio consists of leased units,

which is therefore treated as an investment property. The fair

value gain on the portfolio Munster can be explained with the

unsolved re-funding situation that was present to the previ-

ous owner and required a distressed market exit and sale of

the portfolio respectively. Annual effective lease income of

the portfolio amounts to thousand EUR 1,188 while the prop-

erty operating expenses excl. financing costs amounts to

thousand EUR 312. Income and expenses are included for

one month as rental income and expenses in the consolidat-

ed financial statements. The “Bakery” property at Seestrasse

26/28, CH-8820 Wädenswil (commercial real estate), was

reclassified at 31 December 2010 to investment properties.

The property was reclassified due to a long-term rental

arrangement closed, which allows sustainable returns and

will generate recurring cash flows. Due to this change in use,

“Bakery” is no longer part of the development and construc-

tion project “Peninsula” area as a whole.

Notes to the Consolidated
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20. Equipment

In thousands of CHF Fixtures Furniture IT equipment Vehicles Other
equipment

Total

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2011 73 324 239 76 144 856

Additions 12 16 23 51

Disposals –28 –28

Exchange differences –4 –4

Balance at 31 December 2011 73 336 227 76 163 875

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2011 –22 –219 –172 –55 –56 –524

Charge for the year –7 –41 –26 –19 –32 –125

Disposals 28 28

Exchange differences 4 4

Balance at 31 December 2011 –29 –260 –170 –74 –84 –617

Net book amount at 1 January 2011 51 105 67 21 88 332

Net book amount at 1 January 2011 44 76 57 2 79 258

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2010 73 319 140 76 189 797

Additions 5 99 104

Disposals –15 –15

Exchange differences –30 –30

Balance at 31 December 2010 73 324 239 76 144 856

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2010 –15 –170 –98 –30 –23 –336

Charge for the year –7 –49 –74 –25 –35 –190

Disposals –5 –5

Exchange differences 7 7

Balance at 31 December 2010 –22 –219 –172 –55 –56 –524

Net book amount at 1 January 2010 58 149 42 46 166 461

Net book amount at 31 December 2010 51 105 67 21 88 332
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21. Intangible assets

In thousands of CHF Software

Cost

Amount at 1 January 2011 79

Additions 31

Disposals 0

Exchange differences –1

Amount at 31 December 2011 109

Accumulated amortisation

Amount at 1 January 2011 –38

Charge for the year –18

Disposals 0

Exchange differences 0

Amount at 31 December 2011 –56

Net book value at 1 January 2011 41

Net book value at 31 December 2011 53

Cost

Amount at 1 January 2010 75

Additions 5

Disposals 0

Exchange differences –1

Amount at 31 December 2010 79

Accumulated amortisation

Amount at 1 January 2010 –21

Charge for the year –17

Disposals 0

Exchange differences 0

Amount at 31 December 2010 –38

Net book value at 1 January 2010 54

Net book value at 31 December 2010 41

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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22. Long-term receivables

At 30 June 2010, Peach Property Group AG reduced its

investment in Beach House AG, which owns 100% of Condo-

minium Beach House AG, from 64% to less than 50% of the

share capital’s nominal value (see Note 33 “Scope of consoli-

dation”). A contingent consideration (earn-out) was agreed

with the investors, which specified that in case of a success-

ful completion of the project, Peach will receive a predefined

profit share.

Peach calculates the expected profit share based on a prob-

ability weighted expectation of the revenues, a predeter-

mined project duration and a discount rate of 11.57%. At

30 June 2010, an earn-out of thousand CHF 1,478 was calcu-

lated on the basis that project duration would be 3.5 years.

At 31 December 2011, the expected project duration de-

creased to 2.5 years based on the progress of construction.

The discount rate was set at 9.53%. Thus the earn-out report-

ed in the balance sheet remains unchanged at thousand

CHF 1,478.

23. Investments in associates and joint ventures

Associates and joint ventures are accounted for according to

the equity method. They all use 31 December as their report-

ing date.

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Am Zirkus GmbH & Co. KG 9,694 10,534

Beach House AG 1 0

Total share in associates and joint ventures (at 1 January)
Prior year: at acquisition and disposal date respectively (see Note 31) 9,695 10,534

Acquisition of 11.1% share in Beach House AG 11 0

Share of loss in associates and joint ventures –255 –51

Exchange differences recognised in other comprehensive income –298 –788

Total share in associates and joint ventures (at 31 December) 9,153 9,695
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Summarised financial information on the basis of the individ-

ual year-end accounts:

Am Zirkus GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Current assets 42,475 33,725

Non-current assets 877 771

Current liabilities –22,455 –20,603

Non-current liabilities –23,809 –16,931

Net assets –2,912 –3,038

Income/(expenses) 0 0

Loss for the year –254 –296

Beach House AG, Wädenswil

* Consolidated balance sheet Beach House AG, in the financial report 2010
only the separate amounts of Beach House AG were reported. The subsidiary
Condominium Beach House AG was therefore recorded within investments.
In order to increase transparency, consolidated numbers are now disclosed.

The investment in Beach House AG is recorded with a value of

thousand CHF 1 in the consolidated financial statements of

Peach. Peach’s share in net assets of 46.6% amounts to a

share in equity from Beach House AG of thousand CHF –254.

As Peach does not have an obligation to make further contri-

butions, the share of the negative net assets has not been

recorded.

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011* 31.12.2010* 31.12.2011
separate financial

statement

31.12.2010
separate financial

statement

Current assets 37,406 30,599 19,674 11,823

Non-current assets 13 5 100 105

Current liabilities –27,758 –18,711 –9,694 –12

Non-current liabilities –10,207 –11,828 –10,042 –11,833

Net assets –546 65 38 83

Income/(expenses) 0 0 0 0

Loss for the year –611 –226 –40 –17

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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24. Accounts payables

Accounts payables include amounts denominated in EUR of

thousand CHF 3,133 (prior year: thousand CHF 2,154).

25. Advances from clients

Advances from clients of thousand CHF 7,963 (prior year:

thousand CHF 3,312) are down payments from customers for

properties, for which rewards and risks relating to the proper-

ties have not yet been transferred. In prior years, these ad-

vances were reported in other payables.

Advances from clients contain thousand CHF 7,568 (prior

year: thousand CHF 3,039), denominated in EUR.

26. Other payables

In various taxes, thousand CHF 990 is included for transfer

taxes on the investment property portfolio Erkrath (see

Note 44).

Other payables include amounts denominated in EUR of

thousand CHF 3,952 (prior year: thousand CHF 1,627).

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Accounts payables, third parties 3,254 2,848

Accounts payables, joint venture “Am Zirkus 1” 250 5

Accounts payables, other related parties 149 29

3,653 2,882

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Various taxes 2,976 1,429

Other payables, third parties 1,173 1,131

Other payables, associates and joint ventures 226 200

Other payables, other related parties 126 109

Total 4,501 2,869
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27. Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include amounts denominated in EUR of

thousand CHF 1,243 (prior year: thousand CHF 133).

28. Mortgages (current and non-current)

The carrying amount of the current and non-current mort-

gages approximates their fair value due to the contractually

agreed market conditions.

All loans are secured by the respective properties (see

Note 41).

From the current mortgages thousand CHF 2,575 (prior year

thousand CHF 6,140) interest expenses are capitalised in

development properties. The average interest rate on the

capitalised interest expenses was 2.4% (prior year: 6.14%).

The average interest rate of the interest expenses recorded

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Consulting and audit fees 518 844

Personnel expenses 1,301 1,050

Social security costs 161 143

Accrued construction costs 942 0

Others 576 299

Total 3,498 2,336

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

CH-Wädenswil, Peninsula 15,200 16,200

D-Hamburg, Harvestehuder Weg (in thousand EUR 22,258) 27,090 20,292

D-Berlin, Yoo (in thousand EUR 27,903) 33,961 27,580

Total current mortgages 76,251 64,072

D-Munster, Munster (in thousand EUR 8,272) 10,068 0

Total non-current mortgages 10,068 0

in the income statement was 3.14% for 2011. The balance in-

cludes mainly a long-term loan on the investment property

portfolio Munster in Germany as well as the short-term por-

tion of the loan for Peninsula, Wädenswil, which is securing

the financing of Bakery (investment property). All current

mortgages bear variable interest rates. The non-current

mortgage bears a fixed interest rate.

Mortgages include amounts denominated in EUR of thou-

sand CHF 71,119 (prior year: thousand CHF 47,872).

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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29. Loans (current and non-current)

The carrying amounts of the current loans approximate their

fair values due to the contractually agreed market conditions.

The average interest rate on the loans amounted to 8.6%

(prior year: 10.05%). All loans have fixed interest rates. The

non-secured loans bear interest at 9% (current loans) to

12.5% (non-current loan). The subscription loan and the

secured loan bear interest at 6% to 9%.

On 18 July 2011, Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH,

Cologne, a subsidiary of the Peach Group, issued a bond with a

5-year period and the following parameters:

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Bank loans 499 217

Subscription loans 3,000 3,000

Secured loans 3,565 0

Bonds issued 3,249 0

Other loans 4,000 7,700

Total 14,313 10,917

thereof current 4,064 217

thereof non-current 10,249 10,700

Volume: up to thousand EUR 50,000

Interest rate: 6.6% p.a. due at each 31 December and with

final payment

Nominal amount: thousand EUR 1

Period: 18 July 2011 until 30 June 2016

Listing: Deutsche Börse, Frankfurt

ISIN/WKN: DE000A1KQ8K 4/A1KQ8K

Collateral: Peach German Properties AG, a 100% subsidiary

of Peach Property Group AG, warrants unconditional and

irrevocable payment of the capital invested and interest ac-

crued from the bond as well as all other amounts, which are in

accordance with the terms of the bond. For further informa-

tion with respect to the bond issued, please refer to the pro-

spectus.

At 31 December 2011, Peach had issued bonds in the amount

of thousand EUR 3,536 (thousand CHF 4,304). The costs as-

sociated with the issuance of the bonds can partially be

amortised over the term of the bond. Total costs with respect

to the bonds amounted to thousand EUR 1,247 (thousand

CHF 1,517). Thereof, thousand CHF 462 was recorded in the

income statement of 2011.

Loans include amounts denominated in EUR of thousand

CHF 3,478 (prior year: thousand CHF 188).
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30. Provisions (current and non-current)

In thousands of CHF Warranties Onerous
contracts

Other Total

At 1 January 2011 1,048 2,449 3,497

Used during the year –107 –1,200 –1,307

Additional provisions – charged to profit or loss 2,393 800 3,193

Unused amounts reversed –323 –323

Exchange differences –17 –17

At 31 December 2011 941 2,393 1,709 5,043

At 1 January 2010 2,232 1,807 348 4,387

Used during the year –422 –1,652 –125 –2,199

Additional provisions – charged to profit or loss 2,293 2,293

Unused amounts reversed –762 –762

Exchange differences –155 –67 –222

At 31 December 2010 1,048 0 2,449 3,497

31.12.11

Current provisions 941 974 817 2,732

Non-current provisions 1,419 892 2,311

Total 941 2,393 1,709 5,043

31.12.10

Current provisions 679 679

Non-current provisions 1,048 1,770 2,818

Total 1,048 0 2,449 3,497

Provisions for warranties are recorded for the project

“Schooren” and cover the remaining warranty period for

latent defects.

For the Harvestehuder Weg project in Hamburg, a provision

of thousand CHF 1,807 (thousand EUR 1,200) was set up in

2009 for expected compensation damages to tenants who

still live in the existing buildings. It was presumed that these

parties would have challenged the ordinary notices of termi-

nation of lease. This would have entailed an indeterminate

delay in construction. During the reporting period 2010, thou-

sand CHF 1,652 (thousand EUR 1,194) were used of the provi-

sions for compensation damages and all disputed notices on

the leases were settled.

Other provisions include among others provisions for vaca-

tion and overtime, legal expenses for construction appeals

and for partly disputed services in connection with a consult-

ancy agreement.

Provisions for onerous contracts are disclosed in Note 11 –

other operating expenses.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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31. Equity

At 31 December 2010, the share capital amounted to thou-

sand CHF 4,852 and was comprised of 4,852,400 shares with

a nominal value of 1.00 CHF each.

During the reporting period, the company purchased 58,660

treasury shares in the amount of thousand CHF 1,389 and

sold 32,312 shares in the amount of thousand CHF 746. The

41,963 treasury shares held by the company on 31 December

2011 (prior year: 15,615) were not eligible for dividend pay-

ments. Therefore, the share capital eligible for dividend

payments at the period-end date amounted to thousand

CHF 4,810 (prior year: thousand CHF 4,829) and comprised

of 4,810,437 (prior year: 4,828,535) shares.

On 24 June 2009, 14,723,200 new registered shares with a

nominal value of CHF 0.01 were issued in the context of a

capital increase with an issue price of CHF 0.3396 per share.

The transaction costs of thousand CHF 98 were offset

against share premium. All registered shares issued have

been fully paid in and are vested with equal rights. The shares

were subscribed under exclusion of the existing sharehold-

ers’ subscription rights.

Share capital and treasury shares

Number of
shares issued

Share capital
in thousands of CHF

Number of shares
outstanding

1 January 2009 220,854,800 2,209 220,854,800

Increase 14,723,200 147 14,723,200,

31 December 2009 235,578,000 2,356 235,578,000

Reverse split 2,355,780 2,356 2,355,780

Issue of shares from authorised capital 182,370 182 182,370

Issue of shares from conditional capital for options exercised 581,000 581 581,000

Increase from IPO 1,725,000 1,725 1,725,000

Purchase of treasury shares –21,387

Sale of treasury shares 5,772

31 December 2010 4,844,150 4,844 4,828,535

Issue of shares from conditional capital for options exercised 8,250 8 8,250

Purchase of treasury shares –58,660

Sale of treasury shares 32,312

31 December 2011 4,852,400 4,852 4,810,437

A resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting on

18 June 2010 to combine the company shares in such a

manner that each share will obtain a nominal value of CHF 1

(previously CHF 0.01). The share capital amounts to thousand

CHF 2,356 and is divided into 2,355,780 registered shares

with a nominal value of CHF 1 each.
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On 26 July 2010, the Board of Directors increased the share

capital by thousand CHF 182 in accordance with the capital

increase of a maximum of thousand CHF 800 approved by the

General Meeting on 18 June 2010. The issue price of the new

shares amounted to 32.90 CHF. The shares were paid up as

follows:

— 60,790 shares at the issue price of thousand CHF

2,000 were offset against a convertible loan which was

accounted for at 30 June 2010 in share premium;

— 121,580 shares at the issue price of thousand CHF

4,000 by cash contributions.

In the financial year 2010, the share capital was increased by

thousand CHF 581 by the exercise of the following options

involving the creation of shares from conditional capital:

— 289,000 options with an issue price of CHF 27.50 to

consultants;

— 292,000 options with an issue price of CHF 1.00 to em-

ployees and consultants.

he transaction costs in the amount of thousand CHF 59 were

offset against share premium.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 4 November 2010,

it was resolved to increase the ordinary share capital by a

maximum of thousand CHF 2,500. In this respect the Board of

Directors was authorised to determine the issue price with

reference to the placement on the capital market of the new

registered shares by the underwriter, Bank am Bellevue AG.

Under the terms of the Underwriting Agreement as of 26 Oc-

tober 2010, the Bank am Bellevue placed the new registered

shares to existing or new shareholders with a nominal value of

CHF 1 each. The new shares are eligible for dividend payment

from the date recorded in the commercial register – i.e. from

16 November 2010. On 12 November 2010, the shares in

Peach Property Group AG were traded for the first time on the

SIX (Swiss Stock Exchange) with an issue price of CHF 32. The

share capital was increased by thousand CHF 1,725 in accord-

ance with the issue price. On 10 November 2010, the Board

of Directors noted that they had implemented the resolution

of the General Meeting as of 4 November 2010 concerning an

ordinary increase in the share capital by a maximum of thou-

sand CHF 2,500, pointing out that the Board of Directors had

not completely used up the maximum nominal amount by

which the share capital could have been increased according

to the resolution of the General Meeting, but had rather only

used thousand CHF 1,725. The transaction costs of thousand

CHF 4,831 were offset against share premium. Transaction

costs relating to the 289,000 shares of consultants and pro

rata costs of previous shareholders were reported in other

operating expenses in accordance with IAS 32.38.

In the reporting period, the share capital was increased by

issuing of shares from the conditional capital by thousand

CHF 8 for 8,250 exercised options from employees at an

issue price of CHF 1.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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18 June 2012 at the latest by issuing 800,000 registered

shares at the maximum, to be paid up fully, each with a nom-

inal value of CHF 1. The Board of Directors determines the

issue date, the issue price, the nature of the capital contribu-

tion, the conditions for the exercise of the subscription right

and the date from which dividends are eligible for payment.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 4 November 2010 it

was also resolved to reduce the existing conditional share

capital from thousand CHF 469 to thousand CHF 220. In this

way, the intended purpose of the conditional share capital for

the creation of share capital in conjunction with other finan-

cial market instruments of the company or the Group compa-

nies was expanded.

Authorised capital

Number of
shares

Share capital
(in thousands of CHF)

1 January 2009 0 0

31 December 2009 0 0

Authorised capital until 18 June 2012 max. 800,000 800

Capital increase of 26 July 2010 –182,370 –182

31 December 2010 617,630 618

31 December 2011 617,630 618

The Annual General Meeting on 18 June 2010 it was resolved

to increase the conditional capital and to create approved

share capital. The conditional share capital amounts to a

maximum of thousand CHF 1,050 for the issue of at most

1,050,000 registered shares, to be paid up fully, with a nom-

inal value of CHF 1 for the exercise of option rights granted

to employees, consultants and members of the Board of

Directors in accordance with consultancy agreements or

employee share schemes. There is no preferential underwrit-

ing or subscription right to the shares. The issue prices for

the new shares, the consultancy agreements and employee

share schemes are determined by the Board of Directors. In

addition, the Board of Directors is authorised to increase the

share capital by a maximum of TCHF 800 at any time before

Conditional capital

Number of
shares

Share capital
(in thousands of CHF)

1 January 2009 0 0

Capital authorisation max. 14,000,000 140

31 December 2009 14,000,000 140

Combination of shares (nominal value increase) 140,000 140

Capital authorisation 910,000 910

Capital increase due to the exercise of options –581,000 –581

Reduction of conditional capital –249,399 –249

31 December 2010 219,601 220

Capital increase due to the exercise of options –8,250 –8

31 December 2011 211,351 212



Peach Property Group
Annual Report 2011

Financial statements

155

A share premium results from over-par issues in the context

of capital increases. Share issue costs are offset against

share premium.

The other reserves consist of changes due to the issue of

options to consultants, employees and members of the

Board of Directors as well as translation differences resulting

on the one hand from the consolidation and on the other hand

from monetary financial instruments which IFRS requires to

be accounted for in other comprehensive income.

Share premium

In thousands of CHF

1 January 2009 4,771

Capital increase 4,755

31 December 2009 9,526

Capital increases from conditional and authorised capital 13,476

Share issue costs thereon –59

Capital increase IPO 53,475

Share issue costs thereon (after tax) –4,145

31 December 2010 –72,273

Dividends –4,812

31 December 2011 67,461

Other reserves

In thousands of CHF

1 January 2009 741

Exchange differences –47

Share-based compensation 8,064

31 December 2009 8,758

Exchange differences –6,704

Share-based compensation 1,596

31 December 2010 3,650

Exchange differences –907

Share-based compensation 248

31 December 2011 2,991

Retained earnings

In thousands of CHF

1 January 2009 –4,035

Profit 2009 18,232

31 December 2009 14,197

Profit 2010 17,998

31 December 2010 32,195

Loss 2011 –11,137

31 December 2011 21,058

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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32. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share

All options with an exercise price below the average value

per share are taken into account when calculating the profit

dilution effect. With regard to share options in the scope of

IFRS 2 and for which the vesting period has not finished, the

fair value of the services which are to be provided for Peach

under the terms of the share option is to be added to the

exercise price.

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Result for the year attributable to Peach shareholders –11,137 17,998

Dilution effects 0 0

Diluted net profit/(loss) –11,137 17,998

Average number of outstanding shares 4,813,052 2,915,956

Adjustment due to options issued 0 70,443

Diluted average number of outstanding shares 4,813,052 2,986,399

Basic earnings/(loss) per share in CHF –2.31 6.17

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share in CHF –2.31 6.03
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33. Scope of consolidation

Registered in Share capital
TCHF

Shareholding
in %

Year ends

Switzerland

Peach Property Group AG 1 Zurich 4,852 100 31.12.

Condominium Invest AG 5 Zurich 100 100 31.12.

Peach German Properties AG 6 Stansstad 100 100 31.12.

Peach German Properties II AG 7 Stansstad 100 100 31.12.

WSZ Residential Development AG 5 Sarnen 100 100 31.12.

Registered in Share capital
TEUR

Shareholding
in %

Year ends

Austria

East West Wohnbau GmbH 2/5 Ischgl 18 99 31.12.

Schooren Vermietungs GmbH 4 Kappl 35 99 31.12.

Registered in Share capital
TEUR

Shareholding
in %

Year ends

Germany

Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH 8 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

Yoo Berlin GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 1 94,9 31.12.

VD Berlin Chausseestrasse 106 GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 1 94,9 31.12.

Yoo Düsseldorf GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 1,000 94,9 31.12.

VD Harvestehuder Weg I GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 1 94,9 31.12.

VD Harvestehuder Weg II GmbH & Co. KG 2/6 Cologne 1 94,9 31.12.

VD Harvestehuder Weg III GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 1 94,9 31.12.

Real Value Living GmbH 3 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

Portfolio Erkrath Retail GmbH 2 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

Portfolio Erkrath Wohnen GmbH 2 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

Peach Property Projekt III GmbH 2 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

Munster Portfolio GmbH 2 Cologne 25 100 31.12.

All subsidiaries (direct or indirect) are fully consolidated.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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The associated companies as well as the joint venture (50% vot-
ing rights) are consolidated with the equity method.

1 Consultancy and other services offered for the entire construction cycle
2 Project entity
3 Sale and agency services company
4 Service company for rental of residential properties
5 Real estate company
6 Holding company
7 Financial services entity
8 Service company

Changes to the scope of consolidation

2010

Under the purchase and transfer agreement as of 25 March

2010, Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH, a 100%

owned subsidiary of Peach Property Group AG, acquired

Johanna Beteiligungsverwaltungs GmbH, which subse-

quently changed its name to Real Value GmbH, for a purchase

price of thousand CHF 39 (thousand EUR 28). Under the terms

of this acquisition, Peach acquired cash and cash equivalents

of thousand CHF 36 (thousand EUR 25). The buyer’s and sell-

er’s broker fees in connection with the sales in Germany were

processed through Real Value Living GmbH.

On 30 June 2010, Peach German Properties AG, a 100%

owned subsidiary of Peach Property Group AG, acquired an

80% joint venture interest in a German project entity, Am

Zirkus GmbH & Co. KG, from ING Real Estate Germany GmbH.

The purchase price for the project company amounted to

EUR 1 pro memoria. Under the terms of this transaction,

Peach German Properties AG acquired receivables from the

seller for 2 EUR, which were recorded as a shareholder loan

against the project entity. Transaction costs of thousand CHF

467 relating to the acquisition were recognised in the income

statement.

Registered in Share capital Shareholding
in %

Year ends

Joint Venture TEUR

Am Zirkus 1 GmbH & Co. KG 2 Cologne 51 80 31.12.

Associated companies TCHF

Beach House AG 6 Wädenswil 100 46.6 31.12.

Condominium Beach House AG (100% subsidiary of Beach House AG) 6 Zurich 100 46.6 31.12.

The project entity is constructing a hotel and residential

building on the project land. The project entity is a joint ven-

ture. Although, a major portion is held in the company, ac-

cording to the joint venture agreement concluded with the

partner, all significant decisions require a majority vote or

unanimity. Therefore no control can be exercised. The joint

venture meets the conditions specified in IAS 31 ( joint con-

trol).

The investment is recorded from the date of acquisition ac-

cording to the equity method. According to IAS 31, transac-

tions are to be reported at the time of acquisition according

to the purchase method of IFRS 3.
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If the acquisition had taken place on 1 January 2010, no rev-

enue would have been recognised and no profit or loss would

have been reported. These amounts were calculated accord-

ing to the accounting principles of the Peach Group. If the

acquisition had taken place on 1 January 2010, no further

depreciation or amortisation would have been required in

terms of fair value measurement.

Proportion of Peach (80%) of the assets and liabilities trans-

ferred at fair value:

The investment, consisting of a proportion of the joint ven-

ture and a loan at fair value, is economically cohesive and is

reported together with the pro rata change of the share in net

assets of the joint venture in investments in associates and

joint ventures.

The difference with respect to the purchase price of thou-

sand CHF 10,534 was recorded as profit from acquisitions in

other operating income and can be explained by a strategic

sale of the previous joint venture partner.

In thousands of CHF

Cash and cash equivalents 5,265

Development properties 21,335

Other current assets 1,589

Deferred tax assets 818

Accounts payables –3,025

Mortgages –14,387

Other payables –252

Payables to shareholders –809

Total net assets 10,534

The development properties acquired with the investment

were valued by an external surveyor.

Beach House AG was incorporated on 18 August 2009. Peach

Property Group AG subscribed for the entire share capital of

thousand CHF 100. Beach House AG in turn subscribed for

100% of the share capital of thousand CHF 100 in Condo-

minium Beach House AG incorporated on 17 September

2009. Peach Property Group AG sold 36% of the shares

until 31 December 2009 at their nominal value of thousand

CHF 36. Since no business activities with an impact on profit

or loss have occurred since incorporation, no gain or loss

from disposal was recorded.

On 30 June 2010, Peach Property Group AG reduced its in-

vestment in Beach House AG, that holds 100% of Condomin-

ium Beach House AG, from 64% to 49% at the share capital’s

nominal value of thousand CHF 15 in cash. Given that Peach

only held 49% of Beach House AG and as of 30 June 2010

could no longer exercise control, the company was decon-

solidated at this date. The shareholders committed them-

selves to providing additional shareholder loans of CHF 2.7 mil-

lion in proportion to their investments. Due to the balance

of cash and cash equivalents of thousand CHF 3 in Beach

House AG at the time of sale, a cash inflow of thousand

CHF 12 resulted from disposal.

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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The following consolidated assets and liabilities were trans-

ferred at the date of disposal:

In thousands of CHF

Cash and cash equivalents 3

Development properties 12,091

Other current assets 901

Deferred tax assets 3,928

Current liabilities –21,730

Non-current borrowings –9,258

Non-controlling interests –9

Total net assets –14,074

Share in associate at fair value 12

Purchase consideration received in cash 15

Contingent consideration (earn-out) 1,478

Net gain on sale 15,579

thereof recorded in operating income 19,507

thereof recorded in income tax expense –3,928

The profit is based on the valuation of the property in Condo-

minium Beach House AG for CHF 30m, which was acquired for

the same price from Condominium Invest AG, a 100% owned

subsidiary of Peach in 2009. This unrealised profit was com-

pletely eliminated in the previous consolidated financial

statements. The profit from the disposal of Beach House AG

was recorded in other operating income. A contingent con-

sideration (earn-out) is included in the contractual agreement

with investors in Beach House AG, which stipulates that

following a successful final project inspection, Peach will be

entitled to a predefined profit share. Peach determined the

expected profit share with a probability weighted assessment

assuming a discount rate of 11.57%. This was calculated on

the basis of various scenarios which varied with respect to

the selling prices to be achieved.

As of 30 June 2010, the remaining investment in Beach House

AG and Condominium Beach House AG is in the scope of

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates” and is recorded accord-

ing to the equity method. As defined in IAS 27 revised, the

investments had to be valued at their pro rata fair value at the

date of disposal. Since the valuation at fair value did not result

in an adjustment of the carrying amount, the revaluation of

the equity interest did not result in either a profit or a loss.

2011

In 2011, Peach acquired in Germany through its subsidiary,

Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH, four entities for

a purchase price of thousand EUR 25 each. As part of the

transaction, Peach received cash and cash equivalents from

the acquired entities of thousand EUR 25 each. The four enti-

ties include the companies noted above: Portfolio Erkrath

Retail GmbH, Cologne, Portfolio Erkrath Wohnen GmbH,

Cologne, Peach Property Projekt III GmbH, Cologne, and

Munster Portfolio GmbH. For further information, refer to

Note 44.
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Peach Property Group AG incorporated on 15 August 2011 its

100% subsidiary, WSZ Residential Development AG, with a

share capital of thousand CHF 100. With purchase agree-

ment from 17 May 2011, Peach acquired the property Etzel-

strasse 11, Wollerau, through its newly formed subsidiary. For

further information, refer to Note 39.

34. Deferred taxes

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Deferred tax assets:

– Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 4,991 2,592

– Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 503 8

5,494 2,600

Deferred tax liabilities:

– Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 6,134 7,271

– Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months 303 94

6,437 7,365

In thousands of CHF
Assets

31.12.2011
Liabilities Assets

31.12.2010
Liabilities

Other receivables 163 566 403

Development properties 6,201 6,113

Investment Properties 578 536

Intangible assets 852 1,057

Investments in associates and joint ventures 10 870 960

Retirement benefit asset 22

Other payables 181

Non-current borrowings 300

Provisions 507 382

Retirement benefit obligation 3

Tax losses 6,869 2,594

Total 8,078 9,022 3,651 8,416

Amounts to be offset 2,585 2,585 1,051 1,051

Deferred tax assets 5,493 2,600

Deferred tax liabilities 6,437 7,365

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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In thousands of CHF
Assets

31.12.2011
Liabilities Assets

31.12.2010
Liabilities

1 January 2,600 7,365 3,284 11,823

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 3,137 –581 –654 –2,502

Charged/(credited) directly to equity –686

Charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income

Reclassifications –235 –235

Exchange differences –8 –112 –30 –1,270

31 December 5,494 6,437 2,600 7,365

Amounts to be offset

31 December 5,494 6,437 2,600 7,365

All of the Group’s existing accumulated losses brought for-

ward have been capitalised as deferred tax assets, to the ex-

tent that sufficient taxable income can be expected and off-

setting is possible. With respect to group companies with

development properties, income that can be used to offset

tax losses will only be available upon completion of the pro-

ject. Deferred taxes on all accumulated losses have been

capitalised.

Tax losses will expire as follows:

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Expiration in 5–6 years 243 0

Expiration in 6–7 years 9,116 83

Expiration after more than 7 years 22,483 17,637
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35. Retirement benefit plans

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Fair value of plan assets 4,664 3,523 2,747 2,054 2,312

Present value of benefit obligation 6,133 4,501 3,706 2,995 2,594

Funded status –1,469 –978 –959 –941 –282

Unrecognised actuarial loss 1,454 1,079 1,030 1,007 349

Asset/(liability) in the balance sheet –15 101 71 66 67

Movements in the asset/(liability) recognised

Opening balance 101 71 66 67 71

Expenses recognised in the income statement –391 –264 –253 –184 –132

Employer’s contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Closing balance –15 101 71 66 67

Movement in benefit obligation

Opening balance –4,501 –3,706 –2,995 –2,594 –741

Interest cost –126 –120 –105 –84 –19

Current service cost –635 –499 –448 –369 –256

Transfer payments (in)/out –867 200 125 –33 –1,192

Actuarial gain/(loss) on benefit obligation –4 –376 –283 85 –386

Closing balance –6,133 –4,501 –3,706 –2,995 –2,594

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Opening balance 3,523 2,747 2,054 2,311 639

Expected return on plan assets 141 110 92 92 22

Employer’s contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Employees’ contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Transfer payments in/(out) 867 –200 –125 33 1,192

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets –417 278 210 –749 203

Closing balance 4,664 3,523 2,747 2,053 2,312

Asset allocation

Cash 1,00 1,00 1,00 3,00 5,40

Equities 53,00 53,00 47,00 49,00 43,10

Bonds 22,00 21,00 18,00 9,00 17,90

Real estate 24,00 25,00 34,00 39,00 32,40

Other 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 1,20

Total 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00

Notes to the Consolidated
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In thousands of CHF 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Principal actuarial assumptions in %

Discount rate 2.50 2.80 3.25 3.50 3.25

Expected rate of return on plan assets 3.70 4.00 4.00 4.50 4.00

Expected future salary increases 2 2 2 2 2

Expected future pension increases 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.25

Life expectancy in years after retirement (men/women) 19.6/22.8 18.6/22.2 18.4/22.1 18.3/22.0 18.2/21.9

Amounts recognised in the income statement

Current service cost –635 –499 –448 –369 –256

Interest cost –126 –120 –105 –84 –19

Expected return on plan assets 141 110 92 92 22

Actuarial losses recognised in the year –46 –49 –50 –6 –7

–666 –558 –511 –367 –260

Employees’ contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Pension expenses recognised in the income statement –391 –264 –253 –184 –132

Contributions

Employees’ contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Employer 's contributions 275 294 258 183 128

Total 550 588 516 366 256

Return on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 141 110 92 92 22

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets –417 278 210 –749 203

Actual return on plan assets –276 388 302 –657 225

Actual return on plan assets in % –5.92 11.01 11.00 –31.99 9.73

Experience adjustments

Gain/(loss) due to changes in assumptions for plan liabilities 88 –218 –104 141 164

Gain/(loss) due to experience adjustments on plan liabilities –92 –158 –179 –56 –550

Gain/(loss) due to experience adjustments on plan assets –417 278 210 –749 203
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Peach Property Group AG’s employee benefit plan is based

on an agreement with Integral Foundation. The contributions

are calculated as a percentage of the insured salary. The in-

sured salary is equal to the employee’s yearly income less the

coordination amount. The contributions can be different de-

pending on the employees’ age. For the calculations, it is as-

sumed that men will retire at the age of 65 and women at the

age of 64. Pensions after retirement are calculated based on

the conversion rate applicable at the time when the individual

retires and their available retirement savings. The number of

individuals leaving the plan was calculated according to tech-

nical requirements (BVG 2010, PT 2011).

The expected net return on plan assets is based on the cur-

rent investment strategy and contains long-term expecta-

tions in the relevant markets. Expected yields on fixed inter-

est investments are based on gross redemption yields before

taxes as at 31 December 2011. Expected returns on equity

and real estate investments reflect long-term real rates of re-

turn experienced in the respective markets.

For the upcoming financial year, Peach expects contributions

to the employee benefit plan to amount to thousand CHF 341

(prior year: thousand CHF 340).

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial statements
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36. Related party transactions

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Disclosures regarding transactions with related parties

Income from property development

– Associates and joint ventures 3,132 0

Other operating income

– Members of management 8 0

– Family members of management 5 0

– Associates and joint ventures 526 0

Expenses from property development

– Associates and joint ventures –2,803 0

Interest income on loans and receivables

– Family members of management 1 0

– Other related parties 1 110

– Associates and joint ventures 1,030 991

Interest expense

– Family members of management 242 251

– Other related parties 1 477

– Associates and joint ventures 1 0

Other operating expenses

– Members of management 428 140

– Family members of management 354 180

– Company controlled by a member of management 0 814

– Other related parties 0 1,091

– Associates and joint ventures 273 0

Receivables from related parties (on 31.12.)

– Members of management 8 0

– Family members of management 2 184

– Other related parties 20 124

– Associates and joint ventures 16,723 8,860

Non-current receivables from related parties (on 31.12.)

– Associates and joint ventures 1,478 1,478
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Continuance from previous page

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Payables due to related parties (on 31.12.)

– Family members of management 240 61

– Company controlled by a member of management 29 0

– Other related parties 126 126

– Associates and joint ventures 476 205

Advances (on 31.12.)

– Family members of management 168 0

Loans due to related parties (at 31.12.)

– Shareholders 2,855 0

– Family members of management 0 3,605

– Other related parties 0 3,000

Transactions with related parties are settled on normal com-

mercial terms and conditions (arm’s length conditions).

37. Remunerations to members of

the Board of Directors and Management

For subsidiaries, in some cases senior office staff perform the

function of branch manager. However, these individuals are

not members of the Group’s key management. Members of

the boards of directors of subsidiaries do not receive any re-

muneration for their activities.

Fees and salaries of the members of

the Board of Directors and management for 2011

Board of Directors

Name, function Remuneration in cash
in thousands of CHF

Options granted
in thousands of CHF

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 0 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 65 0

Christian Kühni, member 60 0

Dr. Christian De Prati, member 1, 4, 5 183 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 2 0 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 3 67 0

1 Starting with Annual General Annual Meeting 2011
2 Until Annual General Annual Meeting 2011
3 Until Annual General Annual Meeting 2011
4 For the financial year 2011 pro rata temporis
5 Incl. thousand CHF 93 provisions in respect to the bonds issued, which was agreed based on normal commercial terms

Notes to the Consolidated
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Shares and options

Management

Name, function Base salary as cash pay-
ment 1, thousands of CHF

Bonus as cash payment
thousands of CHF

Options 2

thousands of CHF

Total
thousands of CHF

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 686 380 0 1 066

Ruedi Adler, CFO 209 60 81 350

Bruno Birrer, COO 215 30 65 310

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO 3 288 38 66 392

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 238 95 53 386

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 4 114 0 0 114

Bernd Hasse, Country manager Peach Deutschland 204 130 0 334
1 Incl. employers pension contribution
2 There is no annual grant of options. After the IPO took place, the option plan is no longer valid.
3 Until 30 September 2011
4 From 1 September 2011

Board of Directors

Name, function Number of shares Options

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100,000 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 859,250 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 0 0

Christian Kühni, member 0 0

Dr. Christian De Prati, member 0 0

Management

Name, function Number of shares Options

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 859,250 0

Ruedi Adler, CFO 0 20,000

Bruno Birrer, COO 21,000 4,000

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 0 10,000

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 0 0

Bernd Hasse, Country manager Peach Germany 0 0
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Fees and salaries of the members of board of directors and

management for 2010

Shares and options

Board of Directors

Name, function Remuneration in cash
in thousands of CHF

Options granted
in thousands of CHF

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 30 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 0 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 20 0

Christian Kühni, member 20 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 312 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 250 1,0911

1 Granted to Helvetic Private Investments AG, Wollerau, a company controlled by Norbert Ketterer

Management

Name, function Base salary as cash pay-
ment 1, thousands of CHF

Bonus as cash payment
thousands of CHF

Options 2

thousands of CHF
Total

thousands of CHF

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 586 500 0 1,086

Ruedi Adler, CFO 192 60 81 333

Bruno Birrer, COO 215 30 65 310

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO 333 50 66 449

Mirco Riondato, CIO 190 100 53 343

1 Incl. employers pension contribution
2 There is no annual grant of options. After the IPO took place, the option plan is no longer valid (note 38).

Board of Directors

Name, function Number of shares Options

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100,000 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 792,000 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 0 0

Christian Kühni, member 0 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 106,480 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 157,020 0

Management

Name, function Number of shares Options

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 792,000 0

Ruedi Adler, CFO 0 20,000

Bruno Birrer, COO 21,000 4,000

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO 0 10,000

Mirco Riondato, CIO 0 10,000

Notes to the Consolidated
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There is no obligation for further benefits after termination of

employment or as part of the termination of employment to

(previous) members of board of directors or management.

There are no loans made to members of the board of direc-

tors or management. Dr. Christian Wenger is a partner of the

law firm Wenger & Vieli AG. Services rendered from Wenger &

Vieli AG to Peach amounted to thousand CHF 188 (prior year:

thousand CHF 516) and were granted at arm's length condi-

tions.

38. Share option plans

In 2009, Peach Property Group AG allocated two tranches of

options to two consultants at a price of issue of nil. Tranche 1,

which included a total of 263,500 options (after reverse split),

was allocated in connection with the acquisition of the Ger-

man project entities from Vivacon and bears an exercise price

of CHF 0.01 per share (after reverse split CHF 1.00). Further

details are disclosed in Note 31. Tranche 2, which included a

total of 289,000 options (after reverse split) allows the consul-

tants in case of an IPO to acquire one share per option of

Peach for an exercise price of CHF 0.275 per share (after

reverse split: 27.50 CHF). The expected IPO date November

2010 determined the vesting period, over which the total com-

pensation costs need to be expensed. The fair value of the

Tranche 2 equity instruments was determined by using the

Black Scholes method at the date of grant, whereas the share

price was determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF)

method. The fair value of the Tranche 2 options granted

amounted to CHF 0.0549 each (after reverse split: CHF 5.49).

The following significant assumptions were used in order to

determine the fair value of the options: the exercise price (see

above), an expected option life of 530 days, the value of the

underlying shares of CHF 0.274 (after reverse split: CHF 27.40),

the expected volatility of 41.8%, no expected dividends and

an annual risk-free interest rate of 0.5%. The expected volatil-

ity is based on standard deviations from similar listed compa-

nies. Share-based compensation costs of the two consul-

tants were recorded within other operating expenses.

Of the total 552,500 options granted (after reverse split) to

the consultants, all were exercised.

In 2008, a stock option plan for employees on all levels was

introduced. It should provide an additional incentive in order

to enhance the employees’ motivation and participation in

the Group’s long-term sustainable success and growth. The

share options are granted at an issue price of nil. One option

entitles the holder to acquire one share. Options are condi-

tional on the employee retaining with the company for a spec-

ified period (the vesting period). Neither relative nor absolute

performance conditions and targets were defined. Peach

Property Group AG has no legal or constructive obligation to

repurchase or settle the options in cash. The exercise price

for all employees covered by the share option scheme was

set at CHF 0.01 (nominal amount of registered shares; after

reverse split: CHF 1.00). The weighted average of the remain-

ing contractual option life is 1.4 years.

The options in reporting period 2010 were granted to employ-

ees prior to the company’s IPO. No more options have been

allocated since the date of the IPO as the option plan is being

revised. The board of directors has not yet approved a new

definitive share option plan..

The options forfeited in the reporting period relate to one em-

ployee participating in the share option plan who left the

company.

Options outstanding at 1 January 2010 10,125,000

Reverse split shares 101,250

Options granted during the period 11,000

Options forfeited during the period 8,500

Options exercised during the period 28,500

Options expired during the period 0

Options outstanding at 31 December 2010 75,250

Options exerciseable at 31 December 2010 29,000

Options outstanding at 1 January 2011 75,250

Options granted during the period 0

Options forfeited during the period 5,000

Options exercised during the period 8,250

Options expired during the period 0

Options outstanding at 31 December 2011 62,000

Options exerciseable at 31 December 2011 47,750
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39. Commitments for future investments

Peach has to make future payments of thousand CHF 12,082

which are in connection with the acquisition of the develop-

ment property Etzelstrasse 11, Wollerau, and as defined in the

purchase agreement, dated 17 May 2011 and the addendum,

dated 27 October 2011. This amount will be due upon entry in

the land register, i.e. upon transfer of risks and rewards to

Peach. This amount represents the unpaid balance of the pur-

chase price, where prepayments of thousand CHF 750 have

been made to date. Further, Peach is paying thousand CHF 20

monthly to the vendor for lease income compensation until

transfer of ownership is made in the land register. Transfer of

ownership has to occur until 31 December 2012 at the latest.

40. Contingent liabilities

The Group has bank guarantees of total thousand CHF 6,164

(thousand EUR 949) to secure installments from buyers of

properties.

In connection with the lending arrangement between Yoo

Berlin GmbH & Co. KG and KBC bank Germany, which is to se-

cure interim financing of the property construction amount-

ing to thousand CHF 71,200 (thousand EUR 58,500), Peach

Property Group AG had to enter a cost-overrun and comple-

tion guarantee with the lending bank.

In connection with the lending arrangement between VD Har-

vestehuder III GmbH & Co. KG and Landesbank Berlin AG

which is to secure interim financing of the property construc-

tion amounting to thousand EUR 49,900, Peach Property

Group AG had to enter an interest-service guarantee. Peach

Property AG guarantees that the calculated financing costs of

thousand EUR 4,450 will not be exceeded. In the case of cost

overrun, Peach Property Group AG warrants for all costs in

order to secure payment of the financing costs. Further as

part of this financing arrangement, Peach Property Group AG

had to enter a cost-overrun guarantee with the lending bank.

This guarantee is limited to thousand EUR 2,000. Peach Prop-

erty Group AG also had to give the financing bank, Landes-

bank Berlin AG, a solid letter of comfort with limited security

purpose. The guarantee is limited to thousand EUR 3,250.

In connection with the lending arrangement between Vivacon

Development Harvestehuder II GmbH & Co. KG and HypoVer-

einsbank which is to secure interim financing of the property

construction amounting to thousand EUR 9,768, Peach Prop-

erty Group AG had to give the financing bank a guarantee lim-

ited to a maximum of thousand EUR 1,500.

The Bank für Tirol und Voralberg AG, Innsbruck, is giving

East West Wohnbau GmbH an interim financing of the prop-

erty construction amounting to thousand EUR 3,000. Peach

Property Group AG has to secure this amount with a letter of

comfort.

With the acquisition of the shares in the project entity “Am

Zirkus 1”, the lending bank, Norddeutsche Landesbank,

requested an appropriate risk allocation between all parties

involved. Consequently, Peach German Properties AG had

to enter a share capital guarantee amounting to EUR 1.98 mil-

lion (CHF 2.41 million) and a cost-overrun guarantee in the

amount of maximum EUR 5.52 million (CHF 6.72 million).

Peach German Properties AG, a 100% subsidiary of Peach,

has committed itself to guarantee sufficient financing for Am

Zirkus Berlin GmbH & Co. KG by issue of a letter of comfort and

subordination, which is limited up to an amount of maximum

thousand EUR 4,000, so that all liabilities can be paid when

due.

Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH issued a bond in

the form of a partial bond (bearer bond) with a maximum nom-

inal value of thousand EUR 50,000. The duration is 5 years and

the interest rate is 6.60%. Peach German Properties AG, the

warrantor, has to guarantee unconditional and irrevocable

payment of capital and interest when due to the bond holders

(see Note 28).

Notes to the Consolidated
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41. Assets pledged as collateral for own commitments

These relate to the carrying amounts of assets that are whol-

ly or partially pledged. These assets were effectively pledged

for liabilities in the amount of thousand CHF 86,319 (prior

year: thousand CHF 64,072).

42. Seasonality

The development and sale of properties do not generate

constant revenue over the course of the year. Depending on

the date of the transfer of ownership or the volumes of the

projects, revenue may be higher during the first or second

half-year.

43. Operating lease

Peach Property Group AG as lessee

Future lease payables under non-cancellable operative leas-

ing agreements amount to:

These result from leases for the office premises in Zurich of

thousand CHF 225 (prior year thousand CHF 189) and in

Cologne of thousand CHF 564 (prior year thousand CHF 654),

car leasing of thousand CHF 125 (prior year: thousand CHF

262) and leasing of copiers of thousand CHF 9 (prior year:

thousand CHF 17).

The leasing expenses for the reporting period 2011 amount-

ed to thousand CHF 464 (prior year: thousand CHF 350).

Peach Property Group AG as lessor

The following rental income results from non-cancellable

long-term leasing arrangements:

The rental payments of non-cancellable leases mainly relate

to the lease of the “Bakery” property at Seestrasse 26/28,

Wädenswil. The leasing arrangement can be terminated earli-

est on 31 December 2016.

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents 6,291 548

Other receivables 0 750

Development properties 149,626 143,771

Investment properties 21,605 0

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

up to 1 year 465 476

1–5 years 462 646

more than 5 years 0 0

Total 927 1,122

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

up to 1 year 578 510

1–5 years 2,411 2,300

more than 5 years 0 600

Total 2,989 3,410
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44. Events after the balance sheet date

Portfolio Erkrath GmbH, a fully owned subsidiary of Peach

Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH, acquired a residential

and commercial property in Erkrath-Hochdahl with a publicly

notarised sale agreement. The acquisition price amounted to

thousand EUR 12,072. The project is funded from Stadtspar-

kasse Düsseldorf in the amount of thousand EUR 11,500.

Under the same purchase agreement, Portfolio Erkrath Retail

GmbH, also a fully owned subsidiary of Peach Property Group

(Deutschland) GmbH, acquired a commercial property in

Erkrath. The acquisition price amounted to thousand EUR

11,028. The project is also funded through Stadtsparkasse

Düsseldorf with a volume of thousand EUR 10,000. The sales

areas are rented until 31 August 2018. Peach Property Group

AG entered into a revocable guarantee in the amount of thou-

sand EUR 2,000 in favour of Stadtsparkasse Düsseldorf in

order to secure funds of total thousand EUR 21,500. For both

properties risks and rewards were transferred to the buyer

on 3 February 2012. The current lease arrangement for the

residential and commercial property amounts to thousand

EUR 2,095 p.a. By applying the existing vacancy ratio of 5.6%

for the residential property and 0% for the commercial prop-

erty, leasing income amounts to thousand EUR 2,162 p.a. The

operating expenses (excl. interest expenses) amounts to

thousand EUR 662 p.a. The fair value of the residential and

commercial property amounts to thousand EUR 29,900

based on a preliminary estimate at the date of transfer of

ownership. The sales price for the property is below is market

value, as the vendor had strategic reasons to exit the real es-

tate business and was looking for immediate sale.

On 23 February 2012, a credit line agreement in the amount of

CHF 30 million was closed with UBS. With this arrangement,

among other things, the existing financing agreement with

Luzerner Kantonalbank in the amount of CHF 15.2 million was

replaced. The interest rate risk inherent in this arrangement

was hedged through an interest rate swap with a volume of

CHF 20 million.

With respect to commitments for future investments, refer to

Note 39.
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Report of the statutory auditor
to the general meeting of
Peach Property Group AG
Zurich

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of Peach Property Group AG, which
comprise the balance sheet, income statement and notes to the financial statements (pages 178 to 187),
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the prepara-
tion of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting poli-
cies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 comply with Swiss law
and the company’s articles of incorporation.

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances
incompatible with our independence.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, Birchstrasse 160, Postfach, CH-8050 Zurich, Switzerland
Telephone: +41 58 792 44 00, Facsimile: +41 58 792 44 10, www.pwc.ch

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd is a member of the global PricewaterhouseCoopers network of firms, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm
that an internal control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial state-
ments according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of reserves from capital contributions complies
with Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial state-
ments submitted to you be approved.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd

Willy Wenger Roberto Bumann

Audit expert Audit expert
Auditor in charge

Zurich, 2 April 2012

Report of the statutory
auditor
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BALANCE SHEET

Assets

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,158 28,898

Securities – treasury shares 512 477

Trade receivables

from third parties 63 244

from Group companies 3,093 2,999

from associates & joint ventures 3,786 0

from shareholder 187 176

from related parties 0 168

Provision for impairment –176 –176

Other receivables

from third parties 134 123

from Group companies 45,300 40,559

from associates & joint ventures 10,236 6,451

from related parties 0 109

Advance payments 166 166

Construction in progress 3,771 4,147

Prepaid expenses

from third parties 78 16

Total current assets 68,308 84,357

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 180 246

Intangible assets

Software and licenses 44 35

Share capital increase costs 3,908 4,849

Financial assets

Investments in associates & joint ventures 1,478 1,478

Investments in subsidiaries 593 482

Total non-current assets 6,203 7,090

Total assets 74,511 91,447
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Liabilities

In thousands of CHF 31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts 6 8

Accounts payables

to third parties 368 700

to related parties 120 0

Other current liabilities

to third parties 292 112

to Group companies 470 474

to related parties 57 32

Advances from clients

to third parties 226 106

to related parties 168 168

Accrued expenses

to third parties 2,004 2,114

Loans

to shareholder 3,565 710

Current income tax liabilities 640 630

Provisions for construction/general 2,347 0

Total current liabilities 10,263 5,054

Non-current liabilities

Loans to shareholder 4,000 4,095

Loans to related parties 0 3,605

Provisions for construction/general 0 2,076

Total non-current liabilities 4,000 9,776

Total liabilities 14,263 14,830

Equity

Share capital 4,852 4 ,844

Reserves from capital contribution 66,364 71,176

Other general reserves 5,419 5,419

Reserves for treasury shares 512 477

Total statutory reserves 72,295 77,072

Retained earnings

Loss/profit carried forward –5,334 1,755

Loss for the year –11,565 –7,054

Total shareholder’s equity 60,248 76,617

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 74,511 91,447

Balance sheet
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In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Revenues from construction projects 3,558 0

Direct costs from construction projects –3,172 0

Result from third-party construction activity 386 0

Other operating income third party 159 3,874

Other operating income associates and joint ventures 378 1,478

Gross profit 923 5,352

Personnel expenses –4,512 –3,751

Operating expenses –3,862 –1,592

Administration expenses –1,882 –3,698

Earning before interests, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) –9,333 –3,689

Losses from trade receivables –22 0

Depreciation –1,130 –329

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) –10,485 –4,018

Financial income

from third parties 184 352

from Group companies 1,526 281

from associates and joint ventures 261 20

from related parties 0 109

Financial expenses

from third parties –2,586 –3,332

from group companies –23 –55

from related parties –242 –411

Financial result –880 –3,036

Result before income taxes –11,365 –7,054

Income taxes –200 0

Result of the year –11,565 –7,054

INCOME
STATEMENT
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Securities and guarantees in favour of third parties

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

thereof TEUR 9,750 27,067 16,200

In connection with the lending arrangement between Yoo Berlin GmbH & Co. KG and KBC
bank Germany, which is to secure interim financing of the property construction amounting
to TEUR 58,500, Peach Property Group AG had to enter a cost-overrun and completion
guarantee with the lending bank.

p.m. p.m.

In connection with the lending arrangement between VD Harvestehuder III GmbH & Co. KG
and Landesbank Berlin AG, which is to secure interim financing of the property construction
amounting to TEUR 49,900, Peach Property Group AG had to enter an interest-service guar-
antee. Peach Property AG guarantees that the calculated financing costs of TEUR 4,450 will
not be exceeded. In the case of cost overrun, Peach Property Group AG warrants for all
costs in order to secure payment of interest costs.

p.m.

Further, as part of this financing arrangement, Peach Property Group AG had to enter a cost-
overrun guarantee with the lending bank. This guarantee is limited to TEUR 2,000. Peach
Property Group AG also had to give the financing bank, Landesbank Berlin AG, a solid letter of
comfort with limited security purpose. The guarantee is limited to TEUR 3,250.

(TEUR 5,250)

In connection with the lending arrangement between Vivacon Development Harvestehuder II
GmbH & Co. KG and HypoVereinsbank, which is to secure interim financing of the property
construction amounting to TEUR 9,768, Peach Property Group AG had to give the financing
bank a guarantee limited to a maximum of TEUR 1,500.

(TEUR 1,500)

The Bank für Tirol und Voralberg AG provided East West Wohnbau GmbH an interim financ-
ing for the property construction amounting to TEUR 3,000. Peach Property Group AG has to
secure this amount with a letter of comfort.

(TEUR 3,000)

Peach Property Group AG has granted the building owners the usual SIA Guarantee for any
construction defects relating to the “Schooren, Kilchberg” property.

p.m. p.m.

Peach Property Group AG constitutes a VAT group along with the subsidiaries Condomi-
nium Invest AG, Peach German Properties AG and Peach German Properties II AG.
Peach Property Group AG is jointly and severally liable for the resulting VAT payables.

p.m. p.m.

Peach Property Group AG has issued a joint guarantee in favour of Condominium Invest AG
in connection with a loan facility granted from Luzerner Kantonalbank amounting to
TCHF 15,200 to finance the property in Wädenswil.

(TCHF 15,200) (TCHF 16,200)

Income statement

Notes to the
Financial statements
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2. Pledged assets as collateral and other pledged assets

3. Total amount of future lease payables

4. Fire insurance value of fixed assets

5. Pension fund obligations

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Pledged assets

In favour of Luzerner Kantonalbank (bank deposit for Condominium Invest AG) 127 32

In favour of DH Investment GmbH (other receivables 750 750

In favour of shareholder (other receivables) 2,750 0

Total pledged assets 3,627 782

Assets pledged due to subordination clause (receivables from Group companies) TEUR

Entity

Peach German Properties AG 4,142 2,023

Peach Property Group (Deutschland) GmbH 2,000 2,434

East West Wohnbau GmbH 150 183

VD Harvestehuder I GmbH & Co. KG 14,666 17,850

VD Harvestehuder II GmbH & Co. KG 319 388

VD Harvestehuder III GmbH & Co. KG 1,161 1,413

VD Berlin Chausseestrasse GmbH & Co. KG 2,000 2,434

Yoo Berlin GmbH & Co. KG 2,000 2,434

Total assets pledged due to subordination clause 22,296 31,278 2,023

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

115 399

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

500 500

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

57 49
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6. Investments in Group companies and associates

During the current year, 11% of common shares of Beach

House AG were re-acquired. Further, during the current year

the investment in Peach Property Group (Germany) GmbH,

Cologne, was transferred to Peach German Properties AG,

Stansstad.

7. Treasury shares

During the reporting period, the company acquired 58,660

(prior year: 21,387) treasury shares on the market in the

amount of thousand CHF 1,387 (prior year: thousand CHF

660) and sold 32,312 (prior year: 5,772) treasury shares in the

amount of thousand CHF 745 (prior year: thousand CHF 174)

on the market. The number of treasury shares at 31 Decem-

ber 2011 amounts to 41,963 (prior year: 15,615) treasury

shares with a carrying amount of thousand CHF 512 (prior

year: thousand CHF 477).

8. Conditional capital

Conditional capital of a maximum of CHF 219,601 is available

for the issue of a maximum of 219,601 registered shares, to

be fully paid up, with a nominal value of CHF 1.00. Conditional

capital can be used to compensate for the exercise of option

rights granted to employees, consultants or members of the

Board of Directors in accordance with consultancy agree-

ments or employee share schemes, as well as for the issue of

share capital in connection with other financial instruments

of the company.

Name Registered in Currency Share Capital Share in %

Condominium Invest AG, real estate company Zurich thousands of CHF 100 100%

Peach German Properties AG, holding company Stansstad thousands of CHF 100 100%

Peach German Properties II AG, finance company Stansstad thousands of CHF 100 100%

WSZ Residential Development AG, real estate company Sarnen thousands of CHF 25 100%

East West Wohnbau GmbH, project entity A-Ischgl thousands of CHF 35 99%

Beach House AG, holding company Wädenswil thousands of CHF 100 47%

9. Authorised capital

The Board of Directors is authorised to increase the share

capital by a maximum of CHF 617,630 at any time but no later

than 18 June 2012 by the issue of at most 617,630 registered

shares, to be fully paid up, each with a nominal value of

CHF 1.00.

10. Information on the implementation

of risk assessment/ICS

The ICS of Peach Property Group AG was approved by the

Board of Directors and includes all risks, which are system-

atically recorded and summarised in a risk matrix. The board

of directors is periodically informed on the status of agreed

action points and their implications on risk minimisation.

The implemented master process ensures a systematic

analysis and assessment of risks.

Once a year, in an all-day meeting of management, the Board

of Directors is informed of the risk assessment carried out as

well as the relevant measures taken and the implications

thereon. Extraordinary incidents with effects that may lead to

a significant risk in the future are immediately reported to the

board of directors.

Notes to the
Financial statements
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11. Significant shareholders

12. Compensation, investments and

loans to members of the Board of Directors

and Management

Fees and salaries of the Board of Directors

and Management

Aktionäre % of shares % of shares
2011 2010

Dr. Ulrich Wolfensberger 0.00 19.13

Oliver Wolfensberger 17.77 0.00

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger 17.71 16.35

DWS Investment GmbH 0.00 9.25

Nicole Kunz 5.04 5.05

Dan Holzmann 4.30 4.36

Balfidor Fondsleitung AG 4.26 3.34

Schroder ISF Small & Mid Cap 3.88 3.02

Helvetic Private Investment AG 3.24 3.24

Board of directors

Name, function Remuneration in cash,
thousands ofCHF

Options granted,
thousands ofCHF

2011 2010 2010

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100 30 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 0 0 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 65 20 0

Christian Kühni, member 60 20 0

Dr. Christian De Prati 183 1, 4, 5 0 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 0 2 312 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 67 3 250 1,091 6

1 Since General Assembly 2011
2 Until General Assembly 2011
3 Until General Assembly 2011
4 For financial year 2011 pro rata temporis
5 Incl. thousand CHF 93 (thousand EUR 75) in connection with charges relating to the bond issued
6 Issued to Helvetic Private Investments AG, Wollerau (a company owned by Norbert Ketterer)
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Shares and options

1 Until Annual General Meeting 2011
2 Until Annual General Meeting 2011

Management

Name, function Base salary (cash)1

thousand of CHF

Bonus (cash)
thousand of CHF

Options 2

thousand of CHF

Total
thousand of CHF

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 686 586 380 500 0 0 1 066 1,086

Ruedi Adler, CFO 209 192 60 60 81 81 350 333

Bruno Birrer, COO 215 215 30 30 65 65 310 310

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO 288 3 333 38 50 66 66 392 449

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 238 190 95 100 53 53 386 343

Dr. Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer) 114 4 0 0 0 0 0 114 0

Bernd Hasse, Country manager Germany 204 0 130 0 0 0 334 0
1 Incl. employer’s pension contributions
2 There is no annual allocation of options. After the IPO was completed, the option plan is no longer valid.
3 Until 30 September 2011
4 From 1 September 2011

Board of Directors

Name, function Number of shares Options
2011 2010 2011 2010

Dr. Christian Wenger, chairman 100,000 100,000 0 0

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, member 859,250 792,000 0 0

Peter E. Bodmer, member 0 0 0 0

Christian Kühni, member 0 0 0 0

Dr. Christian De Prati 0 0 0 0

Dr. Peter Saemann, member 0 1 106,480 0 0

Norbert Ketterer, member 0 2 157,020 0 0

Notes to the
Financial statements
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1 Until 30 September 2011
2 From September 2011

Management

Name, function Number of shares Options
2011 2010 2011 2010

Dr. Thomas Wolfensberger, CEO 859,250 792,000 0 0

Ruedi Adler, CFO 0 0 20,000 20,000

Bruno Birrer, COO 21,000 21,000 4,000 4,000

Rahman Rahmanzadeh, CCO1 0 0 0 10,000

Mirco Riondato, CIO (Chief Investment Officer) 0 0 10,000 10,000

Marcel Kucher, CIO (Chief Information Officer)2 0 0 0 0

Bernd Hasse, Country manager Germany 0 0 0 0

There are no loans granted to members of the Board of Direc-

tors or Management. Dr. Christian Wenger is a partner of the

law firm Wenger & Vieli AG. Services rendered from Wenger &

Vieli AG to Peach amounted to CHF 122,447 (prior year: CHF

515,512) and were granted at arm's length conditions.
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The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting

a distribution not subject to withholding tax of CHF 0.30 per

share, that is eligible for dividend payment, out of the reserves

from capital contributions.

This will result in a reduction of the reserves from capital contri-

butions of CHF 1,443,131.

In thousands of CHF 2011 2010

Accumulated loss/available unappropriated earnings

Balance brought forward –5,299 2,232

Transfer to reserves for treasury shares –35 –477

Net loss for the year –11,565 –7,054

Accumulated loss –16,899 –5,299

Balance to be carried forward –16,899 –5,299

PROPOSAL FOR THE
APPROPRIATION OF
RETAINED EARNINGS AND
OF RESERVES FROM
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

Notes to the
Financial statements

Proposal for the
appropriation
of retained earnings
and of reserves
from capital contribution
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PORTFOLIO

Peach Property Group focuses on city and holiday residences for
discerning property owners and investors. The properties’ main features
are their first-class location, high quality and incomparable finish
that satisfy the demands and lifestyle of their owners. Peach Property
Group’s current development portfolio encompasses a total of
14 projects in Greater Zurich, Berlin, Hamburg, and the Austrian holiday
resort of Kappl near Ischgl.

As at the end of January 2012, Peach Property Group’s investment
portfolio includes investment properties in Erkrath-Hochdahl near
Düsseldorf, Munster near Hamburg, and Zurich. Overall, the current
portfolio consists of 519 residential properties with total living space
of around 36,000 m2 and 29 commercial units covering around
15,000 m2.

Hamburg
H36

Berlin-Mitte
Living 106 2

yoo berlin
Am Zirkus 1

Düsseldorf
Schlossuferresidenz 1

Munster

Zurich
Bakery

Kappl
Schooren des Alpes
Holdernach

Zurich
Beach House
Aquatica
Kölla
Mansion
Dockside
Mews & Gardens
Candy Factory
Sonnenberg 1

Avalon 1

Schooren 2

Project 111 2

Projects

Investment properties

Places of business
1 Projects sold
2 Projects completed
3 Portfolio purchase in January 2012

Cologne

Erkrath 3

KEY FIGURES

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

Peach Property Group (consolidated)

Operating income in thousands of CHF 19,679 84,425

Operating profit/EBIT in thousands of CHF –11,960 21,342

Profit/(loss) for the period in thousands of CHF –11,137 17,971

NAV IFRS in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

NAV market value 1 in thousands of CHF 130,016 146,529

Projects under construction in thousands of CHF 153,423 147,563

Building loans used in thousands of CHF 71,651 59,472

Equity in thousands of CHF 95,234 112,477

Equity ratio (reported) in % 42 53

Equity ratio (at NAV market value 1) in % 48 57

Employees 35 34

Peach Property Group share

Number of shares (at CHF 1.00/share) 4,852,400 4,844,150

Share capital in thousands of CHF 4,852 4,844

Diluted profit per share in CHF –2,31 6,03

NAV IFRS per share in CHF 19,63 23,22

NAV market value 1 per share in CHF 26,79 30,25

Share price on 31 December in CHF 11,05 31,00

Market capitalisation on 31 December in thousands of CHF 53,619 150,169

1 NAV market value calculated on the basis of the Wüest & Partner valuation, account having been
taken of deferred taxes.

Market value per property

in millions of CHF at 31.12.2011 (rounded)

Aquatica, Kölla, Mansion 57.0

8.0

7.2

6.9

49.4

38.7

68.1

Mews & Gardens

Dockside

Schooren des Alpes

yoo berlin

Am Zirkus 1 (100%)

H36

CHDevelopment properties Investment properties DA

35.5Peninsula Beach House (100%)

Market value per country

as a % (rounded)

CH: 115.3

in millions of CHF

3
9

.4

2
.4

5
8

.2

D: 170.2

A: 6.9

14.0

292.4

Portfolio Munster

0 10 2
0

3
0

4
0 5
0

6
0

7
0

7.6Bakery

1 Based on the valuation by
Wüest & Partner on 31.12.2011

in millions of CHF

Portfolio
21.6

9
3 7

Develop-
ment 270.8

Market value per property category

in % (rounded); total portfolio1 292.4 million CHF
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Its activities involved cover the entire value creation chain for theIts activities involved cover the entire value creation chain for the
development of real estate from location assessment and project man-development of real estate from location assessment and project man-
agement right through to completion, marketing and sale or leasing.agement right through to completion, marketing and sale or leasing.
Based on this comprehensive range of services from the initial ideaBased on this comprehensive range of services from the initial idea
through to project completion and the focus on the most attractivethrough to project completion and the focus on the most attractive
locations in Europe, Peach Property Group is in a position to offer itslocations in Europe, Peach Property Group is in a position to offer its
clients highly exceptional properties.clients highly exceptional properties.

The success of Peach Property Group is largely attributable to its coreThe success of Peach Property Group is largely attributable to its core
competences: access to customers interested in buying uniquecompetences: access to customers interested in buying unique
properties, an extensive network of information channels permittingproperties, an extensive network of information channels permitting
the identification of properties and land with development potential,the identification of properties and land with development potential,
the structuring of financing models and project development and pro-the structuring of financing models and project development and pro-
ject management on the highest level – not to mention a proactiveject management on the highest level – not to mention a proactive
approach to managing its portfolio properties.approach to managing its portfolio properties.

Peach Property Group employs 35 real estate and financialPeach Property Group employs 35 real estate and financial specialistsspecialists
at its headquarters in Zurich and at its German branch inat its headquarters in Zurich and at its German branch in Cologne.Cologne.
Current Group projects amount to aCurrent Group projects amount to a targeted marketing volume totallingtargeted marketing volume totalling
around 800 million CHF.around 800 million CHF.

PEACH PROPERTY GROUP AG
IS ONE OF THE LEADING
DEVELOPERS OF LUXURY RESIä
DENTIAL PROPERTY IN THE
GERMANäSPEAKING COUNTRIES
OF EUROPE.

Peach Property Group AG
Seestrasse 346 | P. O. BoxSeestrasse 346 | P. O. Box
8038 Zurich | Switzerland8038 Zurich | Switzerland
Tel. +41 44 485 50 00Tel. +41 44 485 50 00
Fax +41 44 485 50 11Fax +41 44 485 50 11
www.peachestates.comwww.peachestates.com

THE BEST ASSETS
GROW WITH YOU.
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